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Principal Office
28th Floor

Emperor Group Centre
288 Hennessy Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

Registrar (in Bermuda)

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Registrar (in Hong Kong)
Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China Limited, Macau Branch

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Chong Hing Bank Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited, Macau Branch

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Key Dates
Annual Results Announcement 21 June 2017
Book Close Dates
— For Final Dividend 31 August and

1 September 2017
Record Dates

— For 2017 AGM 18 August 2017

— For Final Dividend 1 September 2017
2017 Annual General Meeting 24 August 2017
Payment of Final Dividend 15 September 2017

(HK$0.058 per share)

Corporate Communications

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any shareholder of the Company either in printed form
or on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company. In
order to protect the environment, the Company highly recommends
the shareholders to receive electronic copy of this Annual Report.
Shareholders may have the right to change their choice of receipt
of our future Corporate Communications at any time by reasonable
notice in writing to the Company or the Company’s Hong Kong
Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, by post or by
email at is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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Total revenue

A
Investment properties for rental income
REME ZHERA
Property development for sale
MEHRHEE
Hotel operations and related services
B E #5828 B AR 7%

Fair value changes on investment properties

REMEAREBEZEY

Basic earnings/(loss) per share (HKS)
BREAREN/(BE) (Bx)

2017
HK$’000
Fi#
4,068,467
857,427

1,515,745

1,695,295

3,228,003

2016
HK$'000
TAET

5,602,894

836,074

2,971,634

1,795,186

(3,167,583)

Changes
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION A
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Emperor International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) principally
engage in property investments, property development and
hospitality, owning properties with a total area of over 5 million
square feet in Greater China and overseas. Under its tri-engine
business model, the Group owns many investment properties in
prime locations that generate stable and recurrent income; runs
many property development projects for earnings visibility; and
develops hospitality services with strong recurrent cash flow.

Market Review

During the year ended 31 March 2017 (“the Year”), Hong
Kong’s office leasing market remained buoyant. Following the
launch of cross-border investment initiatives, more mainland
China companies were looking to establish their presences in
Hong Kong. A growing number of mainland China companies,
particularly in financial services, took core office spaces in Hong
Kong. In China, leasing demand for Grade-A office spaces in
Central Business Districts was also strong, backed by the rapid
expansion of domestic financial services and professional services
sectors.

Rents for prime street-level spaces in Hong Kong generally
softened, due to dwindling tourist arrivals and weaker spending,
although the traffic has gradually improved since the fourth quarter
of 2016. Hampered by the lacklustre consumption sentiment, some
luxury brands were forced to scale back their footprints. As a
result, prime shopping streets have seen a shift towards mass-to-
mid market retailers, including lifestyle stores, fast fashion brands
and cosmetics chains.

Tourist traffic to Hong Kong has witnessed improvements since
the fourth quarter of 2016, due to a stronger Japanese yen and
occurrence of terrorism incidents in Europe. Chinese visitor arrivals
to Hong Kong registered 6.1% growth in December 2016, after 18
months of decline. The potential revival of inbound tourism creates
a favourable outlook for hospitality operations in Hong Kong.

Despite the upward interest rates cycle in the United States, Hong
Kong residential property prices performed strongly given solid
local buying interest and rising demand from mainland China
investors seeking to hedge against a weaker yuan. According to
data from the Ratings & Valuation Department, secondary home
prices in Hong Kong soared for the 13th consecutive month to
reach an all-time high in April 2017, in spite of hasher levies aimed
at curbing investment demand. Record-breaking deals were also
concluded in a number of housing estates.
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Financial Review
Overall Review

During the Year, the Group'’s total revenue was HK$4,068.5 million
(2016: HK$5,602.9 million). Rental income from the Group's
investment properties portfolio grew by 2.6% to HK$857.4 million
(2016: HK$836.1 million), representing 21.1% (2016: 14.9%) of
total revenue. As for property development for sale, revenue of
HK$1,515.7 million (2016: HK$2,971.6 million) was generated from
the sales of remaining completed residential units, particularly the
Upton. Revenue from the hospitality segment slightly declined
to HK$1,695.3 million (2016: HK$1,795.2 million), accounting for
41.7% (2016: 32.1%) of total revenue.

Gross profit was HK$2,844.4 million (2016: HK$3,098.1 million).
A revaluation gain on investment properties was amounted to
HK$3,228.0 million (2016: a revaluation loss of HK$3,167.6 million).
The profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company
was HK$3,483.2 million (2016: loss for the year attributable to the
owners of the Company of HK$2,391.2 million).

Basic earnings per share was HK$0.95 (2016: basic loss per share
of HK$0.65). The board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”)
of the Company recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.058 (2016: HK$0.055) per share. Together with the interim
dividend of HK$0.045 (2016: HK$0.045) per share, the total
dividends for the Year are HK$0.103 (2016: HK$0.10) per share.
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Liquidity And Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2017, the Group's net asset value and net
asset value per share amounted to HK$25,546.5 million (2016:
HK$22,752.7 million) and HK$6.95 (2016: HK$6.19) per share,
respectively.

The Group had cash, bank balances and bank deposits
amounting to HK$6,654.0 million as at 31 March 2017 (2016:
HK$3,833.3 million). The total external borrowings (excluding
payables) amounted to approximately HK$23,432.5 million (2016:
HK$19,272.0 million) and the Group's net gearing ratio was 30.2%
(2016: 33.6%) (measured by net debts as a percentage to the total
asset value of the Group).

In addition to its share capital and reserves, the Group made
use of cash flow generated from operations, bank borrowings,
unsecured notes and unsecured loans from a related company
to finance its operation. During the Year, the Company issued
unsecured notes amounting to US$400.0 million and HK$1.1
billion for the purpose of providing general working capital to the
Group. Such notes become repayable between 2021 and 2022.
The US dollar notes carry coupon rates ranging between 4.0%
and 5.0% per annum whilst the Hong Kong dollars notes have
coupon rates of between 4.4% and 4.7%, payable semi-annually
in arrears. The Group’s bank borrowings were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi (“RMB”) and their interest rates
followed market rates. The Group's bank balances and cash were
also denominated in Hong Kong dollars, RMB and Macau Pataca
(“MOP”). The Group is exposed to certain foreign exchange risk
caused by fluctuation in RMB exchange rate. The Group closely
monitors its overall foreign exchange exposure and will adopt
appropriate measures to mitigate the currency risks.
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Business Review
Investment Properties for Rental Income

The Group’s investment property portfolio primarily focuses on
quality street-level retail spaces and commercial buildings in
prominent locations, not just in Greater China, but also in the
United Kingdom. In recent years, the Group has strived to enhance
the proportion of retail and commercial buildings, on a whole block
basis, among its existing property investment portfolio, aiming to
diversify its rental income streams and ensure the Group is in a
more resilient position to withstand market volatility. As a result of
the majority of its premises being in prime locations, the overall
occupancy rate of the Group’s investment properties was over
94.0% as at 31 March 2017.

Projects to be launched soon
- Mainland China

Located in Chang’an Avenue East, Beijing, Emperor Group
Centre was completed in the first quarter of 2017. This is
a 28-storey (excluding three-storey basement with parking
facilities) Grade-A office tower and premier shopping mall
with premium cinema, encompassing a gross floor area
of approximately 1,062,000 square feet. Given that it is a
landmark building along a prominent street in China’s capital
city, it marks a significant milestone for the Group in upscaling
significant commercial projects in mainland China. The Group
expects this project to generate significant recurring rental
revenue, upon its inauguration.

Emperor Group Centre, Beijing
b 55 2 5 & A
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- Macau

During the Year, the construction work of Emperor Nam
Van Centre on the Macau Peninsula was in progress. It
is a multi-storey premium retail complex with a gross floor
area of approximately 30,000 square feet, scheduled for
completion in mid-2017. It is expected that this corner site
will be upgraded and become a signature, prime city-centre
shopping locale in Macau.

New acquisition

During the Year, the Group continued to acquire investment
properties with high appreciation potential, in order to broaden and
enhance the quality of its property portfolio.

- London

The Group has recently completed the acquisition of
Ampersand Building, a composite building comprising
retail spaces, office premises and leasehold apartments, at
Nos. 111-125 Oxford Street, London, in June 2017. This is a
freehold 8-storey (including basement) composite building
with a total floor area of approximately 90,999 square feet.
Located in the prime retail and vibrant SOHO office area
of London’s West End, it is also in close proximity to the
Tottenham Court Road Crossrail development, thereby
enjoying significant pedestrian traffic. In line with the Group’s
strategic focus, this acquisition presents a rare opportunity
to purchase a quality asset that will be attractive to retail and
office tenants over the long term, on a whole block basis, on a
prominent street in the world-renowned cosmopolitan city.
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Hong Kong

During the Year, the Group also announced acquisition
of retail shops of Fairview Height, Mid-levels, Hong
Kong. Located in the traditional luxury residential area on
Hong Kong Island, this property is surrounded by upscale
residential properties in Mid-Levels, where its local retalil
market is supported by high income group. Such acquisition
is expected to be completed in July 2017. The Group also
completed the acquisition of commercial and car park
complexes at Sui Wo Court, Shatin, New Territories, Hong
Kong. Supported by the resilient demand for parking spaces
and domestic retail spaces, this acquisition will provide a solid
rental income stream with long-term upside potential.

Existing Portfolio

Hong Kong — Retail Premises

The Group owns many premium investment properties, with a
strong focus on street level retail space in Hong Kong's main
shopping districts. Key investment properties include the
retail shops at Nos. 8, 20, 22-24 and 50-56 Russell Street,
No. 76 Percival Street and Nos. 474-476, 478-484, 507, 523
Lockhart Road in Causeway Bay; Nos. 4-8 Canton Road,
Nos. 81, 83 Nathan Road, Nos. 35-37 Haiphong Road and
Nos. 25-29 Hankow Road in Tsim Sha Tsui; The Pulse in
Repulse Bay; Fitfort Shopping Arcade in North Point; and
Level 3, New Town Mansion Shopping Arcade in Tuen Mun.
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Hong Kong — Office, Commercial & Industrial Complexes

In addition to the above-mentioned retail spaces, the
Group’s rental income from complexes mainly includes
Emperor Group Centre, China Huarong Tower and Nos.
75-85 Lockhart Road in Wan Chai; Wincome Centre in
Central; a complex at Nos. 45-51 Kwok Shui Road in Kwai
Chung; and New Media Tower in Kwun Tong. It is planned
that two adjacent commercial complexes at Nos. 75-85
Lockhart Road will be disassembled and redeveloped into
a Japanese-Ginza style commercial and catering composite
building with a gross floor area of 96,000 square feet. The
project is scheduled for completion during 2019. The Group
continually strives to upgrade the quality and maximise the
potential rental income of its premises by undertaking various
transformation and refurbishing programmes.

London

The Group owns a seven-storey (including basement) retail
and office complex at Nos. 181-183 Oxford Street, and an
eight-storey (including basement) retail and office complex
at Nos. 25-27 Oxford Street, in London. With premises in a
prominent London shopping hub that is a popular tourist spot
for international visitors, the Group is optimistic regarding the
potential rental streams.

Mainland China

In Yuyuan, Huangpu District, Shanghai, Emperor Star
City will be developed into a shopping arcade and hotel
or serviced apartment complex, at a prime site adjacent to
the Shanghai M10 subway route. Foundation and basement
excavation work for the development has been completed.
With an expected gross floor area of approximately 1,300,000
square feet, the complex will include a multi-storey shopping
arcade as its major component.
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Property Development for Sale

The Group firmly pursues a strategy of providing either luxury
composite buildings in popular urban areas or low-rise detached
houses in unique spots, with convenient access to transportation
networks. A steady development pipeline is fixed for providing
medium-term contributions to the sale of residential units for
earnings visibility.

There was good progress with sales of the Group’s residential
units. The remaining units of Harbour One and 18 Upper East,
together with part of the remaining units of Upton, were sold and
the sales proceeds were recognised during the Year.

Projects to be launched soon

A residential site, at Tuen Mun Town Lot No. 436, Kwun
Fat Street, Siu Lam, Tuen Mun, with a gross floor area of
approximately 39,000 square feet, was developed into 14 low-
rise detached or semi-detached houses. The occupation permit
was obtained in November 2016 and the completed units will be
launched to the market in 2017.

An urban redevelopment project is in progress at New Kowloon
Lot No. 6538, Fuk Wing Street, Sham Shui Po, Kowloon, with a
gross floor area of approximately 54,000 square feet. It is planned
that the site will be redeveloped into a 26-storey composite
residential/retail tower with more than 130 flats. This project is
expected to be completed in 2018, and pre-sales are scheduled to
commence in the third quarter of 2017.

Other future projects

Another prime residential site with a sea view, at Tuen Mun
Town Lot No. 490, Tai Lam, Tuen Mun, with a gross floor area
of approximately 29,000 square feet, will be developed into a
luxurious low-rise development, comprising detached houses
and apartments. It is expected to be completed in mid-2018.
This project, as well as a residential project at Siu Lam, will be
well served by a superb transportation network of Hong Kong-
Shenzhen Western Corridor as well as the future Tuen Mun—-Chek
Lap Kok Link and Hong Kong—Zhuhai-Macau Bridge. The projects
are also close to Harrow International School Hong Kong, the Hong
Kong branch of the prestigious, UK-based Harrow School.
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In collaboration with two partners, a signature luxury residential
project at Rural Building Lot No. 1198, Shouson Hill, Hong
Kong, with a gross floor area of approximately 88,000 square
feet, will be developed into 15 low-density luxury houses, with
comprehensive auxiliary facilities. Another site at Nos. 8-10A
Mosque Street, Mid-Levels, will be redeveloped into a luxury
residential tower with a gross floor area of approximately 34,000
square feet. Both projects are expected to be completed in 2019.
In line with our strategic focus on quality residential properties in
Hong Kong Island, these two projects will enable the Group to
optimise the land bank portfolio with better capital appreciation in
future.

Hotel Operations and Related Services

Dedicated to the Group’s ongoing efforts on developing hospitality
services, Emperor Hotels Group has been established to cover
several hotels and serviced apartments in Hong Kong and Macau.
In Hong Kong, it covers Emperor (Happy Valley) Hotel, Inn Hotel
Hong Kong, MORI MORI Serviced Apartments and two new
development projects, mainly in Wanchai and Happy Valley. In
Macau, it covers Grand Emperor Hotel and Inn Hotel Macau,
where income from hospitality and gaming has been consolidated
with the Group.

Projects to be launched soon

A 29-storey hotel at No. 373 Queen’s Road East, \Nan Chai, was
completed in April 2017. With a gross floor area of approximately
115,000 square feet, it offers 300 guest rooms together with
leisure, dining and parking facilities. The hotel is expected to
open in the first quarter of 2018. It is a signature hotel project
under Emperor Hotels Group, which can further enhance brand
recognition in the hospitality segment.
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Meanwhile, construction work at Nos. 17-19 Yik Yam Street,
Happy Valley was in progress during the Year. It is planned that
this will be developed into a 21-storey serviced apartment block
with 68 units. Anticipated completion is during 2018. The area
is vibrant, conveniently located near Hong Kong's commercial
districts, and affords easy access to Hong Kong Jockey Club and
Hong Kong Stadium for international sports events, and Hong
Kong Sanatorium & Hospital for medical check-ups, helping to
ensure solid short-term leasing demand.

Existing portfolio

Located in Happy Valley, Emperor (Happy Valley) Hotel is the
Group’s flagship project, with the classic beauty of European
architecture and décor. It is a 26-storey hotel offering 150 guest
rooms, with a gross floor area of approximately 84,000 square feet.
Golden Valley, a restaurant in the hotel offering Cantonese and
Sichuan cuisine, has been awarded a Michelin star for the seventh
consecutive year.

In Yau Ma Tei, Kowloon, Inn Hotel Hong Kong is a 30-storey hotel
offering 200 guest rooms, with a gross floor area of approximately
48,000 square feet. With easy access to established shopping
areas and Ladies’ Market in Mong Kok, as well as Jade Market
in Yau Ma Tei, it is conveniently located in a major entertainment,
shopping and dining district, ensuring guests will truly experience
Hong Kong as a vibrant and fascinating city.

Situated at the vibrant junction of Wanchai and Causeway Bay,
MORI MORI Serviced Apartments provides 18 stylish serviced
apartments for expats, MICE visitors, business travellers and
overseas professionals, on short— and long-term leases. With state-
of-the art facilities and professional customer services, MORI
MORI Serviced Apartments redefines the contemporary way of
life.

Grand Emperor Hotel is another of the Group’s flagship projects,
located on the Peninsula, Macau. With a gross floor area of
approximately 655,000 square feet, it is a 26-storey hotel with 307
exquisite guest rooms, fine dining restaurants and bars, as well
as gaming facilities. It has won an array of prestigious industry
awards.

Inn Hotel Macau is a 17-storey hotel with a gross floor area of
approximately 209,000 square feet, and 287 guest rooms. Inn
Hotel Macau creates a comfortable experience, catering to the
lifestyles of both leisure and business travellers. Through extending
coverage from the Peninsula to Taipa, it enables the Group to fully
capture the potential of Macau’s hospitality market.
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Outlook

The residential market is anticipated to remain positive, given the
solid demand from end-users, with ongoing growth in household
formation and rising personal incomes. The Group continues
to establish a steady development projects pipeline, providing
medium-term contributions through the sale of residential units.
Upon the official launch of residential projects in Siu Lam and
Sham Shui Po, its aggregate sales proceeds are expected to be
reflected in the earnings of financial years 2017/18 and 2018/19.
The luxury residential sites in Siu Lam, Tai Lam, Shouson Hill
and Mosque Street once again demonstrate the Group’s strategic
focus on premium residential projects. Looking ahead, the Group
will actively participate in urban redevelopment and selectively
acquire parcels of land through various channels, to expand
its land reserves in order to strengthen earnings and long-term
interest of its shareholders.

The Group adopts a pro-active approach to establishing an
investment property portfolio that is resilient to unanticipated
crises, by optimising the balance between retail and non-retail
premises. The Group will continue to source quality and upscale
investment properties with good potential in Greater China and in
major cities worldwide, to enhance its investment property portfolio
and continue providing a significant source of recurrent rental
income in the long-run. The Group expects that Emperor Group
Centre in Beijing and Emperor Nam Van Centre, Peninsula,
Macau, will generate significant additional rental income starting
from the financial year of 2017/18. Combined with the new and
quality acquisitions of Ampersand Building in London and retail
spaces in Fairview Height in Mid-level, the Group can secure
stable and recurrent cash flows from the steady growth of rental
income in the long-run.
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Consumer confidence has been bolstered in mainland China,
in tandem with the recent improvement of inbound tourism to
Hong Kong and better job market environment. The Group will
accelerate the development and commencement of new hotel and
serviced apartment projects, to capitalise on the potential rebound
in the tourism market.

Meanwhile, the Group will closely monitor leasing demand for
commercial buildings and retail premises, and continue to identify
the hidden potential of existing property investment portfolios.
Through dedication to property assembly and refurbishment, or
programs to change tenant mixes, the Group can realise long-term
growth in the intrinsic value of the entire portfolio.

Despite the global uncertainties, the Group will continue to
prudently manage its core businesses, to achieve stable growth
and sustain profitability. With its management execution strength
and market insight, the Group will strive to further enhance its
competitive position, and aim to become a key property player in
the Greater China region.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The total cost incurred for staff, including Directors’ emoluments,
was HK$650.1 million during the Year (2016: HK$669.5 million).
The number of staff was 1,750 as at 31 March 2017 (2016: 1,780).
Each employee’'s remuneration was determined in accordance
with the individual's responsibility, competence and skills,
experience and performance, as well as market pay levels. Staff
benefits include medical and life insurance, retirement benefits and
other competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentives or rewards to staff, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme, particulars of which will be set out
in the section headed “Share Options” of the Company’s annual
report.

Assets Pledged

As at 31 March 2017, assets with carrying values of HK$41,129.6
million (2016: HK$36,388.5 million) were pledged as security for
banking facilities.
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Group is committed to the principles of good corporate
governance, and strives to integrate corporate social responsibility
(“CSR”") into its business strategy and management approach.
This report aims to provide the Group's stakeholders with an
overview of the Group’s efforts regarding environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) impacts arising from its daily operations.

A CSR Committee was set up to formulate policies on CSR-
related matters and practices, which are primarily in the areas of
community welfare, environment and employees’ well-being. It
encourages and supports employee engagement in various CSR
initiatives, to ensure the Company’s CSR commitment is properly
fulfilled. It has overall responsibility for implementing, reviewing
and monitoring the Company’s CSR policy.

In addition, the Group is dedicated to cultivating a green, healthy
and safety culture through the concerted efforts of all staff. Aiming
to promote environmental, health and safety (‘EHS”) culture in the
workplace, the EHS Committee, comprising representatives from
the Group, has also been set up and is responsible for fostering
employee EHS participation in the workplace. It also plays a vital
role in the development of EHS policies and programs. A written
EHS policy has been established during the Year. The policy
provides a balanced framework for the EHS measures in order to
achieve the following objectives:

— Ensure compliance with all applicable EHS legislation;

— Reduce quantities of waste and pollutants discharging to the
sea, land and atmosphere;

— Promote EHS awareness among staff through training,
workshops and programs;

— Provide a green, healthy and safe workplace for staff, visitors
and contractors;

— Optimise energy use efficiency; and

— Continuously improve EHS performance.
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Relationships with Major Stakeholders

The Group continues to engage with its employees, customers,
suppliers, investors, shareholders, and other stakeholders through
different channels to develop mutually beneficial relationship and
promote sustainability.

The Group places a strong emphasis on employees’ well-being, as
well as training and development opportunities. For details, please
refer to “Health and safety”, “Work-life balance” and “Development
and training” sections below.

The Group is committed to delivering excellent customer services
and high quality products to its customers. As a result of these
commitments, the Group’s residential projects and hotel operations
have received leading awards. For details, please refer to the
“Product responsibility and customer services” section below.

The Company uses suppliers that reflect its values and
commitment, and maintains solid relationships with them. For
details, please refer to the “Supply chain management” section
below.

The Company maintains ongoing dialogues with its institutional
investors and shareholders. For details, please refer to the section
“Communication with Shareholders” on page 72 of the Corporate
Governance Report.

Environmental Protection
Environmental policies and performance

During the Year, the Group continued making its best endeavours
to protect the environment in its business activities and workplace.
The Group also educates its employees on their awareness of
promoting a green environment. The Group seeks to identify and
manage environmental impacts attributable to its operations, in
order to minimise these impacts if possible. Various measures have
been adopted to reduce energy and other resource use, minimise
waste and increase recycling, and promote environmental
protection in its supply chain and marketplace. These measures
are discussed in the “Use of resources” and “The environment and
natural resources” sections below.

Use of resources

Global warming and climate change are among the major
environmental problems in every part of the world. Several
measures have been implemented in order to mitigate emissions
produced by the Group'’s offices, such as minimising use of chiller
units during night-time, using LED lamps, switching off passenger
lifts after office hours, etc. Also, the Group prefers energy-
saving appliances with energy labels when purchasing essential
equipment for projects, and installs high efficiency LED lighting to
reduce energy use and carbon emissions.
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In the hospitality business, the Group is devoted to providing
a green experience for customers, by promoting efficient use
of resources and adopting green technologies. The Group has
implemented the following environmental initiatives in Grand
Emperor Hotel, and achieved positive results, with obvious
improvements in energy efficiency:

— Reusing waste heat, generated from the heat recovery air-
conditioning system, for the boiler;

— Adopting cooling tower systems to maximise chiller energy
efficiency;

— Minimising use of chiller units during night-time;

— Using energy-saving devices for lifts;

— Switching off passenger lifts after peak hours;

— Using LED lamps;

— Ensuring proper steam leakage and insulation management;

— Shutting off lighting and air-conditioning when a guest room is
not in use;

— Using thermostats with outdoor temperature sensors, to
maintain and control room temperature at a desired energy
efficient level; and

— Using ventilation fan controls in kitchen areas.

To identify energy efficiency opportunities, the Group measures
and records the energy consumption intensity from time to time.

The Group continues to upgrade its lighting and air-conditioning
systems, in order to increase overall operating efficiency. During
the Year, an advanced heat recovery ventilator was adopted in
Grand Emperor Hotel’s air-conditioning system on a trial basis.
The new ventilator better utilises the discharged heat, hence
substantially reducing water heating costs. According to a rough
estimate, more than 50% of liquefied petroleum gas consumption
for the boiler would be saved after the new ventilator was adopted.
The new ventilator became fully operational in March 2017.

Grand Emperor Hotel received the Macao Green Hotel Silver
Award 2013-2016, organised by the Macau Environmental
Protection Bureau and the Macau Government Tourist Office. The
recognition demonstrates the Group’s commitment and continuous
efforts in environmental protection by adopting green initiatives in
the hotel.

The environment and natural resources

Creating a paperless working environment not only reduces
environmental damage but also fits commercial goals, as it can
save physical space, facilitate information sharing via IT networks,
and reduce complicated documentation procedures. In recent
years, the Group has implemented paperless internal human
resources processing — such as employee time sheets, payrolls
and leave application. Moreover, duplex printing and copying
has become the norm within the Group, greatly reducing paper
consumption and saving costs. Data on printing is regularly
collected and assessed, to monitor the efficiency of the paperless
environment.
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Partnering with its printing solutions provider, the Group has
adopted “Follow You” print solution in the headquarters, helping
the Group become more cost efficient through smarter printing.
The print solution enables the Group to achieve environmental
objectives by reducing unclaimed printing, as printing is released
only upon presentation of a staff card from that particular staff who
gives the printing instruction.
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Additionally, the Group has incorporated various environmental
initiatives in its hotel operations to minimise waste generation.
For instance, shower gel bottles are reused after special hygiene
treatment. In Grand Emperor Hotel, paper, aluminium cans, glass,
metal, plastic bottles and surplus food are separated from the
waste, to maximise recycling.

The Company strongly recommends shareholders to access its
corporate communications, including financial reports, through
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, instead
of in printed form. By introducing electronic means of corporate
communications to shareholders, the quantity of printed materials
has been considerably reduced. This paperless practice thus
helps to protect the environment, as well as save costs for
stationery, printing and administrative charges etc. A majority
of individual shareholders access financial reports and other
Company documents via electronic means.
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The environmental protection mascot, Sam, plays an important role
in promoting environmental awareness among the staff. To create
a greener workplace, the staff screensaver displays a set of eco-
friendly tips featuring Sam:

Keep air-conditioned room temperature at 25°C

Shut off lighting when leaving a room for more than an hour
Switch off computers after working hours

Opt for duplex printing

Sam ZF AR

Green construction

Apart from daily office and operational practices, the Group
endeavours to build up a green living environment by pursuing
green building certification for its ongoing projects, and extends its
commitment to environmental protection to other parts of society.

Construction processes are strictly supervised according to the
Building Environmental Assessment Method (“BEAM”) or BEAM
Plus. During the Year, several projects of the Group that were
under construction in Hong Kong followed the BEAM or BEAM
Plus requirements. In mainland China, Emperor Group Centre
in Beijing was certified at gold level under the Leadership in
Energy & Environmental Design (LEED) for Core and Shell (CS)
Development program, demonstrating the Group’s commitment to
delivering a green and clean working environment in commercial
projects, and further strengthening the Group’s leading position in
environmentally friendly property development.
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Workplace Quality
Workforce
The Group believes that a motivated and balanced workforce is

crucial for building a sustainable business model and delivering
long-term returns.

As at 31 March 2017, the permanent employees of the Group
totalled 1,750, working in the headquarters in Hong Kong, regional
offices in Macau and mainland China, as well as in the hotel and
hotel-related operations in Hong Kong and Macau.

The demographics of the Group’s workforce (as at 31 March 2017)
are summarised below:

By Region ith & 7 ffi

Hong Kong &7 24%
Macau B9 68%

Mainland China H B A4, 8%
100%

The Group has a diverse workforce in terms of gender and
age, providing a variety of ideas and levels of competency that
contribute to the Group’s success. The Group is firmly committed
to gender equality, and therefore particularly encourages female
participation in the Board, and at managerial and operational
levels. Women represent approximately 52% of the total employees
in the Group.

The management believes that people are important assets for the
Group, and remains committed to attracting and retaining talent
with diverse backgrounds for achieving sustainable growth. As at
31 March 2017, approximately 34% of the staff had worked for the
Group for five years or more. Staff turnover rate among managerial
positions is relatively low, reflecting a high level of employee
satisfaction and engagement with the Group.
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Age Distribution £ # 5 fff

<25 11%
26-35 36%
36-45 24%
46-55 19%

<56 10%

100%
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During the Year, “Breastfeeding Friendly Workplace” measures
were introduced, supporting the Group’s female staff through
prolonging the duration of breastfeeding for the sake of their
babies’ health. The Group has set up designated private space,
allowing flexible scheduling to support lactation during office
hours.
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Health and safety

The Group values the health and well-being of staff. In order to
provide employees with health coverage, staff are entitled to
benefits including medical and life insurance as well as other
competitive fringe benefits.

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective and
congenial work environment for its staff. Adequate arrangements
and training courses are provided to ensure a healthy and safe
working environment. Health and safety training is provided to
all employees on induction. Office memos and guidelines on
occupational health and safety are issued, and keep all employees
informed. Workshops and seminars on different topics are regularly
held, to present the latest information and raise awareness of
occupational health and safety issues for employees in offices,
hotels and project sites.

All construction work is carried out by construction workers via
outsourced contractors. All contractors engaged by the Group are
obliged to follow the Group’s environmental and safety policies.
They are given a safety briefing to ensure safety measures are
strictly followed. The rate of accidents and injuries during the Year,
as reported by the engaged contractors, remained at low level.

During the Year, the Group arranged first aid courses for its staff,
to enable the provision of prompt and knowledgeable treatment of
injured employees in workplaces and on other occasions.
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The Group proactively identifies potential occupational hazards, to
reduce staff exposure to accidents. Employees assigned to work
on construction sites are required to observe additional safety
guidelines. In hotel operations, all restaurants staff are required to
wear anti-skid shoes and anti-cutting gloves, to prevent injuries.
Every case of injury (if any) is required to be reported to the Group
Human Resources Department and be individually assessed
under the internal guideline procedures. The rate of accidents and
injuries during the Year was below 1%.

Work-life balance

The Group believes that maintaining a work-life balance is
essential for sustainability and a sound body and mind for every
employee. To support employees in maintaining work-life balance,
the Group actively provides a range of activities and initiatives to
enhance the health and well-being of its employees:

Basketball Training Courses April — June 2016

Basketball training courses were designed and organised for
beginners and advanced level players. A wide range of topics,
including fundamental skills, offensive and defensive tactics, as
well as game strategies, were covered in the three-month intensive
training courses.

Ideal BMI — Disease Prevention Project July 2016

The Group cooperated with Hospital Authority to organise a series
of workshops for the “Ideal BMI — Disease Prevention Project”, to
raise staff awareness of weight management. In the workshops,
a registered nutritionist gave some suggestions about weight
management and healthy diets. The staff also enjoyed a lesson on
simple exercises that can help to achieve an ideal body weight.

Pedometer Challenge August 2016

The Group encourages staff to nurture the good habit of “Exercise
for 30 Minutes Every Day” to maintain physical fitness. In August
2016, participants of the “Pedometer Challenge” were outfitted with
a smart fitness wristband, to keep track of their walking steps. By
fulfilling exercise goals, staff were motivated to pursue a healthy
lifestyle.
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Fun Rafting
Tk LEE  RREAIRESR

Be a Running Man

Fun Rafting October 2016

During a leisure day trip, staff and their family members boarded
rafts after attending a briefing by a qualified rafting coach.
Participants immersed themselves in the amazing scenery of the
countryside and cooled off during a hot summer day.

Be a Running Man November 2016 — January 2017

Jogging is one of the easiest and most enjoyable ways to keep
fit and maintain a healthy lifestyle. Coached by Mr. Gi Ka Man, a
Hong Kong half-Marathon record holder, a well-structured 10-week
jogging program helped the participants to improve their jogging
technique, pace, speed and fitness.

Stretching Classes February — March 2017

In cooperation with Hong Kong Stretching Exercise Association,
two classes are organised to educate employees on performing
proper stretches, helping them to reduce the incidences of muscle
strain and sprains.

Green Monday

In the “Green Monday Fruit Day” campaign, an item of fresh fruit
is given to each staff member on the first working day of every
week. “Green Monday Light Lunch” was also launched in February
2017, allowing staff to order a healthy and delicious lunch (such
as sandwiches and salads) at a special price. These measures
helped staff to raise awareness about eco-friendly diets and
maintaining a healthy lifestyle.

Development and training

To promote long-term career development for staff, the Group
strongly supports staff participation in training programs organised
by external professional bodies, and provides funds and subsidies
to staff based on their career development needs. During the
Year, staff enrolled in training programs organised by professional
institutions such as the Hong Kong Institute of Architects, the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors, the Chartered Institute of Building
and the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, to enhance their
professionalism in architecture and surveying.
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In hotel operations, various training courses are regularly
conducted to promote occupational safety, personal and food
hygiene, fire and emergency response, first aid and customer
serving skills. The Group also provides professional training
programs to hotel operations’ frontline staff under the Macao
Occupational Skills Recognition System (“MORS”) certification
scheme, to enhance their occupational proficiency. As at 31
March 2017, 131 frontline staff had obtained MORS certifications
in accordance with their professions: assistant cook, Chinese
cook — Cantonese cuisine, Chinese cook — Cantonese dim sum,
bartender, bell attendant, front desk agent, guest relations officer,
room attendant, security officer, and waiter/waitress of western
restaurant and Chinese restaurant. During the Year, the Group
dedicated around 15,674 hours to staff training, representing
approximately 9 hours per employee.

Operating Practices
Supply chain management

The Group engages more than 100 contractors and suppliers for
property projects in Hong Kong, Macau and mainland China. The
Group places high importance on the quality of its operations and
products. As a responsible developer, the Group sets rules and
policies on the selection of suppliers, contractors and tenderers.
This is to maintain high reputation and levels of customer satisfaction
regarding the Group’s services and products.

The Group believes that the key to sustainable business
development is to be detail-oriented and deliver customer care
from the heart. The Group aims to deliver the highest possible
quality for its customers, while expecting the same quality from
selected suppliers. Thus, the Group has a strict process for
selecting suppliers by tenders. During the tendering procedure,
tenderers are requested to submit their environmental plan, quality
control plan and safety plan as key factors for consideration. In
the outsourcing process, company history, industry reputation and
past job references are taken into consideration before choosing
reliable suppliers. Site visits ensure the selected suppliers meet the
Group’s safety standards and product quality. Visits to production
sites by inspection staff are made regularly, and weekly progress
reports are provided to the quality control team, to ensure high
standards are met. Professional consultants, such as architects
and engineers, are also hired to inspect sites on request, and
provide specific professional advice.

As for hotel operations, the Group works closely with a number
of suppliers in providing a range of hospitality goods, including
guest-room consumables, tableware, furniture and food and
beverage. The selection of suppliers is based on criteria such
as quality, price, delivery timeliness, supplier's capability and
experience, with preference given to suppliers who demonstrate
their environmental commitment.
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Product responsibility and customer services

The Group’s strong commitment to quality is underscored by its
professional team, which spans a wide array of expertise including
project management, leasing services, interior design, etc. Upton,
a signature luxury residential tower developed by the Group, has
been recognised through the following awards that honoured the
Group's efforts in quality construction and renovation work:

“Quality Building — 2015 Building Inspectors Academy
Awards”, Hong Kong Professional Building Inspectors
Academy

— “Elite Luxury Architectural Aesthetics Award — Elite Awards
2015", Ming Pao Weekly

Customer relationships help the Group to better understand its
markets. To improve the Group’s overall operation performance
via monitoring customer satisfaction, questionnaires are used to
collect customer feedback. Occasional courtesy calls and visits
are made to agents, for comments and recommendations.

In hotel operations, the Group's experienced and well-trained
customer servicing team delivers consistently high quality
customer services. Grand Emperor Hotel has achieved
several notable accolades for delivering outstanding hospitality
performance. Major hospitality awards it has received in recent
years are as follows:

Booking.com
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Protection of data

The Group places the utmost importance on protecting the privacy
of its customers, partners and staff in the collection, processing
and use of their personal data. The Group adheres to the
applicable data protection regulations and ensures appropriate
technical measures are in place to protect personal data against
unauthorised use or access. The Group also ensures that
customers’ personal data is securely stored, and processed only
for the purpose for which it has been collected. Relevant staff are
provided with adequate training in compliance with applicable
laws on data privacy protection, to strengthen their awareness and
to protect personal data against loss, unauthorised access, use,
modification or disclosure.

Protection of intellectual property

The Group builds up and protects its intellectual property rights
by prolonged use and registration of domain names and various
trademarks including “Emperor’. The Group has registered
trademarks in various classes in Hong Kong, Macau, mainland
China and other relevant jurisdictions.

It is essential for the Group’s employees to acquire a better
understanding of corruption and related acts. In addressing and
mitigating corruption risks, a set of guidelines was established
to outline acceptable and unacceptable conduct in employees’
daily business activities. It reaffirms that every employee adheres
to applicable legal requirements and makes ethical business
decisions. Employees are given anti-corruption briefings organised
by the Group or seminars organised by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption of Hong Kong. The Group has
also adopted a whistleblowing system and procedures for all levels
and operations under the Group, so staff can raise concerns, in
confidence, about possible improprieties such as misconduct and
malpractice in any matter related to the Group. These policies
and procedures can be found in the employee handbook on the
Company’s intranet.

Additionally, a tendering procedure is adopted for all projects
to prevent corruption, and all tender documents are kept
confidential, restricted to concerned parties. Tender evaluations
are systematically based on the Group'’s internal policies.
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Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’'s Corporate Governance Committee is delegated
by the Board to monitor and review its policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements such
as “The Residential Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance”,
“Employment Ordinance”, “Legal Framework for the Operations of
Casino Games of Fortune” (Law No. 16/2001) and “Macau Labour
Relations Law” (Law No. 7/2008). Updates on the applicable
laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant
employees and relevant operation units from time to time.

The Group holds relevant required licences for provision of
services, such as estate agent licence (for property agency
services), Junket Promoter Licence issued by the Gaming
Inspection and Coordination Bureau, Administrative Licence
issued by Macau Government Tourist Office (for entertainment and
hospitality services in Macau), etc. and the management must
ensure that the conduct of business conforms with the applicable
laws and regulations.

Community Involvement

Embracing the mission “From the Community, To the Community”,
the Group actively promotes diverse community campaigns
spanning elderly welfare, underprivileged communities and
environmental conservation initiatives. The Group’'s management
team also plays an important role in mobilising staff to join all
these activities, which are held in tandem with its commitment to
sustainable development.

Volunteering services

The Group endeavours to support a wide array of volunteering
programs in order to promote social harmony. Major volunteering
initiatives during the Year included:

Visits to Bradbury Home April — December, 2016

In April 2016, volunteers joined hand with Doctor Pet and staged
a fun filled visit to The Salvation Army Bradbury House of Loving
Kindness together with a dozen furry friends. In July, they made
a return visit with their children, who had been trained to put on
a dance show in a special dancing class funded by the Group,
and entertain the residents with their heart melting performance.
In December, staff volunteers took 60 senior citizens people in
wheelchairs to Tai Po Lake Egret Nature Park. They played games,
made handicrafts and had lunch together, spending a peaceful
and joyful afternoon.
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“Let’s Dance” Dragon Boat Festival Celebration at Longevity
Palace May 2016

In partnership with Jade Club, volunteers paid a visit to Longevity
Place in Ho Man Tin, to bring warmth and care to senior citizens.
Both the senior citizens and volunteers engaged in a fun chair-
based dance. They also made and enjoyed Dragon Boat Festival
rice dumplings together, to help share the light of this festival in our
society.

Blood Donation Day July 2016

The Group runs a regular Blood Drive in partnership with the Hong
Kong Red Cross, aiming to support those in needs and spread the
message of saving lives.

Mid-Autumn Festival Celebration at Rhythm Garden Lutheran
Centre for the Elderly September 2016

Volunteers visited Rhythm Garden Lutheran Centre for the Elderly,
to celebrate the Mid-Autumn Festival with over a hundred senior
citizens. With the help of the volunteers, the elderly guests
decorated Chinese lanterns, symbolising seasonal blessings,
during a fun-filled afternoon. Apart from sharing the festive joy, the
Group launched a Lunch for the Elderly program, offering nutritious
lunch sets to elderly people in the centre twice a week during the
six months ended January 2017.

Outbound Volunteering Trip October 2016

Staff of the Group again took part in the annual outbound
volunteering activity organised by Emperor Foundation. They
joined a four-day tour to Hebei Province in mainland China, for
service visits to Albert Yeung Sau Shing Charity Foundation
(Shunping) Elderly Care Centre and Albert Yeung Sau Shing
(Shunping, China) Elderly Service Centre.
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Hike for Hospice February 2017

Tens of staff have taken part in Hike for Hospice, the annual
fundraising event of Society for the Promotion of Hospice Care, for
10 consecutive years, either as helpers or participants.

Lights Up Homes of Elderly November 2016

Staff members formed a volunteer group and paid visits to
homes of senior citizens living alone in Yau Tong, to replace lights
with more energy efficient LED bulbs for free, under a program
launched by the Christian Family Service Centre.
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Charitable sponsorship and donations

The Group mobilises its staff to participate in charity sale events
and fundraising campaigns to help underprivileged people in the
community. Major charity sponsorship and donation campaigns
during the Year included:

Lights Up Homes of Elderly
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Oxfam Rice Sale Campaign

Oxfam Rice Sale Campaign May 2016

Volunteers and their family members participated in the “Oxfam
Rice Sale Campaign” service day. They encouraged members
of the public to donate towards the “Oxfam Rice Packs”, aiming
to raise funds for the China Development Fund, which finances
community-development projects in rural areas of mainland China.

Charity Sale for HKSEDS August 2016

Volunteers spent two days helping a charity sale event in support
of Hong Kong Seeing Eye Dogs Services. With a friendly guide
dog, the event attracted members of the public and raised their
awareness of the importance of guide dogs in the lives of visually
impaired people.

Charity Sale for Hong Kong Seeing Eye Dogs Services
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Mooncake Transfer Campaign September 2016

In the “Mooncake Transfer Campaign”, the Group collected
mooncakes from staff. The mooncakes were then donated to Pok
Oi Hospital Wai Yin Association Youth City, for redistribution to
underprivileged families in Tin Shui Wai.

Toy Libraries for Elderly with Dementia October 2016

Leveraging the release of the award winning film Happiness by the
Group’s affiliate company Emperor Motion Pictures, the Group’s
charity foundation Emperor Foundation sponsored the set-up of toy
libraries in various elderly centres operated by Lutheran Church
Hong Kong Synod, to address the issue of dementia. This was
followed by a “Dementia Day and Elderly Visit" campaign at one
of the centres, Mr. & Mrs. Lawrence Wong (Second) Home For
The Elderly in Tsueng Kwan O, in October - which enabled staff
members to learn more about the disease, learn how toys reduce
the rate of mental decline, and visit the elderly at the same time.
The film's leading male actor, Mr. Carlos Chan, was invited to join
as a special guest.

Dress Causal Day October 2016

The staff dressed casual when they took part in the annual Dress
Casual Day organised by the Community Chest on 6 October
2016.

Qile Cake Charity Sale November 2016

On 5 November 2016, the Group supported the “Qile Cake Charity
Sale”, organised by the Haven of Hope Christian Service. The
funds raised are used for home-care services for the elderly.
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Environmental conservation

The Group is dedicated to promoting environmental awareness
through green education. Major environmental conservation
initiatives during the Year include:

No Air Con Night October 2016

On 7 October 2016, the Group pledged to support “No Air Con
Night 2016", launched by Green Sense. The Group encouraged
staff to switch off air conditioners in their offices and homes for 12
hours, demonstrating the Group’s efforts in reducing greenhouse
gases.

Woodworking Workshop October 2016

In the workshop, participants were coached to make their own
stools using used wood and cloth. This served as a precious
lesson to reinforce the concept of recycling among staff, who gave
waste wood a second lease of life.

Hoi Ha Wan Marine Reserve Snorkelling Tour August 2016

In partnership with WWF Hong Kong, a snorkelling tour to Hoi Ha
Wan Marine Reserve was arranged for the second consecutive
year. The staff enjoyed the amazing marine life and natural corals
under the sea. This delightful tour encouraged participants to
support environmental conservation and sustainable development
by bringing them closer to beautiful nature.
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No Air Con Night

Hoi Ha Wan Marine Reserve Snorkelling Tour
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Closer to Nature Hiking Course
PR - FREIRE BB

Earth Hour
5~ B

Closer to Nature Hiking Course February - March 2017

A three-day hiking course was organised, for participants to learn
practical hiking skills, including selection of appropriate gear and
safety in the countryside. With interpretation from the eco-tour
guide, the visits enabled participants to experience nature while
promoting eco conservation awareness. Upon completion of the
course, the participants received Certificate of Mountaineering
Level 1 from China Hong Kong Mountaineering and Climbing
Union.

Earth Hour March 2017

On 25 March 2017, the Group joined the millions of people around
the globe and turned off its office lights in support of WWF's Earth
Hour, an annual event to raise awareness of climate change.

The Group acknowledges employees’ contributions to the
community. “Community Services Staff Award” was launched to
recognise individuals who had devoted the most volunteer hours
during 2016. The awardees were rewarded with an extra paid day.

During the Year, the Group was named a 10 Years Plus Caring
Company, recognising its ongoing commitment to fulfilling its
corporate social responsibility.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (SEHK: 296) (“Emperor
E Hotel”), the Group’s hospitality and gaming arm in Macau,
also supported and participated a wide range of charitable
programmes and volunteering activities. Details can be found in
the “Community Involvement” section of Emperor E Hotel's ESG
disclosure, in its 2016/17 annual report.
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Non-Executive Director (Chairperson)

LUK SIU MAN, SEMON, aged 61, the Chairperson of the
Company. She joined the Company in June 1999. Ms. Luk is
also the non-executive director and chairperson of Emperor
Entertainment Hotel Limited (Stock Code: 296) (“Emperor E
Hotel”), a subsidiary of the Company. She worked in the banking
industry for almost 10 years. Ms. Luk graduated from The
University of Toronto with a Bachelor's Degree in Commerce.

Executive Director and Managing Directors

WONG CHI FAI, aged 61, the Managing Director of the
Company. Mr. Wong joined the Company in 1991. He has been
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business growth
and development and overseeing the financial management of
the Group. He is also a Chairman of the Executive Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company
as well as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He
is also a director of three listed companies in Hong Kong, namely
Emperor E Hotel, Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (Stock
Code: 887) (“Emperor W&J") and Emperor Culture Group Limited
(Stock Code: 491) (“Emperor Culture”), all being associated
companies of the Company. He was previously a director of New
Media Group Holdings Limited (now known as Evergrande Health
Industry Group Limited) (Stock Code: 708) (“New Media”) until 27
March 2015. Having over 30 years of finance and management
experience, Mr. Wong has diversified experience in different
businesses ranging from manufacturing to property investment
and development, hotel and hospitality, retailing of watch and
jewellery and furniture, financial and securities services, artiste
management, entertainment production and investment, media
and publication as well as cinema development and operation. Mr.
Wong is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA, aged 54, the Managing Director
of the Company. Ms. Fan joined the Company in 1990. She has
been responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business
growth and development as well as overseeing different functions
within the Group. Ms. Fan is also the Chairperson of the Corporate
Governance Committee, a member of the Executive Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company as well as a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Fan is also a director
of Emperor E Hotel, Emperor W&J and Emperor Culture Group.
She was previously a director of New Media until 27 March 2015.
Having over 28 years of corporate management experience, she
possesses diversified experience in different businesses ranging
from property investment and development, hotel and hospitality,
financial and securities services, retailing of watch and jewellery
and furniture, artiste management, entertainment production and
investment, media and publication as well as cinema development
and operation. She is a lawyer by profession in Hong Kong and
a qualified accountant, and holds a Master's Degree in Business
Administration.
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Executive Director

CHEUNG PING KEUNG, aged 61, joined the Company in 2005
and was appointed as Executive Director of the Company in
February 2007. He is a member of the Executive Committee and
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung
is currently responsible for overseeing the Group's property
investment, development and management businesses. During
the period from 1997 to 2005, Mr. Cheung was an executive
director of Henderson Investment Limited (Stock Code: 97). He
has over 40 years of experience in professional general practice
surveying as well as property development and marketing in Hong
Kong, Macau, Mainland China and Canada. He graduated from
University of London with a Bachelor's Degree (Hons) in Arts. He
is a Chartered Valuation Surveyor and a Fellow of both the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors and the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

CHENG KA YU, aged 44, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in August 2012. She is the
Chairperson of the Nomination Committee as well as a member
of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. She has been admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong
since 1998 and is now a Partner of P.C. Woo & Co., Solicitors.
Ms. Cheng graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor’s Degree in Laws in 1995.

WONG TAK MING, GARY, aged 41, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2013. He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a
member of the Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. He now runs a professional
accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has over 20 years of
experience in the field of auditing and accounting. Mr. Wong was
previously an independent non-executive director of Century
Legend (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 79), a listed company
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, until 26 May 2017. Mr.
Wong is a certified public accountant (practising) and a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

CHAN HON PIU, aged 57, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in August 2015. He is the
Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee as well as a member
of the Audit Committee and Corporate Governance Committee
of the Company. Mr. Chan has been admitted as a solicitor in
Hong Kong since 1991 and is now a partner of a law firm in Hong
Kong. He was previously an independent non-executive director
of Emperor W&J until 25 May 2016. Mr. Chan graduated from
The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Social
Sciences. He also obtained the Certificate of Education and a
Master’s Degree in Laws from The University of Hong Kong.
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The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
pages 85 and 86 of this annual report. The dividend paid during
the Year and proposed to be paid for the Year are set out in note
12 to the consolidated financial statements.

An interim dividend of HK$0.045 per share for the Year
(2015/2016: HK$0.045 per share), amounting to approximately
HK$165.5 million (2015/2016: HK$165.5 million), was paid to the
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) during the Year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.058 per share for the Year (2016: HK$0.055 per share),
amounting to approximately HK$213.3 million (2016: HK$202.3
million) to those shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members on 1 September 2017 (Friday) subject to the approval
of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to
be held on 24 August 2017 (Thursday) (2017 AGM”).

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year and an analysis of the
likely future development of the Group’s business are set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 5 to 16 of this
annual report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 55 to 75 of this annual report and notes 36 and 37 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Save as disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements, there is no important event affecting the Company
that had occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this
report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policy and
performance, key relationships with the Group’s key stakeholders
as well as compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have significant impact on the Company are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report from pages 17 to
34 of this annual report.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 210 of the annual
report.

Investment Properties

During the Year, the Group acquired investment properties at
a cost of approximately HK$965,930,000 and incurred costs of
approximately HK$604,593,000 on investment properties under
development.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group revalued all of its investment
properties on an open market value basis. The increase in fair
value amounting to approximately HK$3,228,003,000 has been
credit to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Details of changes in the investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of major properties of the Group as at 31 March 2017
is set out on pages 211 to 220 of this annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
at a cost of approximately HK$33,359,000 and incurred costs
of approximately HK$312,060,000 on hotel properties under
construction.

Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Debentures

Details of the debentures of the Company in the form of unsecured
notes issued during the Year are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out on pages 89 and 90 of this annual report.
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Distributable Reserves of the Company

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the aggregate
of (a) the difference between the consolidated net assets of the
Company’s subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued pursuant to the group re-organisation effective in
December 1991; (b) the surplus arising on reduction of share
capital effective in March 2003; and (c) the subsequent dividends
paid and bonus issues by way of capitalisation of contributed
surplus.

Under the Companies Act in 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed
surplus of the Company is available for distribution to
shareholders. However, a company cannot declare or pay a
dividend or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if there
are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 March 2017 represented the aggregate of contributed
surplus and accumulated profits amounting to HK$4,694,286,000
(2016: HK$4,419,840,000).

Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme adopted in 2013 as set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreement were entered into by the Company during the Year or
subsisted at the end of the Year.

Directors

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon (Chairperson)

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Managing Director)

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Ping Keung

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Cheng Ka Yu

Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary

Mr. Chan Hon Piu
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior managers as at the
date of this report are set out from pages 35 to 36 of this annual
report. Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (“Ms. Vanessa Fan”), Mr.
Cheung Ping Keung and Mr. Chan Hon Piu shall retire by rotation
at the 2017 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2017 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group's business were entered into or existed during
the Year.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the Year and up to the date of this Report, there was in
force the permitted indemnity provisions which are provided for in
the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors and officers liability
insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential liability
and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be brought
against the Directors and the directors of the Group respectively.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Executive Directors were decided by the
Board as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having
regard to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link
to business strategy and a close alignment with the shareholders’
interest and current best practice), the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics. The
INEDs are paid fees in line with market practice. No individual
should determine his or her own remuneration.

Employees remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual's responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration
package includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’
fees, housing allowances, contribution to pension schemes,
discretionary bonus relating to the profit of the Group and
individual performance, ad hoc rewards, share options and other
competitive fringe benefits such as medical and life insurances.
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RAREAHEZLRSREREAB ZBEFIEH
MAFREBEEIH - EFHFMFFHNGES
B %5 R M FE10 ©

RIBA AR 2 ERRARIZE87(1) I M E87(2) 1k - 5&
guEit (Fekt]) RmREEMREREE
BR2017BRBFEAS LWESR ATFEER
KBNS LBEET-

BIEFEEN017TRRBFAD FEEZEFHAR
NEREEAH B AR EAER TR —FNR
RASEHE CEERERIN) ML LEZ KERRES
#y o

EEAEH
RAFERN REREAON WET L HFEH
FAREBEERTA BRI RHNEERITH
EENAH -

BEFRREMRX
REEENRBERRE BB ALERERRAIE
B %5 5] L E H MR R AT AN EEE
ARBA ARADEEREFOREEL 2%
ST TR AL 7] 2 B AMAY A R A 5 1A
EFRERERABRERA-

HEN R
HOTEFZHEHEFSREFHNEESLR—
EEZEHBBOR (AREIR XTSRRI E -
WEIFAERRZ S MRITRERR) - NEH
ZEBEE AR ALTRIRMAT BTG B
FRERHOEBE A MET - BUIFNTES
Z B2 RIART & TISER 2 EE M - I & E
BIALTAEEERNS 2 S

EEFMIRBEABE AR REe KRR
BARTISZH KT METE - HMES 21 (1R
BRME)EAFHES EFHE FFEM R
DT I FUA N AR B 7 B A R 2
BB IEAL 5l 2B PRI R Kb B BT N
ZEINEN (INEEMAFRRR) - EERAEHE
%%%E%MAiZ%Mﬁ%ﬁmﬁéM%ﬁ%
15510 ©
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

EERFETHAERRD HBEROREREI ZEZRKXE

At 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors adopted by the Company (“EIHL Securities Code”) were as follows:
201753 A31H  EERARAB LT ETBRAERARA RHEEEEE (TERBHFLIMEGRD ([FHEASED])
SEXVED) 2 Bty - IR R EEE T HEERNRRREE S K ERDIE352(GEF 2 B MMk 2 Bam AR X
BEARRRAZESFETESFRGNRETR ([REBREFSHTH ) ASTHG AR R R PT2 #wm KAR IR
T

(a) Long position interests in the Company

(a) REDRzFRRER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (the “Shares”)
AR AFREEOTETZEER ([KF])

Number of
issued Shares held Approximate %
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interests FriEg &1 holding
EEHA 51, EmtE BoEE BHAERBES L
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse 2,747,610,489 74.71%
(“Ms. Semon Luk”) BB (Note)
B NEit ([FEmL]) (H1at)
Ms. Vanessa Fan Beneficial Owner 10,500,000 0.29%
BrL ExEEA
Note:
Biat

These Shares were held by Emperor International Group Holdings Limited (“Emperor International Group Holdings”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Albert Yeung Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”). AY Holdings is held by STC International Limited (“STC
International”) in trust of The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust (“AY Trust”), a discretionary trust set up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing,
Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”). By virtue of being the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung as founder of the AY Trust, Ms. Semon Luk had
deemed interests in the same Shares.

ZERMAREEE (AR ZERERAR (REKEHFZERDFEE ERABXKEXERERAF ([BXKEXERIZE2E
BB A A o 45 2R EE 332 A% R STC International Limited ([STC International |)#57% M STC International BBk ([51E 1)
XA 2 2 #E{=5EThe Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust ([AY Trust ] ) Z F5EA c ERFELZ + AB5E L (BAY TrustZ 8132 A) 2 B8
B REEZERO A o
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(b) Long position interests in ordinary shares of associated corporations

(b) REBZEEER 2 FAES

Number of

Name of issued ordinary Approximate %

associated Capacity/ share(s) held holding
Name of Director corporation Nature of interests e &7 BARR
BE=ps HEEEER 2 £:1:3-1 EBEREAE Bk
Ms. Semon, Luk Emperor E Hotel Interest of spouse 824,622,845 63.31%
BEL+ EEREAE [ EE o

Emperor W&J Interest of spouse 3,617,860,000 52.57%

REERIKE [T £

Emperor Culture Interest of spouse 1,097,000,000 34.14%

RENEE AtBiEss
Note:

Emperor E Hotel, Emperor W&J and Emperor Culture are companies with their shares listed on the Stock Exchange. These
respective shares were ultimately owned by the AY Trust whose founder is Dr. Albert Yeung or by the company held by Dr. Albert
Yeung. By virtue of being the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung, Ms. Semon Luk had deemed interests in the same shares.

REREEE RASERRERRERENEENARMRBZM EMZ RG] - SHBRMDIIBAY TrustsiG BTG 2 A RI&EHE

B HBELRAY TustZ BIZ A - ERELZ T REBEL2RE REE/ERZS

et By s o

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
R EXPTRERE SN 201743 A31H BB EEHARFIZEE
HAEARBIEXVED) 2 (EAIAR

Share Options

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme in August
2013 in view of the lapse of its old share option scheme in
September 2013. Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. No share
options were granted under the Share Option Scheme since its
adoption.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Other than as stated above, at the end of the Year and at no time
during the Year was the Company, any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or
their spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

TTBRABRARBSETAREEE (EXRES R
HERORERETREA T AREEIORE -

B P HE
ENARA 2 EBEBRETBIN2013FA KM &
NEIER20135F8 AR —AB AR 8 - BRARE
Prat 8l 2 HITENER A M MRM T34 - B
Pt B ERME - BT R R R IR BB IR AT 81 X
$o

BERMEERE 2L

B EXXATsh » AN R R AN B R AR I A -
ARE BEAEEAR BB RFRE RS
NEBER BT AL B EESEHARAEE
TTBA B E Z BB AT /\ B F XA &8
Wi 8 A R S o] B At )& B B9 Bt S B HE 78 T 28
BRI 2

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

HAth A AR RARRAR D < #am OR 2

As at 31 March 2017, so far as is known to any Director or chief executives of the Company, the persons or corporations
(other than a Director or a chief executive of the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have an interest and
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO (“SFO Register”) or as otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

201753 A31E  SMEREF R AR AT BITBRAESMA BEFHARAEEZTHRAEIN FTIALTIOEERRD
SARRAIRD P A SRR AR B (EE R oSN IRIRB 5 M R A 336G EFE 2 B ([FHEBEERNER
M HESTMERRA 2R FOREINT

Long position in the Shares Rk 3 2 iF &

Number of
Shares interested
in or deemed

to be interested

BRERRIHERAR Approximate %

Name Capacity/Nature of interests BERERZ holding

18 . T4 By, EEME BRHOEE BAERB DL

AY Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation 2,747,610,489 74.71%

B KEFEZER REZESER R 2

STC International Trustee of the AY Trust 2,747,610,489 74.71%
AY Trustz X5 A

Dr. Albert Yeung Founder of the AY Trust 2,747,610,489 74.71%

HiEt AY Trustz 8)37 A

Note:  These Shares were the same shares held by Ms. Semon Luk as those set out under Section (a) of “Directors’s and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Share and Debentures” above.
Mt HEROHEXTEZTRFEITBRABRRD HERG REEEZ#ERAR] 2B @B MEEZTHE ZERRG

All interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31 March 2017, no short positions were recorded in the SFO
Register of the Company.
P Ll /IR - R2017F3A31R RAR R ZES MG RAIE LM BA R k-

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, the Directors or chief executives of the Company were not aware of any
other person or corporation (other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed
or taken to have, any interests or short positions in any Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company.

B EXX PRI EEE SN 20173 A3 E  EF X AR A EETHRA BB TIABEMEMALIOER (EERARFEE
TTHRABRIN) RERIAD SRR D T A SRR AN BIERERCHNIZRES M E GRIIE3B6IREFEZERL
MHBESITRERR B 2 AERIKE
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business
EENBREB R

As at 31 March 2017, the interests of Directors or their respective associates in the businesses which are considered to
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group as required to be disclosed

pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

R20174F3A3IA RIELMRAUBTHREEFT ARSI EEAIHBEANKR /S B AR m gt BAKE XK E R KMHEE

BREFZEHTER 2SN

Name

&

Name of Company

DNRER

Ms. Semon Luk and her associate  Certain subsidiaries of

B2z + N ELBEEE A AY Holdings as owned
by the AY Trust
AY TrustPFi A 2 15X RE %
ZiR 2 A THE A E

Bacchus International
Limited and its subsidiary

Bacchus International
Limited J&z E [} & A 7]

Ms. Vanessa Fan

PR

Wintex Services Limited

BUERE AR QA

Mr. Wong Chi Fai and his associate
EEBAERHEBEA

Nature of interests Competing business

EmME BEER

Family interests Property development/

RIS investment
MEBRRE

Director and
shareholder

BEEMER

Property investment

MEKRE

Substantial shareholder
and Director

TEBRRMESR

Property investment

WERE

No non-competition undertaking was given by the above Directors. The properties held by the Group are mainly
for commercial purpose while those held by the above Directors and/or their associate(s) are mainly for residential

purpose.

LIE I AR B - ARER B RERFARAR

P& o

Confirmation of Independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are
independent.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

MEREER LEBEAFEENTIEEEE

BYIFFATEFB T 2 ER
AREE MBI GBI IEHITE BRI LRI

EIRFEL 2 FEBUMERSE - NRAFRA
BB IFNTESTHRBILAL

BhE - HERBLRARF EHES

RANEER AR REEFMEA RS ERED -
HESE R ER A QR EHES-

BRLRBERE
AAR 2 ERMAREREAPIR AN AR
R PIARE KRR E ARG 2 ELBERR

i} S
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts and Continuing
Connected Transactions

EENRG  LHE D 2 Em Kt

=

SEERS

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company:

RAFERN AEBEBEARFMEAL (EERLMRADETTIRS:

A.
A.

Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license fee received

MEHE-WERKERNEE REE

Name of counterparty

HEER

Companies under Emperor W&J
KEERKEET AR

Beauty Royal Limited
(“Beauty Royal’) (note 1)

EBEERAR ([EE])
(Hiz#1)

Beauty Royal (note 1)
B (frit1)

Beauty Royal (note 1)
EH (1)

Date of agreement
Ik L

(DIMPY)
(R/R/%)

14/11/2014

31/03/2016

12/09/2014
(supplemental
agreements dated
31/08/2015 and
27/05/2016)
(BAHZEEHR
2015F8H31H &
201655A278)

Leased premises

Fr iR

Shops G01-G05, G/F, Emperor Group
Centre, 288 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong (“EGC")
BREHHEFBBREZEEP D ([X
SEEHL]) i TGO1-GOs5 4

The whole of 25/F & Car Parking Space
No. 27, B2/F, EGC
HEREROBERE RIHE _ER27H
SHEBA

Shops 1 & 2, G/F, together with a right

to use (i) External Wall Unit 1 on 1/F; (ii)
External Wall Unit 2 on 6/F - 29/F and Roof;
(iiiy a LED Display on the External Wall on
5/F; (iv) 2 Signboards on External Wall on
1/F - 3fF; (v) 2 Signboards on External Wall
on 5/F; and (vi) Signage Space A on 1/F,
Emperor Watch and Jewellery Centre, 8
Russell Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
ERNELRRECRREEERAE T O
TEIRESRIER  ER()1EIMEEHALI1
5% - ()6 22918 R K &5 & & H25% - (ii)5
BINERBBERRE  (VIESE2EINMERES
1 (v)o2fEIME B SRR R (v B IME R &
Az R

Terms

HH

(DIMPY)
(R/R/%)

17/11/2014-16/11/2017

01/04/2016-31/03/2019

12/09/2014-11/09/2017

Amount for
the Year

FEEZEHR
(HK$'000)
(&)

7,492

3,692

22,147

(rental revised with effect

from 1 October 2015 &
1 June 2016)
(BT E 820155
10418 k20164
6ATREEN)
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A. Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license fee received — continued

A MEHE-WEREHENES BESE &

Name of counterparty

HEER

(4) ?_eauty Royal (note 1)

BH (1)

(5) @eauty Rovyal (note 1)

BE (M)

(6) Beauty Rovyal (note 1)

BE (M)

(7) Eﬁgauty Rovyal (note 1)

BE (1)

(8)  Beauty Royal (note 1)

BH (Hit1)

Date of agreement
Ik

(DIMFY)
(R/R/5)

28/05/2014
(supplemental
agreements dated
31/08/2015 and
27/05/2016)
(MRHEEHR
201558A31A &
201655 278)

29/05/2014

22/10/2014
(supplemental
agreements dated
31/08/2015 and
27/05/2016)
(HrHEEER
2015F8A31H
2016%5A278)

22/10/2014
(supplemental
agreements dated
31/08/2015 and
27/05/2016)
(HrhEEER
2015F8H31H K
2016%5A278)

23/12/2014
(supplemental
agreements dated
31/08/2015 and
27/05/2016)
(BRHZERSR
2015F8A31H &
201655A278)

Leased premises

Fr it

GJF (Shop A including the yard), and Office

A (50 Russell Street)
on 1/F, Tak Fat Building,

Nos. 50-52 Russell Street, Causeway Bay,

Hong Kong

BB IHEEE 1550525
EREREMT (AREEER
TMEAZ (% ZH50%%)

Flat B and the adjacent flat roofs

on 4/F, Tak Fat Building,
Nos. 50-52 Russell Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
B %2 & X 150-625%
BRAEAEBE (EFR)

The whole of 54-56 Russell Street together
with the right to use a LED display on
external wall on 1/F - 5/F and 9 advertising

signboards,

Nos. 54-56 Russell Street, Causeway Bay,

Hong Kong

BB %S E R 542565
ERE1-52IMNELEDE R

off E 5 K2 FE

G/F (Shop B including the yard), Office

B and the Balcony adjacent thereto on 1/
F and Office B and the Balcony adjacent
thereto on 2/F, Tak Fat Building, Nos. 50-52
Russell Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
& /%fﬂi?&/ 2‘&%1%]50 52%1*%*7(? wh (

(‘;ﬁé‘a)

G/F and 1/F, Tenements A & B on 3/F,
Portion A of Tenement A on 4/F and roof,
4-8 Canton Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
together with a right to use four outdoor
advertising signs on the external walls to

the building

EBNERRELSFM T R1E
SEARBER RAMEABII 7 ASH KA
R TIMNEAEEINE S8 2 FRE

Terms

HH

(DIMIY)
(R/R/%)

1/07/2014-30/06/2017
(rental revised with effect
from 1 October 2015 &

1 June 2016)
(T2 B20155F
10A18 %2016
6A1BEEMN)

01/06/2014-31/05/2016

23/10/2014-22/10/2017
(rental revised with effect
from 1 October 2015 &

1 June 2016)
(EBTH2 820155
10718 20164
6ATHEEM)

23/10/2014-22/10/2017
(rental revised with effect
from 1 October 2015
and

1 June 2016)
(KBTS 82015F
10818 %2016
6ATHEED)

04/01/2015-03/01/2018
(rental revised with effect
from 1 October 2015 &

1 June 2016)
(BB 2 B20155
10A 18 %2016
6R1REEM)

Amount for
the Year

rEEvEHE
(HK$'000)
(F#r)

13,621

37,498

13,994

37,478

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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A. Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license fee received — continued

A MEHE-WEREHENES BESE &

Name of counterparty

HEER

(9a) Beauty Royal (note 1)
BE (Hrit1)

(9b) Beauty Royal (note 1)
BE (Mit1)

(10) Beauty Royal (note 1)
BE (Mit1)

(11)  EWJ Watch and Jewellery
(Macau) Limited (“EWJ
Macau”) (note 1)

REEFRE (BF)BERAR

([EWSBF]) (Hatt)

(12) EWJ Macau (note 1)
EWJEP (#zt1)

(13)  EWJ Macau (note 1)
EWJRFS (#zt1)

(14) EWJ Macau (note 1)
EWJEP (Hzt1)

Date of agreement
Ik L

(DIMFY)
(R/R/%)

29/04/2016

28/12/2016

28/02/2014
(supplemental
agreement dated
27/05/2016)
(HrhEBER
2016%5A278)

30/06/2014

30/06/2014

31/03/2015
(supplemental
agreement dated
31/03/2016)
(MABZEEHR
20165°3A31H)

31/03/2016

Leased premises

Fr it

Projected signage of 4-8 Canton Road,

Kowloon, Hong Kong

BENRRBR B8 2 TEER

Projected signage of 4-8 Canton Road,

Kowloon, Hong Kong

BRENBRER BT 2 TR

Shops A, D2 & E2 on G/F and the

projected signage on external wall, Harilela
Mansion, 81 Nathan Road, Hong Kong
BAERAES 1R E A T A D2RE2SR

WRIME IR SR

EM Macau, Avenida Do Infante D.,

Henrigue NoS 67-69, Res-Do-Chao B & EM
Macau, Rua Do Dr., Pedro Jose Lobo No5,

Res-Do-Chao C2, Macau

B2 T A S E67269% 1 TBE R ER

B ToR L EAEC2E

EM Macau, Avenida Do Infante D.,

Henrique No 65-A, lo Andar B, Macau

RFIBR 2 F KIS R65-A%% 112 B

Shop Nos. 1-4, G/F, EM Macau, Travessa
Central Da Praia Grande NoS 11-41, Hotel
Animacao Imperial (also known as Shop
Nos. 1 -4 on G/F., Grand Emperor Hotel,
251-292D Avenida Comercial De Macau,

Macau)
R E R A 114157 K 2 1R %
B 1454 (MR E

REF51- 20257 DI 2 IR 4R 5 3 T1E

458)

Shop No. 2A & 2B, G/F., EM Macau,
Travessa Central Da Praia Grande Nos.
11-41, Hotel Animacao Imperial (also
known as Shop No. 2A & 2B on G/F,
Grand Emperor Hotel, 251-292D Avenida

Commerpial De Macau, Macau)
BPIEERE1-NRREIRE

Bt T2ARBS & (RENRPIERAS
$5251-202% DR 2IRAEB E ity T2AR 283

Terms

H

(DIMIY)
(B/R/%)

May, August, October
and December 2016
201658 8A 10A &
12H

January, February and
May 2017
201741 R 2A k6 A

01/04/2014-31/03/2017
(rental revised with effect
from 1 June 2016)
(BIEETHE H20165F
6A1ARAER)

01/07/2014-30/06/2017

01/07/2014-30/06/2017

01/04/2015-31/03/2019
(rental revised with effect
from 1 April 2016)
(i3IS 520166
4A1BREMR)

01/04/2016-31/03/2019

Amount for
the Year
REEZEE
(HK$000)
(FEr)

1,660

620

12,500

5,667

102

3,229

912
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A. Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license fee received — continued

A MEHE-WEREHENES BESE &

Amount for
Name of counterparty Date of agreement  Leased premises Terms the Year
HEEE ek PR B AEEZEHE
(DIMFY) (DIMFY) (HK$000)
(B/R/%) (R/R/%) (F&71)
Companies under Emperor Capital Group Limited (“Emperor Capital Group”)
HERFZREERAR ([KERHKEET AR
(15)  Profit Broad Development 31/03/2016 Units 603 & 604, 6/F, EGC 01/04/2016-31/03/2018 1,146
Limited (“Profit Broad”) B2 EE P GIEC03R604E
(note 2)
RHRRERAR (185])
(Hit2)
(16)  Profit Broad (note 2) 31/03/2016 Unit 606, 6/F, EGC 01/04/2016-31/03/2018 562
24 (2 REKETL6E606E
(17)  Profit Broad (note 2) 31/03/2014 24JF EGC 01/04/2014-31/03/2017 3,593
R (Hit2) REKEDL2A4E
Other companies under the AY Trust
AY Trusti T HA A &
(18)  Emperor Entertainment 31/03/2016 27[F, EGC 01/04/2016-31/03/2019 3916
(Hong Kong) Limited (note 3) REEEFPL7E
HERE (FER)ERDA (M
3)
(19)  Emperor Motion Picture (Hong 31/03/2014 Portion of 12/F, The Ulferts Centre, No. 4 01/04/2014-31/03/2017 252
Kong) Limited (“EMP(HK)") Kin Fat Lane, Tuen Mun, New Territories,
(note 3) Hong Kong
REBY (BE)BRAA BB RLIRE RARRIL
([REEFEE]) (H:3) BRI
(20) EMP(HK) (note 3) 28/05/2015 20/F, EGC 01/06/2015-31/05/2018 3,692
HEEYEB (M:3) REEETL208
(21)  Emperor Motion Picture 02/12/2015 Partial floor of each of B1, B2M, B2, Beijing 10 years commencing N/A
Enterprise Limited (note 3) Emperor Group Centre, Jianguomen Outer ~ from the delivery date TER
(assigned to Emperor Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing, People’s  (on or before 1 July
Cinemas (Beijing) Company Republic of China 2017)
Limited (note 3) on 30/6/2016) (the “PRC") BRITAH (20174
REBYLERRAA i AREME ([HE]) 7TR1BZ A1) 105
(120166 A30F E—;;i%:f’ RS EEBIP IS Remark: the agreement
HEEYW (ER)ERD I REEEERLERT B2V was terminated on 30
(Ht3) ) BB X EZ E1H March 2017
PiFsE - 201743 A
0HB&LE
(22) Emperor Agency Limited 31/03/2015 Unit 601, 6/F, EGC 01/04/2015-31/03/2017 795
(“Emperor Agency”) (note 3) HEEEFTL6E01E
HERBERAR ([RER
2])
(H:23)
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Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license fee received - continued

MERE-WRKEHENEES REE &

Name of counterparty

HEER

Emperor Agency (note 3)
HERE (H23)

Emperor Agency (note 3)
RERIE (H:23)

Emperor Agency (note 3)
HERIB (H523)

Emperor Agency (note 3)
HERE (Hi23)

Date of agreement
Ik L

(DIMFY)
(R/R/%)

31/03/2016

31/03/2015

31/03/2016

31/05/2016

(27)  Wealthy House Limited (“Wealthy ~31/03/2015

(28)

House”) (note 3)
EEERAR ([EE])
(H1723)

Wealthy House (note 3)
BR (Hz3)

Ulferts of Sweden (Far East)
Limited (note 3)

AL (BR)BRARA
(Hi#3)

31/03/2015

31/03/2016

Leased premises

Fr it

Unit 801, 8/F, EGC
HEEEFLSEE

Unit 1701-1707, 17/F EGC
REEFHNTEI1701-1707E

23/F and Unit A, 28/F, EGC
HEEED )23 RBEAR

Shops 2-6 on G/F, 1F and canopy adjacent
thereto, 2/F, reserved flat roof portion, first
and second advertising walls, together
with the right to use the LED display on
the external walls from 1/F-3/F, East Ocean
Court, 525 Shanghai Street, Mongkok,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

BENER A LBE55HREHM T2-6
SRR 1BRANCER 28 REZT
ait E-RE_BESHE EREZRS
BIMEMR BB R R AE

Shops 7-11 on G/F, 1/F & 2/F (including the
entrance hall on G/F to 1/F and 2/F), Wei
King Building, 275 Chatham Road North,
Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BENEAWARELRH BT
TSR 1R EREEE (BENTE
1Rz KEAD)

M/F, 1-9/F and parking spaces (excluding
Nos. 9 and 10) on G/F, The Ulferts Centre,
4 Kin Fat Lane, Tuen Mun, New Territories,
Hong Kong

BEMAEMRERAREI L AR OEE
2E 1-0E2ERM TSN (FRIEE9
S R 10% )R8 (L)

Units 1206-1207, 12/F, EGC
HEEEB12181206-1207F

Terms

HE

(DIMFY)

(B/R/%)
01/04/2016-31/03/2018
01/04/2015-31/03/2017

01/04/2016-31/03/2018

01/06/2016-31/05/2019

01/04/2015-31/03/2018

01/04/2015-31/03/2018

01/04/2016-31/03/2018

Amount for
the Year
rEEvEHE
(HK$000)
(F#r)

920

3,636

5812

3,360

4,356

9,685

1,165
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B. Master Purchase Agreement

Date:
4 July 2014

Parties:
(1) the Company

(2) AY Holdings (note 4)

Nature:

AY Holdings agreed to procure its subsidiaries and associates
to provide products and services to the Group in relation
to the Group’s future development projects, which includes
hotels, residential and commercial developments.

Term:
4 July 2014 to 31 March 2017

Amount purcashed for the Year:
HK$1,231,000

Notes:
As at the respective date of the relevant agreement:

(1) These companies were indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Emperor W&J which was indirectly controlled by the AY Trust.

(2) This company was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor Capital
Group which was indirectly controlled by the AY Trust.

(3) These companies were indirectly controlled by the AY Trust.

(4) AY Holdings was indirectly wholly-owned by the AY Trust.

Ms. Semon Luk, a Director of the Company, has deemed
interests in the above transactions, by virtue of being an
associate of the eligible beneficiaries of the AY Trust.

HEBEWHSR

HA:
20147 R4H

AR
(1) AR

(2) 15 PREFEVERR (HiE4)

ME .
BERERERRE AKERK 2 EREK
HE (BB FTENEXRERER ) RE
HIfB AR K2R RRARERHTER K
R -

FH:
20147 A48 201743 A31H

FELLRIBHEEE
1,231,000 7T

g
NSl ST - =RER

AAREERKE HAEZENER
W2 ESRIRE MAY Trust 26l -

(1) %

Ell

(2) ZAFRREBFEEZZEMBAR ME
EBFEEBAY Trustfd iz o

(8) ZERFTIAEAY Trust i Hl -

(4) GEREFEZERIIBAY Trust@Z2EH#HE °

KRR EZELZTAEBAY Trusth BB
HAZBBAMBE AR LU SR RE

o
&
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C. Accommodation Contract with Group Consultant

Date:
31 March 2014

Parties:
(1) Emperor Investment (Management) Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

(2) Dr. Albert Yeung who is deemed to be a substantial
shareholder of the Company

Nature:

The Group would continue to provide Dr. Albert Yeung and
his associates (including Ms. Semon Luk, Chairperson of
the Company, being the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung who
has not been receiving any emolument from the Group for
his consultancy services rendered since 1 April 2002), a
quarter located at No.2 Belleview Drive, Hong Kong for
accommodation (including related expenses in relation to the
usage of the property) as his emolument for his consultancy
services to the Group. The consultancy services provided
by Dr. Albert Yeung benefit the Group in overall strategic
planning and business development of the Company as well
as in business liaisons. Being one of the senior executives of
the Group, Dr. Albert Yeung is also entitled to enjoy the fringe
benefits offered by the Group, including the non-exclusive use
of motor vehicles, yachts, club debentures and membership
owned by the Group.

Term:
1 April 2014 to 31 March 2017

Amount for the Year:

The market rental value as calculated by an independent firm
of professional valuers and related expense of the quarter up
to 31 March 2017 was approximately HK$10,261,000.

C. HEBEBEBITYZEMREN

HA -
2014F3H31H

AT
(1) ARARZ—M2EH B 2R = Emperor
Investment (Management) Limited

(2) HBIBL (WEIEARR 2 EEZRR)

ME:

NEBBEERB200254 1B ARNER
TR EE B RSB AR URER T R 5 B 2 4518 £
MEBBA (BEARRZER GEL2
BBk 24 ) IR U RN B BB B2 2 (T
(BEEMERZYEZRBER) EAE
MASEEREBEERSE ZFHM - SELRTiE
7 BRI RIGE N AN EE 2 BB REE R E
RARZEBERRERHEE R E
EAEBEZERITRAR HELTEREE
ZAEEREZEIMET BEIIEBREH
AEEHEZRE I SMESFLEHE-

5
2014F4 18 £2017F3A31H

KEELEE:
HZE201743A310 - A — B L EE G ERD
TRz misHERZES Z2ABRZOA
10,261,0007% 7T ©
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D. Service agreement in relation to the operation of the

Grand Emperor Hotel

Date:
19 February 2010

Parties:

(1) Tin Hou Limited (“Tin Hou”), a company incorporated in
Macau, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor
E Hotel which is an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company; and

(2) Sociedade de Jogos de Macau, S.A., (“SIM"), a
company incorporated in Macau, which is principally
engaged in gaming business in Macau and is one of
the six concessionaires/sub-concessionaries licensed to
carry on casino operations in Macau. SUM has 19.99%
equity interest in Luck United Holdings Limited (“Luck
United”), an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of
Emperor E Hotel, and is a connected person within
the meaning of the Listing Rules by virtue of being a
substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company.

Nature:

The provision of services comprising management services
and promotion services by Tin Hou to SJM in relation to
the operation of the Grand Emperor Hotel whereas Tin
Hou together with the nominated junket promoter (a fellow
subsidiary of Tin Hou and wholly-owned by Emperor E Hotel)
shall be entitled to a share of the gross win and gross loss in
respect of the monthly operating performance of the gaming
area of the GEH and bear all necessary operational expenses
in relation to the operation of the gaming area.

Term:

From 1 October 2009 to termination upon occurrence of
certain events, including the expiration of SUM’'s gambling
license under the Gaming Concession Contract on 31 March
2020 or any earlier termination thereof or winding up or
cessation of business of either party.

Amount for the Year:
During the Year, the Group’s net receipt under the agreement
amount to HK$1,194,488,000.

D. ARARERERREE

JE 2 BR % 1

HA:
2010F2H19H

HHE

(1) XRERAF ([RF)) - —HHORFE
ARL2 A7 KEAT2MERER
B A P 2 AR 2 PR 2 R
AR R

2) @F‘ﬁﬁ fo ﬁﬁiﬁﬂ(f F'EJTﬁ J)
Fﬁ’iﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ%fx #I/T%TEA@F'%%
**ﬁb&%iﬁﬁ CEB BB E N
SR ERE . — RPIEY SR
Luck United Holdings Limited ([Luck
United ]) 19. 99%2szM%E¥ *Luck
United7m 38 SRR E 2 M IER B MY
BRa BBARAG—MBARIZEE
IR R RR ET AR AL R B &
Ao

ME:

1ERRRPIE IR B R 2 RGBS L2
RS (RREERERBREERE) 2HE
REERIEEZELPNARE (RRFZ
RIRMEBAR HRSREBE2EEF) K
BERESRSREBEBYRE AL 'i%iﬁ
2B W a MEBR R WAAES
BBz —VIMELEMX -

FH:

H2009F10A1HRBER FTEMHBEEEK
b BERMBERBEEEEANETNZ
B RER2020F3A31H @ mek %8 %

FERFREIRATAR I ST — BB R %
jﬂ%o

KEETHE:
RAFE AEERBHEE 2 FWRED
1,194,488,000/8 7T
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Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Save as “Rental income from related companies” in the amount
of HK$203,521,000 for the Year as shown in note 45(a) and the
transactions as shown in note 45(c) and (d) to the consolidated
financial statements which constituted connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, all other
transactions as shown in note 45 are connected transactions
exempted from announcement, reporting, annual review and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
in respect of the above connected transactions.

Auditor’s Letter on Disclosed Continuing Connected
Transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” (the “Auditor’'s Letter”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group (“Disclosed CCTs") on pages
45 to 52 of this annual report in accordance with Main Board rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditor’s Letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) have reviewed the
Disclosed CCTs and the Auditor’'s Letter and have confirmed that
these transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of its business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be);
and

(3) according to the agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as
a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement
or contract which is significant to which the Company, or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the
Year.

BFHERTE

Bir A B S ImMAR M 45 EAFEE [MEED
B E Z 4] (A%203,521,000% 7T) & M5
45(c) R (A)FTE R BARIE _E T AR RSB 14AZE A A
NEIEZZIN B4 E 2 TEEMR 5 Th
BIEETRBIF1AAZTERCETAE EBRF
EEMEBEMEREZBERS - ARAFEHR
FBAER FET EMARAE AT Z HEERK -

FHACHEBERERERS 2R B R4

ARRIZBEN D EL EIRREBSEI A G R
Z (EBERERERIGERIB000) # [ LB 5
ERBTAERAIINERER | W2R (B
FEA) E7405% [BANEE (EMRA) PridtFsE
FRER H BB ] ([AZBE K] ) - (R
AEBZHERERS-

BN BRI MR AR Bl SE14A 56153 &R
BERKME A ERAFRBISZEFEEFH
AEBERBEZHFERER S ([ERBERFBEWES
51) 2 BB Rk o AR R E MR PTIR HAAE
Ei K 4 &I A

BYFHTESZER

RIE_EM AR RIE14A L5016  NARPE L IFNITE
= (MEETESR ) CRMORBRERER
S RAZEEN R WHERZERXHTIRAEE:

(1) AAEEAEEBHTY
(2) BB RIS AT IR CRBERTRE) T

SRR Z RFETT A

@) DEBREER
SEREAT ARG ABRERL ERF-

{8

B E X BEE I MANFE R AFE AT
B BEFEARFREEMZERIF HBLQ
AR RMBRRAIT NI MEFTNEPERESX
FEEREAERIEARS RHEMAH-

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017

2016/2017 £k

53



54

DIRECTORS’
R g

REPORT

Charitable Donations

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations amounting
to approximately HK$4,708,000.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers represented 46% of the Group’s
total revenue. The largest customer accounted for 34% to the
Group’s total revenue.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases and
services received attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented 22% of the Group's total purchases and services
received. The largest supplier accounted for 8% to the Group'’s
total purchases and services received.

At no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of a Director
or a Shareholder which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owning
more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital, had a
beneficial interest in the share capital of any of the above major
customers or suppliers of the Group.

Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 55 to 75 of this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report, there was sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the 2017 AGM to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Luk Siu Man, Semon
Chairperson

Hong Kong
21 June 2017

/L/\ =3 ?ﬁﬁ/\
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the Company within a sensible
framework. The Company has fully complied with all the provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the Year.

The Board
Board Composition

As at 31 March 2017, the Board comprised seven Directors, with
one Non-executive Director who is also the Chairperson of the
Board, three Executive Directors and three INEDs. The Board
considers that this composition ensures a strong independent
element with a balance of power and influence between
individuals on the Board. The biographies of the Directors are set
out on pages 35 to 36 of this annual report under the“Biographies
of Directors and Senior Managers” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executives

Ms. Semon Luk has been appointed as the Chairperson since
1999 and provides leadership for the Board. With the support of
the company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”),
she ensures that all directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information and are properly briefed on issues arising at board
meeting. She is responsible for ensuring that the Board works
effectively and performs its responsibilities. She holds meetings
with the INEDs at least once a year.

Both Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Vanessa Fan have been appointed
as Managing Directors of the Company, and are responsible for
the Group's strategic planning, business growth and development.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The INEDs are all professionals with valuable experience and
expertise in legal, accounting or auditing in business areas who
contribute impartial view and make independent judgment on
issues to be discussed at Board meetings. Each of them has
been appointed for an initial term of one year and shall continue
thereafter on a yearly basis subject to early termination with written
notice being served by either party. The terms of the INEDs are
also subject to retirement by rotation and re-election provision
under the Bye-Laws of the Company.

The Company has received a confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs. The Board considers each of them to be
independent by reference to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The INEDs have been expressly identified
as such in all corporate communications of the Company that
disclose the names of Directors.

EZQRNRERBEZERALRBARF 2D
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Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership, control and promotion
of the success of the Group by directing and supervising its
affairs in the best interests of the Company and by formulating
strategic directions and monitoring the financial and management
performance of the Group.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (which comprises all the Executive Directors of the
Board) and has delegated powers and authorities to carry out the
day-to-day management and operation of the Group, formulate
business policies and make decision on key business issues. The
Executive Committee shall have all power and authorities of the
Board except the following matters as set out in a formal schedule
of matters specifically reserved by the Board:

e Publication of final and interim results of the Company
e Dividend distribution or other distribution

e Major issues of treasury policy, accounting policy and
remuneration policy

e Major changes to group corporate structure or Board
composition requiring notification by announcements

e  Publication of the announcements for notifiable transactions
and non-exempted connected transactions/continuing

connected transactions

e Non-exempted connected transactions/continuing connected
transactions

¢ Notifiable transaction requiring Shareholders’ approval

e (Capital restructuring and issue of new securities of the
Company

e  Financial assistance to Directors

EEE Y ACRER

EERAEUAAAZ RENRAERETRES
AREE > F5 - 5B R T R R A EE
ZHBREREE HHESE B R(EEAEE
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RETEERE
EEERARRZHTRRS (HESS 228
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ETTARE 2 BREIEREE  BIE RHBBOR M
REBEBERIFLRE WTREQHEESES
BTN R IEHE - DB B BERT Bl R E
EERAIRE 2 TFIEERIN:
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Induction, Support and Professional Development of
Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors, duty
of disclosure of interest and business of the Group and such
induction materials will also be provided to newly appointed
Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors. All Directors
have been updated on the latest developments regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices. There is a procedure agreed by
the Board to enable Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses in order to assist them to perform their
duties to the Company.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. During the
Year, each Director has participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/workshops/reading materials
on the following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training to the Company:

Name of Directors EEHE
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon lZ =R
Mr. Wong Chi Fai mEEELYE

+4

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa SRR+

Mr. Cheung Ping Keung SR W58 %
Ms. Cheng Ka Yu Mt
Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary =HBRL A
Mr. Chan Hon Piu BROEF LA

Notes: (a) corporate governance
(b) regulatory
(c) finance
(d)

industry— specific

Relationship between the Board Members

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relations)
among each other.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

ESCRE XBEREXRR

FIEESHCRRHBEBETES 2 BERER:
HRARESR ZAEREDI RG] SR T TR
REE R 2 BRI ER MR ITESEZRT
BEZ% TEREHAREREZSERTENE
Be 2BESE R EMARAREMERAEE SR
BTERESEINER  EMERED] - BR R
FEHRITPEE AR EH ESEEETIE
Fr FERA RSB TEEEERES AL
BEERUBBREARNRRETRE BREAAN
NAEEE -

EE®R NFCETEXEATANERESSE
Iz TRNRXEALLK NAFE BEFHES
HSEEEER BALEABAAT TR ZEX®E
SHREBEG,BIEME LR RENRS 2 ME&
R W B MAR R FIE A8 :

Topics on training covered (Notes)

PR &z 359 £ 78 (fat)

(a) &(b)

(a), (b) & (c)

(a), (b) &(c)

(a), (b) & (d)

(a) & (b)

(a), (b) & (c)

(a) &(b)

st : (a) TEER
(o) #HE
(c) B
(d) 1748784
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Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment EECHERAKEBEARA

The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Year is set ANFEEFEHESH 2B RETT
out below:

No. of meetings attended/held

HESE ETEERY
Corporate
Governance
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Committee  Executive General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee =~ £¥%J4  Committee  Meeting
Exng g ERZEE ¥FMEEE REZEE £EE  UTZEE REKE
Non-executive Director
*HTES
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon 11/11 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1
EHUN=F e TEA TER TEA TER TER
Executive Directors
HTES
Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Note 1) 11711 N/A 1 N/A N/A 16/16 il
BEBRE (1) TEA TEA TER
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Note 2) 111 N/A N/A 11 11 16/16 11
SeRER L (Hiz2) NEA i
Mr. Cheung Ping Keung 111 N/A N/A N/A N/A 16/16 11
RIRELE TEA TER TERA TER
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHTES
Ms. Cheng Ka Yu (Note 3) 111 33 11 11 N/A N/A 1
BEmz L (Hi3) i TERA
Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary (Note 4) 11711 33 N/A il 1 N/A il
HERLE (Mi#4) i TER
Mr. Chan Hon Piu (nofe ) 11711 33 1 N/A N/A N/A il
BB E (Hi25) TER i TERA
Total number of meetings held 11 3 1 1 1 16 1
BOGR B
Notes: B &t
1. Chairman of Executive Committee 1. WTZESXFE
2. Chairperson of Corporate Governance Committee 2. EEBRZEEER
3. Chairperson of Nomination Committee 3. RRRTEEXFE
4. Chairman of Audit Committee 4, BREBGIRE
5. Chairman of Remuneration Committee 5 FEZEBEXRE

Upon reviewing (1) the annual confirmation on time commitment & (1)%%%FJEE&)\%F&%&ZEE@%i 2
given by each Director; (2) the directorships and major &EEFEFZEEHRGELETETS: MRBGEEN
commitments of each Director; and (3) the attendance rate of & Q’iﬁf?E%&éz%%?%@@%Zﬁf?&
each Director on full Board and the respective Board committee ZZERA RAFERN 2REFZFHENHEH
meetings, the Board is satisfied that all Directors have spent BEEITREHE
sufficient time in performing their responsibilities during the Year.

)

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 & E(BFR)ER A &



Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
interval. The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary and key officers of the company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures, all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the meeting in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was sent to the
Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board meeting.
Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are generally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before
each regular Board meeting and Board Committee meeting to
enable the Directors to make informed decision.

Draft and final versions of the minutes of Board meetings and
Board committee meetings, drafted in sufficient details by the
secretary of the meetings, were circulated to the Directors for their
comment and record respectively. Originals of such minutes, being
kept by the Company Secretary, are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
Director will abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution in
which he/she or any of his/her associates have a material interest
and he/she shall not be counted in the quorum present at the
Board meeting.

Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate effective
management, certain functions of the Board have been delegated
by the Board to the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and
Executive Committee.

The majority of the members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are INEDs.
Clear written terms of reference of all the Board Committees are
given to the respective members of these Committees. Details of
the Board Committees are set out below:
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Audit Committee (set up on 23 September 2004)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr.
Wong Tak Ming, Gary (Chairman of the Committee), Ms.
Cheng Ka Yu and Mr. Chan Hon Piu.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for (1)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor; (2)
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditor; and (3) reviewing financial information and
overseeing the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control procedures. The Audit Committee held
three meetings during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out below:

i. reviewed with the management/finance-in-charge and/
or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit process
and the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of the annual
financial statements for the financial year ended 31
March 2016 (“Previous Year”) and the interim financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September
2016;

i. reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group during the Previous Year;

ii. annual review of the non-exempted continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Previous
Year;

iv. approved the audit plan for the financial year ended 31
March 2017, reviewed the independence of the external
auditor and approved the engagement of external
auditor; and

v. recommended the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor at the 2016 AGM.
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Remuneration Committee (set up on 19 July 2005)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Chan Hon Piu (Chairman of the Committee) and
Ms. Cheng Ka Yu, both being INEDs, and Mr. Wong Chi Fai,
being the Managing Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The Remuneration Committee is primarily
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on
(1) Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of
Directors and senior management; (2) the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors; and (3) the specific remuneration
packages for individual Executive Directors and senior
management. Details of the remuneration of each of the
Directors for the Year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Remuneration Committee held one
meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed and recommended the Board on approval of
the Directors’ fee; and

i. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management
and recommended the Board to approve their specific
packages.

Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Cheng Ka Yu (Chairperson of the Committee)
and Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary, both being INEDs, and Ms.
Vanessa Fan, being the Managing Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are (1) reviewing the structure, size and diversity
of the Board; (2) reviewing the Board Diversity Policy; (3)
determining the policy for the nomination of Directors and
identifying suitable candidates for directorship; (4) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors; (5) assessing the independence
of INEDs; and (6) reviewing the time commitment of each
Director. The Nomination Committee held one meeting during
the Year.
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A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board;
i. reviewed the independence of INEDs;

iii. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on their time
commitment in performing their duties as Directors; and

iv. recommended to the Board on the nomination of Ms.
Semon Luk, Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Cheng Ka Yu to
stand for re-election as Directors at the 2016 AGM.

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims
to achieve diversity on Board in the broadest sense in
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the business nature of the
Company. Selection of candidates on the Board is based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including gender, age,
length of service, professional qualification and experience.
The Nomination Committee will also assess the merits and
contribution of any Director proposed for re-election or any
candidate nominated to be appointed as Director and against
the objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board that would complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 28 March
2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of five
members, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of the
Committee), being the Managing Director, Mr. Wong Tak
Ming, Gary and Mr. Chan Hon Piu, both being INEDs,
a representative of company secretarial function and a
representative of finance and accounts function. The specific
written terms of reference of the Corporate Governance
Committee is available on the Company’s website. The
primary duties of the Corporate Governance Committee
are (1) reviewing the policies and practices on corporate
governance and compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements of the Group; (2) reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management; (3) reviewing the code of conduct
applicable to Directors and relevant employees of the Group
on dealings with the Company’s securities; and (4) reviewing
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in this report. The Corporate Governance Committee held one
meeting during the Year.
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A summary of the work performed by the Corporate
Governance Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the Corporate Governance Policy and made
recommendation to the Board;

ii. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report;

ii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; and

v. reviewed the code of conduct applicable to Directors
and relevant employees of the Group.

5. Executive Committee (set up on 22 October 2014)

The Executive Committee consists of three members, namely
Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Chairman of the Committee), Ms. Vanessa
Fan and Mr. Cheung Ping Keung, all being the Executive
Directors. The primary duties of the Executive Committee
are (1) formulating business policies and making decision
on matters relating to the management and operations of
the Group; (2) having all power and authorities of the Board
except those matters specifically reserved for the full Board as
set out in the “Formal Schedule on matters reserved for and
delegated by the Board” adopted by the Board from time to
time.

Securities Transaction of Directors

The Company has adopted EIHL Securities Code on terms no less
exacting than the required standards set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions of Directors of Listed Issuers (the“Model
Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry to all Directors, all of them confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard of dealings in the Model Code
and EIHL Securities Code throughout the Year.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
management has provided such explanation and information to
the Board to enable it to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other Board decisions. The Directors believed that
they have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgment and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable and ensured the consolidated financial statements are
prepared on a “going concern” basis. The auditor of the Company
has made a statement about their reporting responsibilities in the
Independent Auditor's Report. The management has provided
all members of the Board with monthly updates on internal
financial statements so as to give the Directors a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance, position
and prospects.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

A.

Goals and objectives

The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to ensure
that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems
(“Systems”). Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure to achieve business obijectives,
and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

During the Year, the Group had complied with all the code
provisions on risk management and internal control under the
CG Code.

(1) Control structure
The Board

e responsible for the Systems and reviewing their
effectiveness

e oversee the Systems on an ongoing basis with the
assistance of Audit Committee

e ensure the maintenance of appropriate and effective
Systems

e define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limit of authority

e determine the nature and extent of significant risk that
the Company is willing to take in achieving the strategic
objectives and formulate the Group’s risk management
strategies

Audit Committee

e review and discuss the Systems with the management
annually to ensure that the management has performed
its duty to have effective Systems. This discussion
include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function

e consider major findings on internal control matters
raised by internal or external auditors and make
recommendations to the Board
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B. Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems — continued

(1)

Control structure — continued

The management (includes heads of business units,
departments and divisions)

design, implement and monitor the Systems properly and
ensure the Systems are executed effectively

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in day-
to-day operations

give prompt responses to, and follow up the findings
on internal control matters raised by internal or external
auditors

provide confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of
the Systems

Internal Audit Department

2

carry out the analysis and independent appraisal of
adequacy and effectiveness of the Systems in respect
of operational, financial and compliance aspects and
will alert the management on the audit review findings or
irregularities, if any, advise them on the implementation
of necessary steps and actions to enhance the internal
controls of the Group. The result of internal audit reviews
and agreed action plans are reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board

Control Approach and Tools

During the year, the management had analyzed the
control environment, identified risk pertaining thereto, and
implemented various controls therein.

Approach taken: The management conducted
interviews with relevant staff members, reviewing
relevant documentation of the risk management
and internal control system and evaluating findings
of any deficiencies in the design of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system,
providing recommendations for improvement and
assessing the effectiveness of implementation of such
recommendations, where appropriate. The scope and
findings of review on the risk management and internal
control are reported to and reviewed by the Audit
Committee annually.

Procedure manuals and operational guidelines: They
are in place to safeguard the assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper
accounting records in compliance with the applicable
laws, rules and regulations for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use and/or external
publication.
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B. Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems — continued

@

3

Control Approach and Tools — continued

Management information system and technology:
Such use to control over the business activities allows
close tracking of various inputs and outputs of the
Company’s business such as raw materials, human
resources, products and customer relationships. It also
tracks audit trails in the authorization system, in which
permissions and responsibility of authorization are clearly
identified and adequate records can be maintained in the
Systems.

Reports and variance analysis: Such reports and
analysis of each segment in the upstream, midstream
and downstream are conducted on a regular basis such
that the performance of each point of sales and each
product category can be easily accessible.

Information flow: The transparent information flow
alerts us promptly of any deviations. Benchmarking with
historical database and comparisons with the same also
act as a detecting device for spotting unusual activities.

Control Process

There is an on-going process to safeguard the effectiveness
of the Systems and the following key measures, policies
and procedures are used or adopted to ensure effective
functioning of the Group’s financial, operational or compliance
areas:—

Control on leasing of properties: Policies and
checklists on control of rental revenue, lease terms &
conditions, appointment of agency, asset security and
performance review are in place for leasing of Group’s
premises;

Control on acquisition of properties: Internal
procedures on the acquisition of properties are in place;

Safeguard of assets: Surprise physical count of cash,
chips and client deposits held in casino and coupons for
casino are performed by Internal Audit Department to
safeguard the assets;

Service quality control: Regular review on operational
systems of hotel and gaming business segments to
ensure the service quality; and questionnaires are
provided in different outlets to welcome customers’
feedbacks for our service improvement;

Financial reporting management:

Proper controls are in place for the recording of
complete, accurate and timely accounting and
management information;

B. EMEERAMBEZRRCTERM—Z

2) BEELERLH &

i. EEENRS R ARSI SR
) RFEYEM AN R ES 2 SIEBA
Eah mEME - ANER ERRE
PR - AT RSB EZEF -
B RS M B AR K ik S
RGO #ed5 R eC sk o

iv. WMEREERSMN:ERY LR LT
MEBEEETTERRE MM A 5N
THREHEMMEERER KRR -

V. FEER EHNEE //lL&ETT;EEEﬁZﬁET—J
R o UBATBUREREE N 2 LT
RS IIESEEEH 2R

3) EBEZEESF
AKRNBMEBHEBEZEFUREZERERZZE
T B E PR K B4 WLATE;A e~ BUR K
%TL}AEEE%$EIH7W BB R A HENER
EIF: —

*ﬂh%%ZE&?" S EAREE Y EM

ERES WA BEGER G &
&ﬁﬁ BERE MNRIRERN 2 BEEHIE
BER N BERE

i UEEMEE Z ELE BB UEYERAE
R

i ﬁFﬁﬁE: A EPERT ERPTEINREIZ A
2B @  BERE LI RS EESE
TRRNE LREAE;

iv. BRI mEIRS] FEEBEE B E
7 BPEE L RRARE RS ME - EZ{E
PIE TRETT RIS BB UERE S BRI
HERRTEH R EE -

v. BIEmEEE:
. EL_LL MESIERE T FER 2 ~ B8
SRtk e Rt R EEE R

66  Emperor International Holdings Limited %% £ £ E(HE)ER A



Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems — continued

(3) Control Process — continued

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Regular reports on revenue, marker receivables’ ageing
and debtors’ ageing and internal financial reports are
prepared to the management which give a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group's financial
performance;

Monthly updates on key financial information are
provided to all Directors, which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,
financial position and prospects in sufficient details; and

Annual audit by external auditors is carried out to ensure
that the consolidated financial statement are prepared
in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, the Group's accounting policies and the
applicable laws and regulations.

Systems and Procedures on Disclosure of Inside
Information to ensure, with the assistance of an internal
work team (if required), that any material information
which comes to the knowledge of any one or more
officers should be promptly identified, assessed and
escalated, where appropriate, for the attention of the
Board;

Policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements which shall be reviewed
and monitored regularly by the Corporate Governance
Committee as delegated by the Board;

CCT Compliance Committee is established to monitor,
control and regularly review continuing connected
transactions of the Company and ensure proper
compliance with all relevant laws and regulations and the
Listing Rules and disclosure requirements; and

Whistle-blowing policy for employees of the Group
to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. Such arrangement will be reviewed by the
Audit Committee which ensures that proper arrangement
is in place for fair and independent investigation of the
matters.
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C. Risk Management C. EkE®E

(1) Risk Management Process

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk management measures and risk control and
review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify, analyse,
evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risks associated
with any activity, function or process within its scope of
responsibility and authority. Risks are evaluated by the Board
and management based on (i) the severity of the impact of
the risks on the Company’s financial results; (ii) the probability
that the risks will occur; and (iii) the velocity or speed at which
risks could occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the
risk as follows:—

e Risk elimination - management may identify and
implement certain changes or controls that in effect
eliminate the risk entirely.

e Risk mitigation — management may implement risk
mitigation plan designed to reduce the likelihood, velocity
or severity of the risk to an acceptable level.

e Risk control and monitoring — accidents and other
situations involving loss or near-loss will be investigated
and properly documented as part of the effort to manage
risks.

e Risk retention — management may decide that the risk
rating is low enough that the risk is acceptable level
and no action is required. The risk will continue to be
monitored as part of the risk management program
to ensure the level of risk does not increase to an
unacceptable level.

(2) Significant Risks and Strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified through the
process of risk identification and assessment. Such significant
risks of the Group and their respective key strategies/control
measures are set out below:
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Investment strategy: REF

Acquisition of land, investment and development properties
carry inherent risks related to meeting budgets, incurring
debts, missing targets and managing contractor relationships.
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Risk Management — continued
(2) Significant Risks and Strategies — continued

e |nvestment decisions are subject to a robust risk and
return evaluation by executives and supervision by the
Finance and Investment Committee;

e Potential projects are subject to an extensive due
diligence review by in-house specialists and external
advisers. Offers are only made for projects with
reasonable return or of strategic value;

e Ensure experienced managers are in place to manage
projects; and

e Completed projects are subject to continual monitoring
and internal audit, with regular performance reports to
the Management.

Rental income sustainability:

Loss of major tenants due to changes in tenants’ own strategy
or competition among landlords would adversely impact the
revenue of the Group.

e Maintain a well-balanced and quality tenant mix;
e Maintain high property marketability by timely renovation;

e Invite targeted tenants or anchor tenants to our existing
or new properties from time to time. Custom-made
arrangements are offered where appropriate to cater to
their specific needs;

e  Propose short term lease restructure for quality tenants in
order to help sustain their businesses; and

e (Carry out pre-lease campaigns to replace the
undesirable tenants.

Business/Portfolio concentration:

A significant portion of the Group’s revenues is derived from
Hong Kong. Unfavourable events in the city could disrupt our
overall business, lower our revenues and impact the valuation
of our assets.

e The Group has a diversified portfolio of investment
properties across Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland cities
and London, the United Kingdom. The Group will keep
sourcing quality investment properties around the world;
and

e The Group has expanded its investment property
portfolio to offices in recent years. This enables the
Group to mitigate the undesirable impact on retail sector.
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Risk Management — continued
(2) Significant Risks and Strategies — continued
Property development risks:

Supply of land is subject to the change of land policies in
different markets. Acquisition of land in Hong Kong, the
PRC and other overseas markets may be subject to various
regulatory requirements and restrictions and competition
from other developers. Future growth prospects of property
development business are therefore affected by the
availability and price levels of prime sites in Hong Kong, the
PRC and other overseas markets. Failure to manage cost of
construction, labour and materials could adversely affect the
competitiveness of property development business.

e Participate actively in the land auctions;

e Engage in more joint-venture projects with partners in
private and public sectors;

e Maintain a long-term strategic plan on property
redevelopment projects;

e Implement well established policies in our tendering
system;

e Monitor project costs closely with strict adherence to
budget;

e Extract advantages from economies of scale based on
our portfolio size, if possible; and

e Monitor closely the labour cost and materials stock/price
trends in the industry before awarding building contracts.

Keen Competition in hotel and gaming industry:

Increased competition in hotel and gaming industry in Macau
due to opening of more luxury hotels and casinos, upgrade of
existing hotels by competitors as well as increasing in number
of VIP rooms, gaming tables and slot machines from existing
casinos and among other Asian countries (e.g. Malaysia,
Singapore, Vietnam and Cambodia). No assurance that the
growth of Macau’s tourism industry would increase in line
with or outpace the supply of hotel accommodation, casino
gaming tables and slot machines and this could adversely
affect the Group’s business.

e Enlarge and expand our footprint in sourcing hotel and
gaming patrons;
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C. Risk Management - continued

(2) Significant Risks and Strategies — continued

e Devote to provide the best personalised service to the
guests in order to give them a memorable experience;
thereby differentiating GEH from other hotels and
enabling them to make GEH be their first choice when
they come back to Macau;

e  Cooperate with travel agencies and airline companies to
develop long-haul visitor market;

e Launch promotions featuring GEH's excellent location
to attract guests to extend length of overnight stay,
integrating with local tourism resources, especially World
Cultural Heritage scenic spots; and

e Improve marketing strategy and enhance promotions
and publicities from time to time in order to encourage
existing gaming patrons to come back to Macau and
attract new customers from around the world.

Anti-Money Laundering:

No assurance that our existing anti-money laundering (“AML")
policies are in compliance with applicable AML laws and that
the policies in place could sufficiently prevent or detect the
occurrence of money laundering activities at casinos.

e Review the existing compliance policies regularly;

e  Comply with the reporting and compliance procedures
as request by Gaming Inspection and Coordination
Bureau or the AML compliance department of SJM;

e  Stay alert of the industrial practices; and
e Give regular training to the staff.

Concession Contract:

Reliance on SUM Concession Contract which will expire on 31
March 2020 and the existing services agreement with SJM to
run the Group’s gaming business. Termination of the SUIM's
Concession Contract or the service agreement with SJM
for whatever reasons or the renewal thereof is not granted
to or made by SJM or unfavourable change in the terms of
the services agreement would have impact on the gaming
business of the Group.

e Stay alert to the policy and government practice and
the industrial practices or make changes to the existing
business plans or strategies, as and when appropriate;
and

e Keep close communications with SUM in this respect.
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D. Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had received a confirmation
from the management on the effectiveness of the Systems
of the Group. Based on such confirmation and discussion
with the management, the Audit Committee and the Board
had reviewed the Systems and were not aware of any
significant issues that would have an adverse impact on
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's operational,
financial and compliance areas of the Systems.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company had established a shareholders’ communication
policy and the Board shall review it on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness. The Company communicates with the Shareholders
mainly in the following ways: (a) the holding of annual general
meetings and special general meetings, if any, which may be
convened for specific purposes which provide opportunities for
the Shareholders to communicate directly with the Board; (b) the
publication of announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/
or circulars as required under the Listing Rules and press releases
providing updated information of the Group; (c) the availability of
latest information of the Group in the Company’s website at www.
Emperorint.com.; and (d) the holding of press conference(s) from
time to time.

There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
presentations are made when financial results are announced.
Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit the Company’s
website to raise enquiries through our Investor Relations
Department whose contact details are available on the Company’s
website and the “Corporate Information and Key Dates” section of
this annual report.

In order to protect the environment and save costs for the benefit
of Shareholders, the Company has introduced electronic means for
receiving corporate communication by Shareholders. Shareholders
may still elect to receive printed or electronic copies of corporate
communication. However, the Shareholders are encouraged to
access corporate communication from the Company through the
Company’s website.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings
for each substantial issues, including the re-election of retiring
Directors. The Company’s notice to the Shareholders for the 2016
AGM was sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and notices of all other general meetings will be
sent to the Shareholders at least 10 clear business days before the
meetings.
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The Chairperson of the 2016 AGM and the chairman/members of
the Board Committee and the external auditor were available at
the 2016 AGM to answer questions from the Shareholders. With
the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson of the
meeting had explained the procedures for conducting poll voting
during such meeting.

The forthcoming annual general meeting will be held on 24 August
2017 which will be conducted by way of poll.

Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code.

Convening a Special General Meeting (“SGM”) and Putting
Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall have the right to submit a written requisition
requiring a SGM to be called by the Board. The written requisition
(a) must state the object(s) of the meeting, and (b) must be signed
by the requisitionists and deposited at the principal office of the
Company for attention of the Company Secretary, and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionists. Such requisitions will be verified with the Company’s
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and upon its confirmation that
the requisition is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will
ask the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all
Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified
as not in order, the requisitionists will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the SGM will not be convened as requested.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for a day not more
than two months after the date of deposit of a proper requisition,
the requisitionists or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them may convene a SGM, but
any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. A meeting
convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be
convened by Directors.
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Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any number
of the registered Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or
not less than 100 of such registered Shareholders, can request
the Company in writing to (a) give to the Shareholders entitled
to receive notice of the next annual general meeting notice of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to the Shareholders
entitled to have notice of any general meeting any statement of
not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting. The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists must be
deposited at the principal office of the Company for attention of the
Company Secretary with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s relevant expenses and not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution
or not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any
other requisition. Provided that if, after a copy of the requisition
requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited at the principal
office of the Company, an annual general meeting is called for a
date six weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, such
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director are available for viewing on the Company’s website.

Making Enquiries

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’'s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’ enquiries
can be directed to the Investor Relations Department of the
Company whose contact details are shown on the “Corporate
Information and Key Dates” section of this Annual Report.

Constitutional Documents

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.
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Auditor's Independence and Remuneration

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and effectiveness
of the audit process of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with applicable standards. Members of the Committee
were of the view that the Company’'s auditor, Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tomatsu is independent and has recommended the Board
to re-appoint it as the Company’s auditor at the 2017 AGM. During
the Year, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, has rendered audit
services and certain non-audit services to the Group and the
remuneration paid/payable to it by the Group is set out as follows:

Service rendered Fees paid/payable
Fr iR it R 7% Bt ENER
HK$' 000
FAT
Audit services ZERTE 7,834
Non-audit services IEZ RS 1,350
— Corporate exercise in accordance with Hong Kong —REBEEEGTMAGMEMREERER
Standard on Investment Circular Reporting BK BR 3R 22 B A2 B 55.4005% [ &Y ok & &
Engagements 400 “Comfort Letters and Due BESER] 2ETH

Diligence Meetings” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
EMPEROR INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 85 to 209, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

RREEXEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional REREZEEARITHREHE S FBLAE
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the EHAMBRERTFZEBMNEIE - NTREZX
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These EBGAMEBRREELSEEHLMILTKE
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the & MAEmMItEEBESEBHRRER-
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matters

HREZER

Valuation of investment properties

REVRZ 1518

We have identified the valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements, as a whole, combined with the
significant assumptions and judgments involved in
determining the fair value as set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.
RITHREMEZHEBN A —HRAREZEE R
AERZEREGEEMBRREBMEBELR BN
REMBMRMTANE BEEARBESLRERNRR
Ko -

As disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties
amounted to HK$40,808,858,000, representing
73% of the Group’s total assets, with its change in
fair value included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. During the year, an increase in fair
value of investment properties amounted to
HK$3,228,003,000.

WIS M BHREM T4 RE BEEEIRED
% 340,808,858,0008 7T 1 BEHREBEEEL73%"
HRARBEEHT AGE B KEMEEKERA R
REEZ  REYE R (EEIEIN3,228,003,000/8 7T °

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
FTMAEEBERELSBIR

Our procedures in relation to assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation of investment
properties included:

ATHEREMEGBEREEZEFERE:

e FEvaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuers;

o FHEMEMZTE® BEHREERMKL:

e Understanding the Valuers’ valuation basis and
methodologies, the performance of the property
markets, significant assumptions adopted and key
inputs used in the valuations; and

e THREEMZEERERTE MEMBIRE A
EFRARAZEARREMIEAZ TEZRASIE &
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Key Audit Matters — continued

Key audit matters — continued

BRELBIE &

Valuation of investment properties — continued
REYRZITE &

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties
are carried at fair value based on the valuations
performed by independent firms of qualified
professional property valuers (the “Valuers”).
The valuations are dependent on key inputs,
together with significant assumptions, that involve
judgments, including capitalisation rates and
comparable market transactions with adjustments
to reflect different locations or conditions for
completed investment properties, and comparable
market rents and transactions, occupancy rate,
discount rate, developer’'s profit and cost to
be expended to complete the development for
investment properties under development. Details
of the valuation techniques and key inputs used
in the valuations are disclosed in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
MGEEMBHRERMTITRE BEEEZREMED
ENBYAaEREEMERMGERT ([AEM]) OEE
BAABEINE - HEGRENEKBEEZHASBRAR
BARBET AP F AW BREMMEE AR
M55 (EFLFABUARMERTREMEZ T
ENMA) UEAEEmEHE XS HEX.
MBEXR EREHENETNERTREDEGELD
BERRA-FEHETHAZHERMEEIZ2HAH
BHBREA M B MR E 143 E -

RAREREER &

How our audit addressed the key audit matters — continued

RITHNAEEEREREE &

Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs
used in the valuations by (i) checking the details
of rentals on a sample basis to the respective
underlying existing tenancy agreements; (ii)
comparing to relevant market information on
prices, rentals achieved and capitalisation
rates adopted in other similar properties in the
neighbourhood; (iii) benchmarking the discount
rates against historical data, market trend and
applicable market yields; (iv) comparing the
budget costs approved by management to actual
development costs incurred for the expected cost
to be expended to complete the development for
investment properties under development.
FR(MERERHERGEERZZHEHESFB
(R EMAEUMEMRENER Hek
BB E A EZ HBATISE T B (1ii)i§ 8k
MR FE L BUR - M5B 2 MER ™5 W RETT
BEEDH (VR TERERDIREY E R E LN TED
BREKA B ERE ETEE KA EFTE £/
BEEREARN UHEEETAERAZIERGARE A
Bt
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Key Audit Matters — continued

Key audit matters — continued

BRERSBE &

Valuation of properties under development for sale
HIEHEZERFPYEZILE

We identified the valuation of properties under
development for sale as a key audit matter due to
the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole and the significant
judgments associated with the assessment of
whether the properties under development for sale
were stated at lower of cost and net realisable value
(*“NRV") of properties under development for sale.
As disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 March 2017, the Group’s
properties under development for sale amounted
to HK$1,719,141,000. During the year, a reversal
of write-downs of properties under development for
sale amounted to HK$132,884,000 is recognised.
ROBFERECERTYWEZHRERF AARERZ
RE DHRAHEEREGAMBERRERMEBE
R ARFEFEHEZERTYERTRAM AL
AERFE (AR FE])MERREEINERES R
BOK H o BN AR & B 15 R MY SR 23R ) 5R 702017
FI3AB3IA: EEEFFELEZEERETYWERH
1,719,141,0008 T - M AFE B R FIEL E 2 %
J& 7R W) 3 2 W0 18 [21132,884,0007% 7T °

RARERER &

How our audit addressed the key audit matters — continued
FTNMAEEBRELSIE &

Our procedures in relation to assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation of properties under
development for sale included:
ROTHERELECERTYWEZAERELEZIEFE
T

e Assessing the management's process in
estimating the estimated costs to completion
of the properties under development for sale,
on a sample basis, by comparing them to the
development budget, actual development cost
of similar completed properties of the Group
and comparing the adjustments made by the
management in the estimated costs to completion
to current market data;

e MERALEEERN G THRIFIELEZERTYE
ZARETROAMAE R BEE BEEECKRIHAUME
ZEREE BERIFREAETHE LEEEESH
il ET TE A B 7N B 58 BE B8 BT T 45 BUR VB L 8¢

e Assessing the appropriateness of the NRV of
the properties under development for sale, on
a sample basis, by comparing the NRV to the
estimated selling price less estimated costs
of selling expenses achieved in the same
project or comparable properties, based on the
current market development trend, government
regulations in the real estate industry and our
knowledge of the Group’s business; and

s REEMMHERBY FHETENBRMERAKL
ATH BEEXRBHTE BB EEFEEE
[FI8 B sk Al b W 5 2 (At E (B R (A 5t 3H & B ST
ETHE MET R EREZHRTYRAIZR
FENEEM: &
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Key Audit Matters — continued

Key audit matters — continued

BREZSBE &

Valuation of properties under development for sale
— continued

HIELHEZ HRPYE 0 E—E

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group’s properties under
development for sale are stated at lower of cost
and NRV. The determination of the NRV involves
estimates based on prevailing market environment
and the estimated market value (i.e. the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of selling
expenses) and also taking into consideration the
estimated costs to completion of the properties
under development for sale.

WMANAR e M MEW T4 RE BEEEHELEZ
ERPYERKANATBEFEREPREEER-
EE A BIHE S MREBIRITT SRR LG E (B
EEtEERMETHERSIRA) ELEET TFEETEX
FELHEZERTYR ZMEFAA-

RAREREER—~&

How our audit addressed the key audit matters — continued
FTNMAEEBRELSIE &

Evaluating the reasonableness of the assessment
performed by the management of the Group on
the key inputs to evaluate the magnitude of their
impact of the market value and adequacy of
impairment being made.

Ak BEREEEREMEEHABBETHTMELY
BEME - UFFEEMERENREERELRETY &2

PRy
AN
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Ht&x
BAREEHAGANAR R EHOIEE
HAFRNEN BT BIEGEHHRRRA
TR Y L B B 4R 4 -

FITHER AU REANBERAL NREEBER
BRI Attt B RERTE AR E R o

RATTEZSEAMBRERM S AMTAANE
HipER WHERHEDEEEMERNE T RER
EMBBRRIAITREZTNERFEEAN
— K A BE TR EE E AR RR IR AR IB AT T P
HEITHIE N%a R E M ERFEE A
R - RIRTTRREZFE - itk ANTTAE
AEHREZEE-

EEREEERAERRSUER
RZEIE
AEREEREESEHAMAREMBZE

%ﬂﬁ“iﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ&%%@ BIEDIZ R IR E AR
HREEERNTV2EAMBEHRR YHES
EE SRR BB XS RIUL (T2 B HKGF
HEREI ) ZREVBHREAMEBLEZE
A A B EE

KRG AV BHRAE EFRENE %
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPOK

BRBMRERGREMBERR2EMR

AT R R AR ERREAVBERRERES
PEEBRRFFREERMERHE X RR
At W EHAANTEROZBERE - AR
SREESNHERBIERERAZEBERR
T BRI 2SN REREREEM B B NITAE
AR EN AR EREMA TR B SAEE
B E - BIERESDKFHIRE - AL TRE
RERBETEANETHEZARER AT
B A B8 RRER - #5 AR PRl R BE f BRAF Bl B AR
MmEL - WEERREE A S IERR KT EE
AEREZFHAMERRIELOGERE -
AR RE K -

ERIRBEE BB ERMETEZ TIENE
7 ATHEEEEZERETERFRAE - AR
FrERIREEREE - ATTI

o BRI NEHEAR S BEIRR I IREF S EE AR
BB KRR AR - EEZER
Rt RMITEZIEF BERENEE
MBE GRS ANTTHE RIREER - AR
BEES R ARRE WE WRER RE
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements - continued

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

&%Eﬁﬁ%&%éﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁz,éﬁ
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements - continued

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Kwok Lai Sheung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 June 2017

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPOI
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

fo o 9E i B Lt 4 v S i

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £201743 8318 Lt F &

Notes
B 5%

Revenue WA 5
Cost of properties sales XTSI PN
Cost of hotel and B 5 R OB 5 AE B S TS A AR

hotel related operations
Direct operating expenses in respect I E& &Y% 2 H#ZE

of leasing of investment properties
Gross profit EH
Other income H A
Fair value changes of KREMEARBEZES

investment properties
Other gains and losses H s & &8 7
Selling and marketing expenses HELTISHEEERB
Administrative expenses THREA
Finance costs Mg 8
Share of result of a joint venture NME—HEEREIEE 17
Profit (loss) before taxation BRAEAT R A (B ) 9
Taxation charge I8 2 H 11
Profit (loss) for the year FEmMN (EE)
Other comprehensive income Hih2mE iz ()

(expense)
Items that will not be reclassified ~~ HEE T S8EH S HE

subsequently to profit or loss: BmHE -
Revaluation surplus of prepaid HERBIREMENTEN

lease payments and property, HERIBERYE B R

plant and equipment transferred RBEMBER

to investment properties
Deferred tax on revaluation surplus ~ #& &#% & ¥ Z WEN

of prepaid lease payments and MERIBERYE #eE Kk

property, plant and equipment REEHBRREEZ

transferred to investment JEIER IR

properties

ltem that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on

HEZAGEE D HE

B ZBE -

MESINNBARMEL

translation of foreign subsidiaries b EE
Other comprehensive expense FEEMEEMX

for the year

Total comprehensive income
(expense) for the year

FEzEANS (FAX)

2017
HK$’000
FE T
4,068,467
(535,970)

(624,602)

(63,490)

2,844,405
133,404

3,228,003
(55,228)
(609,152)
(457,928)
(435,639)
(68)

4,647,797
(956,997)

3,690,800

(3,660)

(263,923)

(237,083)

3,453,717

2016
HK$'000
FAT
5,602,894

(1,779,584)

(658,591)

(66,631)

3,098,088
135,721

(1,850,633)
(379,032)

(2,229,665)

72,796

(203,193)

(130,397)

(2,360,062)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
G ey 9E i B L At 4 v i B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £201743 8318 Lt F &

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FHERT F&T
Profit (loss) for the year EEEERT (BE) :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KARIER A 3,483,150 (2,391,188)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR M A 207,650 161,523
3,690,800 (2,229,665)
Total comprehensive income EHFEEEEmAKZ (FAx) :

(expense) for the year
attributable to:

Owners of the Company ZN/NSIEZ PN 3,229,422 (2,521,486)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A 2 224,295 161,424

3,453,717 (2,360,062)

Earnings (loss) per share BREF (BE) 13
Basic (HK$) EXR(ET) (0.65)
Diluted (HK$) s (Bn) (0.65)

Emperor International Holdings Limited ~ZE2£E(EMR)ER QA



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

fa o BB SIR Dl R

At 31 March 2017 7201793 A31H

Notes
B 5%
Non-current assets FRBEE

Investment properties KEME 14
Property, plant and equipment e TN e 15
Deposits paid for acquisition of WHEREWME "M% -

investment properties/property, BBREREEMZNZ

plant and equipment e
Receivables related to B—EERIEEB Z

a development project JE W KT8 14
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERE 16
Interest in a joint venture R—EEELE R 17
Goodwill S 19
Other assets Hih&E 20
Pledged bank deposits BEHEPRITIFR 25

Current assets RBEE

Inventories BE 21
Properties held for sale FEHE 2% 22
Properties under development BIELECERPYE

for sale 23
Prepaid lease payments AN HEERIE 16
Trade and other receivables B 5 Ik H h jE Y K18 24
Taxation recoverable AR B IE
Deposit in designated bank HERMEFRR

account for development BERITEPZER

properties 18
Pledged bank deposits SEHRITER 25
Short-term bank deposits AR IT IR 3K 25
Bank balances and cash RITHEHB LIRS 25

2017
HK$’000
FEx

40,808,858
3,572,531

603,034

167,262
547,255
630,187
56,683
4,092
30,508

46,420,410

14,153
184,127

1,719,141
17,832
728,497
43,307

9,182

329
2,822
6,620,318

9,339,708

2016
HK$'000
TR

36,502,772
3,358,745

43,802

178,210
560,178
599,347
56,683
4,092
30,252

41,334,081

13,745
720,124

1,309,714
17,266
834,641
9,663

9,685
655,718
39,031
3,108,291

6,717,878
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
a0 BB SIR DL R

At 31 March 2017 7201793 A31H

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mo aE FET FAET
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 N H Ath e 508 26 1,221,694 1,283,036
Amount due to a related company & —EEE R FFIB 27 465,878 484,530
Amounts due to non-controlling ERHEB AT
interests of subsidiaries FE VAR 2 TR IE 28 120,800 132,000
Derivative financial instruments TEeMITA 29 - 16,700
Taxation payable JET 1R 478,695 588,605
Unsecured notes IR E S -
— due within one year —F N 25 30 1,645,919 -
Bank borrowings RITHE—
— due within one year —F N E|H 31 3,545,334 3,000,420
7,478,320 5,505,291
Net current assets REEEFEE 1,861,388 1,212,587
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERREBEE 48,281,798 42,546,668
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Amount due to a related company  JEfF —E R B A B FIE 27 1,522,755 3,059,865
Unsecured notes EEAEE-
— due after one year —F1& 2 5 30 7,122,121 4,566,553
Bank borrowings RITEE—
— due after one year — F 1% 2| 5 31 9,009,674 8,028,668
Deferred taxation IEERIE 32 1,911,415 1,157,047
19,565,965 16,812,133
28,715,833 25,734,535
Capital and reserves EXK#E
Share capital fi% AR 33 36,775 36,775
Reserves ] Al 22,715,937
Equity attributable to owners of KAREAE NEEER
the Company 25,546,530 22,752,712
Non-controlling interests FIEIE R 35 3,169,303 2981,823
28,715,833 25,734,535

The consolidated financial statements on pages 85 to 209 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

%858 £ F209H FT sk 2 4R A BT IS 3R R 722017
FoAIBEEST A NMIRETEE - WH T

21 June 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: EEAEES:
Wong Chi Fai Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
HEE 6 B
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF

88  Emperor International Holdings Limited R 2 &£ E(EE)ER A T



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AR B R
For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £201743 8318 Lt F &

201654518

At 1 April 2016

Profit for the year EREN

Revaluation surplus of prepaid BRARANENHRA
lease payments and property, BEFERYE HER
plant and equipment transferred to RESHES
investment properties

Deferred tax on revaluation surplus of BB ARENENER
prepaid lease payments and property, ~ BEFERNE HER
plant and equipment transferred to REERBBELL
investment properties BB

Exchange differences arising on BEBIRBRRMES
translation of foreign subsidiaries ERZR

Total comprehensive (expense) FRE2EE (RX)hE
income for the year

Depreciation attributable to SHBHEENE

revaluation surplus

ROSEAR-ABELA
REZRABEAEMELL
BIEERD IR (Hit27)

Deemed capital distribution arising from
fair value adjustment on initial
recognition on amount due to
arelated company (Note 27)

Dividend paid to owners of the Company AARFAEAASN 2KE

~ final dividend for 2016 —2016FRERE
~ interim dividend for 2017 —017FRERE
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests 3R ER S [ 2R 8
~ final dividend for 2016 —2016FRERE
- interim dividend for 2017 —017FRERE
At 31 March 2017 R2017%3A318

36,775 4,563,248 125,245

(263,923)

(263,923)

36,775 4,563,248

(138,678)

194,997 689,697

3,483,150 3,483,150

(1,390)

10,195

(1,572) 1,840

(68,117)

(202,266)
(165,489)

203,620

17,142,750 22,752,712

3,483,150 3,229,422

20,259,985 25,546,530

2,981,823 25,734,535

207,650 3,690,800

18,915

(1,390) (2,270) (3,660)

(263,923) (263,923)

224295 3,453,717

(68,117) (68,117)

(202,266)
(165,489)

(202,266)
(165,489)

(24,852)
(11,963)

(24,852)
(11,963)

3,169,303 28,715,833
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £20176E3A31H [t FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AREEE AR
Share Asset Non-
Share Share  Translation option  revaluation Other  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests Total
RE  RORE ERRE BRESE EEEREE  HtRE  RiHEA 2%  FuRER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TR TAT TAL TEL Thr TER THT TAT TEL
(Note)
(Hi##)
At 1 April 2015 R2015%4A1A 36,718 4,551,984 328,339 3,575 123,773 598,549 19,915,913 25,558,851 2,888,947 28,447,798
(Loss) profit for the year FE (B8 & - - - - - - (2,391,188) (2,391,188) 161523 (2,229,665)
Revaluation surplus of property, BRARAMENNE
plant and equipment to BERREERRSR
investment properties - - - - 72,796 - - 72,79 - 72,19%
Exchange differences arising on BREBIHBRARMES
translation of foreign subsidiaries ERzRE - - (203,094) - - - - (203,094 (99)  (203,193)
Total comprehensive (expense) FR2EM (RR)hE
income for the year - - (203,094) - 72,796 - (2391,188) (2,521,486) 161,424 (2,360,062)
Exercise of share options (Nofe 33) 1 BRARIE (H233) 57 11,264 - (1,248) - - - 10,073 - 10,073
Lapse of share options during REEEBRERM (Hit54)
the year (Note 34) - - - (2,327) - - 2,321 - - -
Depreciation attributable to SHEBHELNE
revaluation surplus - - - - (1,572) - 1,840 268 - 268
Acquisition of additional interests in WK B AR BIMER
subsidiaries (Note 36) (Hi#38) - - - - - 11,107 - 11,107 (25758)  (14,651)
Deemed capital contribution arising ROSBAR-EEELA
from fair value adjustment on initial FEZAREEARMELL
recognition on amount due to RIEERDR (Hi27)
a related company (Note 27) - - - - - 80,041 - 80,041 - 80,041
Dividend paid to owners of the Company HARFAEBAXS 2R E
- final dividend for 2015 —015F K ERE - - - - - - (220,653) (220,653) - (220,653)
~interim dividend for 2016 ~20165 R RS - - - - - ~ (165480)  (165.489) - (165489)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests M3 ERERZ (2R 8
 final dividend for 2015 ~015ERERE - - - - - - - S (9175 (29,175)
- interim dividend for 2016 2016 R ERE - - - - - - - - (13,615) (13,615)
At 31 March 2016 #201643A31H 36,775 4,563,248 125,245 - 194,997 689,697 17,142,750 22,752,712 2,981,823 25734535
Note: The other reserve of the Group arose from (i) acquisition of additional A7 ZNE2 8 2 H i {7 6 T & (1) [F) 3F 122 B AE 55 U B

interests in subsidiaries from non-controlling interests; (i) dilution of
interest in a subsidiary from allotment of shares by a subsidiary; and (iii)
deemed capital contributions from owners of the Company.

B8~ Rz BESME R ¢ (iT) R BT B 8 R AL 3 A%
10 % 7 % MY B8 1 ) 2 M S - T (i) 7R
REEREAZRIELEMESE -

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GalHeswEER
For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £201743 8318 Lt F &

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Operating activities T
Profit (loss) before taxation BRELATRE A (EE) 4,647,797 (1,850,633)
Adjustments for: TR
Interest income F B U A (49,287) (90,894)
Interest expenses B 425,124 412,572
Release of prepaid lease S EA NN =
payments 17,629 18,100
Depreciation of property, ME - HEkREZ
plant and equipment e 184,035 204,482
Share of result of a joint venture SMh—HEeErEZEE 68 80
(Gain) loss on disposal of HEME HEREREL
property, plant and equipment (W) E1E ()] 606
(Increase) decrease in the fair REMEAREBELZ
value of investment properties () R (3,228,003) 3,167,583
Impairment loss on prepaid FENHEERIEZ
lease payments RIEEE 49,034
(Reversal of write-downs) FEHEZERFR
write-downs of properties Wz (MUR R )
under development for sale WO (132,884) 132,884
Unrealised fair value changes of PTESRMITAZKRER
derivative financial instruments NABEES 8,035 20,340
Allowance for doubtful debts KRR 255 560
Foreign exchange difference MR FFHHANHLA T
on intercompany balances paia s 86,982 -
Operating cash flows before RitEEBECEHAI 2
movements in working capital EEBESRE 1,959,745 2,064,714
(Increase) decrease in inventories 178 2 (#&h1) & 4 (408) 1,082
Decrease (increase) in properties  #H{EHE 2 WE 2R D
held for sale (38h0) 535,997 (518,053)
(Increase) decrease in properties  #H{ELEZBERTMEZ
under development for sale (3 )R (231,438) 1,234,050
Decrease in trade and B 5 I H A e WK IE 2 /4
other receivables 93,392 82,530
Decrease in trade and B 5 I H A FE A RIE 2/ A
other payables (31,139) (860,640)
Changes of derivative PTESMTAE
financial instruments (24,735) (24,807)
Cash generated from operations REEE RS 2,301,414 1,978,876

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017  2016/2017 &£k 91



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

malemE®

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £201743 8318 Lt F &

Income tax paid BERFTEH
- in Hong Kong —B%
—in the PRC —
—in Macau —RF
—in United Kingdom (“UK") — B ([HEH])
Net cash from operating activites  KEKELEK RS FHE
Investing activities KREED
Acquisition of investment WA R ERF
properties and costs incurred REWERES 2 KA
for investment properties
under development
Deposits paid on acquisition of R EME ME -
investment properties/ BENEBEBASI N 2ZS

property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Advance to a joint venture

Placement of pledged bank
deposits

Addition of prepaid lease payments

Placement of short-term
bank deposits

Placement of deposit in designated
bank account for development
properties

Withdrawal of pledged
bank deposits

Interest received

Withdrawal of short-term
bank deposits

Proceeds from disposal of
investment properties

Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment

WEE % HER kB

[ —f & & hRBR
FRE ERRITER

NEBETANEERE
T R HIER1T 17 3K

FRRERYE

R ERRITES 2
w5

IR BB ITER

U B A B
HRERAE IR 1T 17 3K

HEREMFEMEHA

HEME  HaERERE
P18 5RIR

Net cash used in investing activies ARREEE 2B & FE

2017
HK$’000
FERT

(299,015)

(601)

2,001,798

(1,447,649)

(582,337)

(303,525)
REX))

(7,853)
(5,720)

(2,625)

(92)

662,385
47,879

38,834

13,000

99

(1,605,604)

2016
HK$'000
TAET

1,933,471

(3,133,523)

(38,500)

(278,175)
(14,402)

(44,500)

(59,071)

(113)

1,809,400
101,475

20,040

3,600

284

(1,633,485)
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2017 2016

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5% TET FE T
Financing activities A& & &
Bank loans raised MBEZIRITER SHRUTRE 11,968,258
Issuance of unsecured notes BITEEBRE 4,183,072 789,860
Advances from a related company —RElE R E 2 B 729,863 2,983,055
Repayments of bank borrowings BEEBTEE AelRirPR) ) (10,430,241)
Repayments to a related company &R T —REEE QA Pielriidl (2,938,198)
Interest paid X ATF B (546,826) (468,489)
Dividends paid to owners of MARNBHEAAZN ZKE
the Company (367,755) (386,142)
Dividends paid to non-controlling ) BT B8 2 B 3F 12 AR A 2w
interests of subsidiaries TR B (36,815) (42,790)
Repayments to non-controlling BT E R AR R
interests of subsidiaries (11,200) (20,576)
Exercise of share options 17108 A 4 10,073
Acquisition of additional interests U EEHI B A &) 2 BEIMER
in subsidiaries 38 (14,651)
Repayments of bank overdraft BRRTEX (5,871)
Net cash from financing activites = KEREEFEFH RS F5E 3,123,427 1,444,288
Net increase in cash and cash ReLBAFEM G MFHE
equivalents 3,519,621 1,744,274
Cash and cash equivalents atthe RFEYIZREMFEEEEY
beginning of the year 3,108,291 1,356,769
Effect of foreign exchange rate ERGs) w8
changes (7,594) 7,248
Cash and cash equivalents at RERZEE2 R
the end of the year, representing ReEEY
bank balances and cash BeR1T# R IR & 6,620,318 3,108,291
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f o B A B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £201743 8318 Lt F &

1.

General

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange. The immediate holding
company is Emperor International Group Holdings Limited,
a limited liability company incorporated in British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”). The ultimate holding company is AY
Holdings a limited liability company incorporated in BVI,
which is in turn held by STC International being the trustee
of AY Trust, the settlor and founder of which is Dr. Albert
Yeung. The address of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 47.

Application of New and Amendments to

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs and Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and
amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer plants

and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities: Applying
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 the consolidation exception

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual improvements to

HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 cycle

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs and
HKASs in the current year has had no material effect on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

4 B
AABRBREAMK Y ATREERA
B ERO R ATt e HEEIERAR]
AESEBRRIERERAR (REEBERE
THE ((RBERELHE ) MKz BR
NA]) o HERHRIEAR N B Aie A E 1A
(REBREZHEAMK I ZBRAT])
M5 52 A% = 232X R STC International (AY
TrustZ FFEA 5L AZEREZPER
FAREISZ N HE - KRR M ER X
%%%%tﬂ%ﬁziﬂﬂtﬁé$¢$&2/&ﬂﬁﬂ
=
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P PR 57 0 T A 5T 5 8 1 7 38
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Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:
HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7

Financial instrument®

Revenue from contracts with
customers and the related
amendments?®

Leases*

Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration®

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 cycle?

Classification and measurement
of share-based payment
transactions®

Apply HKFRS 9 “Financial
instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance contracts”?

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and
its associate or joint venture®
Disclosure initiative'

Amendments to HKAS 12  Recognition of deferred tax

assets for unrealised losses'

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of investment

property?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or
1 January 2018, as appropriate.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.
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N OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

oS

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £201743 8318 Lt F &

W R B

2. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are generally measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI"). All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

2.
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2. Application of New and Amendments to 2. ERFEREETEBMBR
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards &2 A (r BB REZER])
(“HKFRSs”) — continued —#8

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” — continued EBMBREENFEE [€HMTA |

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement”, the entire amount of
the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as FVTPL is presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In
other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event
to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types
of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible
for hedge accounting. In addition, the retrospective
quantitative effectiveness test has been removed.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.
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N OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT'S
f 0 B A B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £201743 8318 Lt F &

2. Application of New and Amendments to 2. AL .f“ﬂ%ﬁ 78 B 18 3
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards &2 (r BB REZER])
(“HKFRSs”) — continued — A5
HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” — continued ERVBBREENESR €M IA]

— 4

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk

RIEAEBER2017F3AIHZ ST A

management policies as at 31 March 2017, application RERERER BEREATBMBRE
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have an impact on the ﬁﬁ'JMQ?‘ﬁ%mX’iﬁ%ﬁﬁ%Zﬁiﬂﬁ%

measurement of the Group’s financial assets. In particular,
the expected credit loss model may result in early provision
of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the
Group's financial assets measured at amortised cost.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single

BT E LEREREEBRRAXE
EUAKBRBENATEZEREER
EEEERNAREERRERIEL B

ERUBREENFEISHK[RATF
BHZRA
HEMBRELINERD RN LSERE

comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for By T —REE-—miRA R ARNERE
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 BEPERAZWANER - RE B B2

will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance

RISE155R A 80 1% - ELASEURER B A VUL

including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction AMERIES| BIEEAGFHERFE18E [k
contracts” and the related interpretations when it becomes AL BBGHENFIR B2ESH] &

effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

R

‘%ﬁﬁ&#&%ﬁﬂﬂ%15%)TZ$?/DJ"‘?£E'JTJ*
B e RiER WA ARRE E P EEAGH
Bk Rz 28 W RRE TR I
ZEE MR MES K E - BEmE
A ZE RIS AR A ARERR A -

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer o BN BRIE-—BEPIIIZEH

e Step 2: lIdentify the performance obligations in the o  FE2H HBABHNRNZBLAEL
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price o N EBEXRSHER

e Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the o  FUAN:  BREBRIMESHAZE
performance obligations in the contract O

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity o  E5F  NERFMEBLHEGIRFHERIL
satisfies a performance obligation A

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
— continued

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in
the future may enhance the disclosures and has no material
impact on the amounts reported in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash
flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold
lands for owned use and those classified as investment
properties while other operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16,
lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as operating cash flows.
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2.

W R B

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 16 “Leases” — continued

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$5,730,000 as disclosed
in note 42. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements may meet the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16 such that the Group will recognise a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect
of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or
short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In
addition, the application of new requirements may result
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the Directors
complete a detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative”

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-
cash changes. Specially, the amendments require the
following changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities to be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash
flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes
in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and
(v) other changes.
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Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative”
— continued

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2017 with earlier application
permitted. The application of the amendments will result in
additional disclosures on the Group's financing activities,
specifically reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances in the consolidated statement of financial position
for liabilities arising from financing activities will be provided
on application.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
other amendments to HKFRSs will have a material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions and/
or the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs and HKASs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CQO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values, as explained in the accounting policies below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fa o BV e B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £201743 8318 Lt F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefit by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
“Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Llevel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Basis of consolidation
The principal accounting policies are set out below:

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current ability
to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £201743 8318 Lt F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Basis of consolidation - continued

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit
pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for
sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations”. The financial statements of joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the joint venture. When the Group’s share of
losses of a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group's investment in a joint venture.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Investments in joint ventures — continued

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the joint venture that are not related to the
Group.

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to
the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. When a
group entity undertakes its activities under joint operations,
the Group as a joint operator recognises in relation to its
interest in a joint operation:

e its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

e its liabilities,
incurred jointly;

including its share of any liabilities

e its revenue from the sale of its share of the output
arising from the joint operation;

e its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation; and

e its expenses,
incurred jointly.

including its share of any expenses

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale
or contribution of assets), the Group is considered to be
conducting the transaction with the other parties to the
joint operation, and gains and losses resulting from the
transactions are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of other parties’
interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which
a group entity is a joint operator (such as a purchase of
assets), the Group does not recognise its share of the gains
and losses until it resells those assets to a third party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation including investment
properties under development for such purposes.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair
value. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are accounted for as investment properties
and measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
development are capitalised as part of the carrying amount
of the investment properties under development.

Investment properties under development are measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period. Any difference
between the fair value of the investment properties under
development and their carrying amounts is recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Transfer from investment properties to investment properties
under development will be made when there is a change
in use, evidenced by commencement of redevelopment of
the properties with a view to earn rentals and for capital
appreciation. The fair value of these properties at the
date of transfer become the deemed cost of investment
properties under development.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost or deemed cost
upon transfer from investment properties, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief
provided by paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 “Property, plant
and equipment” from the requirement to make regular
revaluations of the Group's land and buildings which had
been carried at revalued amounts prior to 30 September
1995, and accordingly no further revaluation of land and
buildings is carried out. Prior to 30 September 1995, the
revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of these
assets was credited to the asset revaluation reserve. Any
future decreases in value of these assets will be dealt with
as an expense to the extent that they exceed the balance, if
any, on the asset revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of the same asset.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost,
deemed cost or revalued amount of items of property, plant
and equipment less their residual values over their useful
lives, using the straight line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Property, plant and equipment — continued

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the asset revaluation reserve.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant asset revaluation reserve will be transferred directly
to accumulated profits.

Transfer of asset revaluation reserve to accumulated profits
is made in relation to: (i) the subsequent sale or retirement
of a revalued item; (ii) the excess of the depreciation based
on the revalued amount of the item over depreciation based
on the item’s original cost.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment losses on assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Impairment losses on assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)
— continued

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an income in the period in which they are
generated.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability.
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3.

W R B

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element
of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight
line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model and
those transferred from investment properties to property,
plant and equipment which is accounted for as if it were a
finance lease after the transfer and included in property,
plant and equipment. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Inventories
Catering goods

Catering goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and
are classified under current assets and are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less all anticipated
costs to be incurred in marketing and selling.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Inventories — continued
Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale in the ordinary
course of business are included in current assets and
stated at the lower of cost (or deemed cost for those
transferred from investment properties, see accounting
policy on investment properties) and net realisable value.
Costs relating to the development of the properties include
land cost, construction cost and other direct development
expenditure. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less all anticipated costs to be incurred in
marketing and selling.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables (including
receivables related to a development project, deposit in
designated bank account for development properties, trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits, bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for the short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Loans and
receivables are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the loans and
receivables, the estimated future cash flows of the loans
and receivables have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of loans and receivables — continued

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and
other receivables, assets are assessed for impairment on
a collective basis even if they were assessed not to be
impaired individually. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on the
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade and other receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When trade and other receivables are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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3.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group
entities are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”)

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liabilities are held for trading.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL”) — continued

A financial liability classified as held for trading if:

e it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising on remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
interest paid on the financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables, amounts due to a related company/non-
controlling interests of subsidiaries, unsecured notes, bank
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

For the amounts due to non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries and amount due to a related company, if the
Group revises its estimates of the timing of repayments,
the carrying amounts are adjusted to reflect the revised
estimated cash flows. The Group recalculates the carrying
amounts by computing the present value of estimated future
cash flows at the balance’s original effective interest rate.
The difference is adjusted as deemed capital contribution
by the non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company in equity.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

e the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets”; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
the revenue recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial assets, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods and services provided in the normal ordinary
course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sale of developed properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the respective
properties have been completed and delivered to
purchasers pursuant to the sales agreements. Deposits
received from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria
for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Revenue arising from services provided to a gaming
operator in Macau under service arrangements for gaming
operations in mass market halls, VIP room and slot machine
hall is recognised when the provision of gaming-related
marketing and public relation services are rendered and the
Group is entitled to receive its service income according
to the relevant operating performance from the gaming
operator.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from hotel accommodation is recognised upon the
provision of the accommodation services. Revenue from
food and beverage sales and other ancillary services are
recognised upon the provision of goods and services.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Service income is recognised when the services are
provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit (loss) before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Taxation — continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in joint arrangements, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets for investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model in accordance
with HKAS 40 “Investment property”, such properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale. Such a
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model of the
Group whose business objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If the
presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and assets
for such investment properties are measured in accordance
with the above general principles set out in HKAS 12
‘Income taxes” (i.e. based on the expected manner as to
how the properties will be recovered).
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Taxation — continued

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate) and will be reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign
operations.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes other than the costs directly attributable to the
development of the properties, which are capitalised as
part of the cost of qualified assets, are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Critical judgment applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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4.

Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty — continued
Critical judgment applying accounting policies

- continued

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or assets arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the Directors have
reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group's investment properties
located in the PRC and Macau in the aggregate carrying
amounts of HK$11,551,400,000 at 31 March 2017 (2016:
HK$8,212,000,000) are held under a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, the Directors
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of such investment properties located in the PRC
and Macau are recovered through sale is rebutted. As a
result, the Group has recognised deferred tax liabilities of
HK$1,748,645,000 (2016: HK$1,002,524,000) on changes in
fair value of investment properties as the Group is subject to
income tax in the respective jurisdictions, on the assumption
that these investment properties will be recovered through
use. In respect of investment properties that are located
in Hong Kong and UK with aggregate carrying amounts
of HK$29,257,458,000 (2016: HK$28,290,772,000), the
Directors concluded that these investment properties
are not held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in these investment properties over time, rather
than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s
deferred taxation in investment properties, the Directors
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of the investment properties located in Hong Kong
and UK measuring using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group
has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of the investment properties situated in Hong Kong
and UK, as it is expected that the Group will not subject to
any income taxes on disposal of its investment properties
situated in Hong Kong and UK.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty — continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Valuation of investment properties

The investment properties of HK$40,808,858,000 at 31
March 2017 (2016: HK$36,502,772,000) are measured at
fair value. The amount was based on a valuation on these
properties conducted by independent qualified professional
valuers using property valuation techniques which involve
certain key assumptions and inputs of market conditions,
including:

e capitalisation rates and comparable market transactions
with adjustments to reflect different locations or
conditions for completed investment properties; and

e comparable market rents and transactions, occupancy
rate, discount rate, developer’'s profit and cost to be
expended to complete the development for investment
properties under development.

The basis of valuation is disclosed in note 14. Changes
to these assumptions and inputs would result in changes
in the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the profit or loss.

Estimate net realisable value on properties under
development for sale

The Group's properties under development for sale
are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. In
determining whether write down should be made to the
Group's properties under development for sale, the Group
takes into consideration the prevailing market environment
and the estimated market value (i.e. the estimated selling
price less estimated costs of selling expenses) less
estimated costs to completion of the properties. Write down
is made if the estimated market value less estimated cost
to completion of the properties is less than the carrying
amounts. If the actual net realisable value on properties
under development for sale is less than expected as a result
of change in market condition and/or significant variation in
the budgeted development cost, material write down may
result.

The carrying amount of properties under development
for sale as at 31 March 2017 is HK$1,719,141,000 (2016:
HK$1,309,714,000). During the Year, a reversal of write-
downs of properties under development for sale amounted
to HK$132,884,000 (2016: write-downs of properties under
development for sale amounted to HK$132,884,000) is
recognised.
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4.
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Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty — continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Estimates of amount due to a related company

The Group’s carrying amount of amount due to a related
company as at 31 March 2017 is HK$1,988,633,000 (2016:
HK$3,544,395,000) (see note 27 for details). There is no
fixed repayment term and it was agreed with the related
company that the Group will repay the amount based on
the sufficiency of its operating cash flows. The carrying
amount of the amount due to a related company and the
deemed contribution by a related company may be adjusted
to reflect the revised estimated cash flows when the Group
revises its estimates of the amount and timing of repayment
to the related company and consequently, affect the amount
of imputed interest to be recognised in profit or loss over the
expected life of the amount due to a related company.

Estimated provision for impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts based
on an assessment of the recoverability of debtors.
Allowances are made on trade receivables whenever there
is any objective evidence that the balances may not be
collectible. In determining whether an allowance for doubtful
debts is required, the Group takes into consideration the
aging status and the likelihood of collection. Following
the identification of doubtful debts, the credit team
discusses with the relevant customers and reports on the
recoverability. Specific allowance is only made for trade
receivables that are unlikely to be collected. Where the
expectation on the recoverability of the debts is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying amounts of debtors and doubtful debt expenses in
the periods in which such estimate has been changed.

The carrying amount of trade receivables as at 31 March
2017 is HK$160,832,000 (2016: HK$130,393,000) (see note
24 for details).

Deferred tax assets

At 31 March 2017, deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$49,267,000 (2016: HK$36,067,000) (see note 32
for details) in relation to unused tax losses have been
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position. No deferred tax assets has been
recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses
of HK$747,473,000 (2016: HK$653,826,000) due to
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of
the deferred tax assets mainly depend on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In case where the actual future profits
generated are less than expected, a material reversal of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised
in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal takes
place.
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Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty — continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
Directors have a designated team to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation of the Group’s investment properties. At the
end of each reporting period, the management of the Group
works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The
Group will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where
inputs can be derived observable quoted prices in the
active market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the
Group will adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3
inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair value of
the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported
to the Directors. Information about the valuation techniques
and inputs used in determining the fair value of the Group's
investment properties are disclosed in note 14.

Revenue
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

4. BEAEHHER G RABDE

E2EERR A&

A TAMREZTEREFE &
AAEETERGERF
REERDEENMBENREETEN
TSR - EFA —EER BB UFhat
iﬂﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁ@%Zﬁfﬁ&ﬁﬁ&i@)\%ﬁ(
= o

T ASEREME L AABER K
EEF AR S 2 5 A B EUE o i
BEEIRBASE AEEREE=FEE
BEME RN EB R EYEEITHE
REREHR AEEEEEES BRI
FULEREIIE1E - @ RiEE LR KR E
SMARBENEZBE HERN REA
ik - Al ERMIS A BRRES LS
ABR - AIAS B E B RRAERE
AR - B FE2R I AR A AR E S
RSB ABE 2 (HERT - MEE
AAEBEREEAEY gRNESHRERK
PHRE - FHAETASEEENMELAE
BFT A ESIM R i A SR 2 RN
1495 55 -

A
AREBZWADHIT :
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAET

Hotel and hotel related operations B E KO8 5 A8 B 2 75

Service income from gaming B EBL 2 REHRA
operations 1,362,044 1,451,547
Hotel room income BIEREERA 172,729 172,161
Food and beverage sales BEHHE 151,005 161,024
Others HAb 9,517 10,454
1,695,295 1,795,186
Sales of properties Y HE 1,515,745 2,971,634
Rental income from investment properties 1 & ¥ ¥ & Ut A 857,427 836,074
4,068,467 5,602,894
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6.

Segment Information

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are lease
of properties, properties development and hotel and hotel
related operations for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of performance.

The segment information reported externally was analysed
on the basis of their products and services supplied by
the Group’s operating divisions which is consistent with
the internal information that is regularly reviewed by the
Executive Directors, the chief operating decision makers,
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance. This is also the basis of organisation in the
Group, whereby the management has chosen to organise
the Group around differences in products and services.

Principal activities of the operating and reportable segments
are as follows:

Lease of — Completed investment properties
properties held for rental purpose
Properties —  Properties development and

development redevelopment for sale purpose

Hotel and — Hotel and hotel related operations
hotel related in Hong Kong and Macau,
operations including operations of mass

market, VIP room and slot
machine operations and
provision of gaming-related
marketing and public relation
services for Grand Emperor Hotel
in Macau

The Executive Directors review the hotel and hotel related
operations in Macau along with that in Hong Kong and
hence they are grouped and identified as a single operating
segment — hotel and hotel related operations.

6.

7REEFR

REE @SR 2 REBHEAMER
B ERR KBS ROEEARRE - bA
HERERRAERR -

SMNERER SRz DARE R VIR AN R B L&
PR 2 Em M RIS DT - B TTE S
BIEBRERRE RERD LR
HEHEM 2 AR ERHEN — B IS
REE 7 HEEE B EIEEREEN
E i N BR 7% 2 2= R A AN SR T

RERAZBEB OB TREHIT

NERE RELHZCERREDE
MEZRR ERRERMENELER
BEREE — REBRARFKLEERE

el ERBAES BERS-

EER ATHEBLA
BPREREBERHE
FARETSHERER DA
FIR

MITES—HIRMRM BEE MEE R
X RBEZBIERD FHHZEEBRK
RN ERRE K EN RS NEE
TERE TS
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Segment Information — continued

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment results represent the profit
earned by or loss suffered from each segment without
allocation of central administration costs, interest income,
finance costs, share of result of a joint venture and fair
value changes in derivative financial instruments. This
is the measure reported to the Executive Directors for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Information regarding the above segments is reported

6.

below:

For the year ended 31 March 2017

Segment revenue and results

Lease of
properties
MERE
HK$’000
THET
Segment revenue DERA
— from external customers - REIBEP 857,427
Segment results DEEE 3,981,142
Interest income FLEUA
Corporate expenses, net rEBER-F8

Net loss on fair value changes in
derivative financial instruments

TEERIANRERL
28FE R

Finance costs HBER

Share of result of a joint venture ME—BEERECEE
Profit before taxation BRFL AT & FI

Taxation charge BEXH

Profit for the year FEEA

TRER &

R A 2R 2 Bt BURENTEE3FT
2 AREE ST HRER - D EERERS
DRERG R RITHER  FBKA

MBER NE—HeECEFENMITE
TR T AREE ZE RS
RELZERMIIZ2MTRITESUE
BRAEMFHERBR 2T -

BRLANBER2HMT:

B Z2017F3H31H I F/E
PHEBRAREE
Hotel and
Properties  hotel related
development operations Total
BERBE
MERR GBS X
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR TR

1,515,745 1,695,295 4,068,467

928,101 402,030 5,311,273

49,287
(269,021)

(8,035)
(435,639)
(68)

4,647,797
(956,997)

3,690,800
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6. Segment Information — continued 6. 7HER &
For the year ended 31 March 2017 — continued Bt 22017331 H IF F/&—#&
Other information Hingp

Amounts included in the measure of HEABEERAZTE:
segment results:

Allowance for doubtful debts RIS 255
Depreciation of property, ME BEREBINE

plant and equipment 148,708 149,663
Release of prepaid lease payments FREMEENE 17,629 17,629
Fair value increase of BREMELABEEM

investment properties 3,228,003 3,228,003
Reversal of write-downs of BENEZERRMEL

properties under development for sale  #ilis & E 132,884 132,884
Amounts regularly provided to the Executive Directors but FHRETFRITEREFENBEERT
not included in the measure of segment results (included in RETAZFHIE (FFALEEBRAF8) :

corporate expenses, net):

Depreciation of property, plant and TrEEEFBEZYE-
equipment, at corporate level HENRBENE
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6. Segment Information — continued

6.

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BL 22016331 H 1L F/&
Segment revenue and results THERARESE
Hotel and
Lease of Properties  hotel related
properties  development operations Total
BIERBE
MERE MERRE HEER k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THET THET
Segment revenue AERA
~ from external customers - RBHIBEP 836,074 2,971,634 1,795,186 5,602,894
Segment results ABEE (2,484,530) 807,497 337,062 (1,339,971)
Interest income FIEBA 90,894
Corporate expenses, net TrEER-F8 (157,188)
Net loss on fair value changes in MTHEEBIARABELZ
derivative financial instruments 2HFHR (20,340)
Finance costs B%ER (423,948)
Share of result of a joint venture AME—HEECE ER (80)
Loss before taxation bR A ES 1B (1,850,633)
Taxation charge MEZ M (379,032)
Loss for the year FEER (2,229,665)
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@

A

6. Segment Information — continued 6. 7HER &
For the year ended 31 March 2016 — continued %@%2076@”3ﬁ37/5’1ﬁfﬁ§‘*/4§
Other information H fth & 8}
Hotel and
Lease of Properties  hotel related
properties  development operations Total
B BB IS
MERE MEER EES B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT TR THET
Amounts included in the measure of STENBEREEAZNIE:

segment results:

Allowance for doubtful debts REEE - - 560 560
Depreciation of property, NE BERZHINE

plant and equipment - 735 168,231 168,966
Release of prepaid lease payments EREAEETE - - 18,100 18,100
Fair value decrease of REWMELDABERD

investment properties 3,167,583 - - 3,167,583
Impairment loss on prepaid BNEEFBRERSSE

lease payments - - 49,034 49,034
Write-downs of properties under BERE CBERPYE MR

development for sale - 132,884 - 132,884
Amounts regularly provided to the Executive Directors but EERHTRTESEHENEEERTY
not included in the measure of segment results (included in RETAZFHIE (FFALEBRA—F8) :

corporate expenses, net):
HK$'000
FHET

Depreciation of property, plant and TrEERRBEIME
equipment, at corporate level MR RBREZITE 35,516

No analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by AR EEREED e 2 EERERE
operating segment is disclosed as they are not regularly AT ETEEIRE THITESIEEE i)
provided to the Executive Directors for review. UL TR Z S AT e
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Segment Information — continued 6.
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the PRC,
Macau and UK.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and
information about its non-current assets, other than
receivables related to a development project and interest in
a joint venture, by geographical location of the assets are
detailed below:

TREN-F

o 13, 2

AREBNES P ERFREEEY ¥
Fo

AEBRBINIEP 2 WA RBBEIER
HEE (TBEAE —HERAB ZEK
FREMN—RAERE 2 #m) <ER (3%
BEZMIBUEE D) FAmT:

Revenue from customers Non-current assets
REEFZBA FRBEE
For the year ended 31 March As at 31 March

BZE3AMNALEE R3A31H
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET TR TET
Hong Kong e 2,415,845 3,840,934 31,502,894 29,579,791
The PRC H 5,600 5,290 9,143,630 5,990,156

Macau ] 1,629,972
UK HE 17,050

4,068,467

Information about major customers

During the Year, revenue derived from one customer (2016:
one) which contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group’s revenue amounted to HK$1,365,716,000 (2016:
HK$1,455,131,000). The revenue is related to the hotel and
hotel related operations.

1,738,619 4,408,055 4,251,070
18,061 568,382 735,507

5,602,894 45,622,961 40,556,524

FEEFZER

RAFE KEEHEASEEBKA10%
WEZ—%&(2016F: —RB)BF Z
U A #1,365,716,0007% 7T (20164 :
1,455,131,00078 7T ) © sZ YR A BB [ K E
XS AR -
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7. Other Gains and Losses 7. HitBm RBE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx FHET
Net loss on fair value changes in MEeRMIAQAAEEZ
derivative financial instruments HHEIEIFE (8,035) (20,340)
Loss arising from misappropriation MAESELEZER
of funds (Note a) (Kiita) (12,900) -
Impairment loss on prepaid lease ERNEERE ZREEE
payments (Note b) (K75tb) (49,034)
Reversal of write-downs (write-downs) #E{EHEZHEFMEY
of properties under development HOR B @ (B0
for sale (Note c) (Htite) 132,884 (132,884)
Net exchange loss P 5 B85 58 (167,177) (167,344)
(55,228) (369,602)

Notes:

(a)

The Group was aware that an ex-senior casino cashier of a
subsidiary of the Company in Macau had embezzled some of the
chips on hand (“Misappropriation of Funds”) of the Group. The matter
was reported to The Inspectorate of Macao Judiciary Police and the
ex-senior casino cashier was arrested for criminal investigation. Up
to the approval date of these consolidated financial statements, the
court judgement was obtained and the person has pleaded guilty
and is now in prison.

The loss arising from the Misappropriation of Funds amounted to
HK$12,900,000 net of HK$100,000 returned by the ex-senior casino
cashier, which was charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss during the year. Chips on hand under note 24 “Trade and other
receivables” were also adjusted downward by the same amount to
reflect such loss for the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, impairment indicator of
decline in asset’s value due to economic downturn was noted
in the Inn Hotel Macau. The Directors conducted an impairment
assessment on the hotel’s property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments by reviewing their recoverable amounts.
An impairment loss of HK$49,034,000 in respect of prepaid lease
payments as at 31 March 2016 had been recognised.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Directors reviewed
the recoverability of the properties under development for sale
with reference to the current market environment and recognised
write-downs of HK$132,884,000. During the year ended 31 March
2017, the Directors reviewed the recoverability of the properties
under development for sale with reference to the current market
environment and reversed the previously recognised write-downs of
HK$132,884,000.

Hisz -

(@)

(b)

(c)

REBER ARA—HBEFMNERARZ
—BHRAESHAEPRAAREEETSE
B(BRER]) - ZEHERRMIENEE
ERME AZEi e R BSHMEER
BEAERENERAE - BERSHEEUE
WAREMERMIL OERDIEHAIRAZ
HATORE BT EERT R -

& & & 4 £51812,900,0005% 7T (0B
Z A A= RS A B R [/ 2 100,00078
TL)  ERAFEELRAIBRRANG - KisE
24 [BHREAMBWEHRIE| BT ZEH N
EETAZARSANRMRAFEE 2 %5

e

RE E20165E3A31B IFFE BT
BERRALE N EMEREEBEAT
EHRBETR EECEBRTZE/ED
M HENEBUREMHEERBHA
U [B] 4 B8 2 1T R E T 1 0 1201643
A31BE AN E KB RREEE
49,034,000/ 7T °

REE2016F3A3IBILFE E£E2R
BITMSRBEERHBELEZERTY
ERWE T ITHETIRE - I RO
132,884,000/ T ° 1A & £201743A31H
IHFE - EE2BENMSREEESE
& 2B RPYEMHRE AT TR
3 8 [0 5 BT AR 2 MR 132,884,000 7T
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8. Finance Costs

Interest on:
— bank borrowings
— unsecured notes

— amount due to a related company

8. MKEH

S
—RITEE
—BEMEE
—BN—HERR KA

Imputed interest expense on
amount due to a related company

e —ERERRFRIALZ
FEEHF B R X

Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of
qualifying assets

BRABREERAT Z
BEEARNERR

Bank charges

RITEA

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the
general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying
capitalisation rates ranging from 3.00% to 3.33% (2016:

from 2.82% to 3.01%) per annum.

2017
HK$°000
FTERT

235,101
286,857
46,424

568,382

43,510

611,892

(186,768)

425,124
10,515

435,639

2016
HK$'000
TAT

214,705
206,623
68,422

489,750

61,388

551,138

(138,566)

412,572
11,376

423,948

RAFEZ2ERMEEERARTIR —KRE
BRERES WIRE RN FER300%E
3.33% (20164F : 2.82%%3.01% )5t & -
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S

9. Profit (Loss) Before Taxation 9. BR¥ANEF (FHE)
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Profit (loss) before taxation has been BrEIREA (EE) Bk
arrived at after charging:

Auditor’s remuneration ZELRT BN & 7,834 8,040
Allowance for doubtful debts REREHE 255 560
Depreciation of property, M BB EZIE

plant and equipment 184,035 204,482
Release of prepaid lease payments i bR FE T H & 5UIE 17,629 18,100
Commission expenses in gaming BEEB2HAERAX

operations (included in selling and (BEtABE X

marketing expenses) MBHEEER) 310,839 305,528
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEMFE s KEHERS

rented premises 8,696 7,690
Staff costs, including directors’ BEIXNA(BREEEME X

remuneration and retirement benefit RREMF S50

scheme contributions (Note 10) (Htat10) 650,068 669,538
Cost of properties held for sale ERERBRZZ

recognised as an expense FIEHEMERAE 535,970 1,779,584
Write-downs of properties under EREREAIZHIENEZ

development for sale recognised R AP YE 2 MR

as an expense 132,884
Cost of inventories in respect of EmRARI ZBER

hotel and hotel related operations B E R EE T E KA

recognised as an expense 53,676
Loss on disposal of property, HEME HBEREREZEE

plant and equipment 606
and after crediting: =T NE
Interest income FEWKA 90,894
Gain on disposal of property, plant and H&E Y% - #22 & & 2 Wz

equipment -
Reversal of write-downs of properties BIEHEZERFPMEL

under development for sale R 7 [ 132,884 -

136 Emperor International Holdings Limited X Z2&£E (B )ER Q7



10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employees’ 10.EZ - FETHRAEZHMERE
Emoluments S %

(i) Directors’ emoluments (i) EEM<2

2017 2017%
Fees #he 1,410
Other emoluments: Hipe
Salaries and other benefits (Note a) FoREMEBH (Hita) 11,319
Performance related incentive payment  EE£BEMH 2 ZEFE (Hitb)
(Note b) 11,000
Retirement benefit scheme contributions {18 3t &l 30 484
Total emoluments ams 24,213
2016 2016
Fees #he - 300 300 150 220 220 137 84 1,411
Other emoluments: Efhe:
Salaries and other benefits (Note a) FoREMBH (Hita) - 4,005 2,265 4,447 - - - - 10,717
Performance related incentive BRRAB RBTE
payment (Note b) (Hiztp) - 3,000 3,000 6,000 - - - - 12,000
Retirement benefit scheme contributions Bk FI3H &1 51 - 280 158 18 - - - - 456
Total emoluments liea - 7,585 5723 10,615 220 220 137 84 24,584
Notes: Hiat -
(a) Other benefits include non-exclusive use of motor vehicles, (a) EHtEMNSIEFERIEZRAE  #E - ST
yacht, club debentures and membership. EELREHE
(b) The performance related incentive payment is determined with (b) HRIVBWZEEFENZXBEENRN 2K
reference to the operating results taking into account certain SEEWEEETHAR - MARBEXLAL
adjustments, individual performance and comparable market BTISHIEET -

statistics for the year.

(c) Mr. Chan Hon Piu was appointed as Director on 18 August (c) BRZEREAN2015F8A1BHEZRTAE
2015. =
(d) Mr. Liu Hing Hung retired as Director on 18 August 2015. (d) BEEHEEN20154F8H18HRITEES-

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017  2016/2017 &3 137



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

fa o BV e B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £201743 8318 Lt F &

10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employees’
Emoluments — continued

(i) Directors’ emoluments — continued

The chief executives of the Company are also the
Directors and therefore the emoluments of the chief
executives have been disclosed above.

The executive directors’” emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The emoluments of non-executive director and
independent non-executive directors shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company.
(i) Employees’ emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, three (2016: three) were Directors whose
emoluments are set out above. The total emoluments
of the remaining two (2016: two) individuals were as
follows:

Salaries and other benefits Fe hEMETR
Retirement benefit scheme R K& Fll 5H &4t 53¢

contributions

STATEMENTS

10. 85  IEFRABZHERIE
BHH- 2

()

(i)

=

M=

ExMe—~&

ARREBITRABNMSES  FHit
ITRTRABZMEE R EXHE-

A EFTRTESHE ERIEREKE
SLVEIEA R A MR B EHATREAR
52 8B - LA EFTURIFMITE S MB
VIFRITEENME T BIERKRTE
EARBE SRR Z RFFH IR -

& B 3 B
EAREBEREZESFHMALH 35
(20165 :3%) AZE S HEZMEEH
R EX o h T 2% (2016%F 1 28 ) i 3
AT FB@sEmT -

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000

4,500,001 7T £5,000,000/%8 7T
9,500,001% 7T & 10,000,000/ 7T

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TET
14,713

125

14,838

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TRET

1
1

No emolument was recognised or paid by the Group
to the Directors as compensation for loss of office and
inducement to join for both years. No Director had
waived any emoluments during both years.

REEFEER NEBEREER S
NFEFERRERLAERFEM
AREEZ2HH-RREFEA
BERERERTMUHNE -
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10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employees’
Emoluments — continued

(iii) Retirement benefit scheme

10. 5 IEFRARZHERIE
BHH- 2

=

M=

(iii) BRIRBERIGHE

The Group participates in both defined contribution
schemes which is registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the
‘ORSO" Scheme) and the mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) established under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of independent trustees. Employees
who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to
the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a
choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching
to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining
the Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required to
join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit cost charged to profit or loss
represents contributions payable to the funds by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
Where there are employees who leave the ORSO
Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the
contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the
amount of forfeited contributions.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
retirement scheme for all qualifying employees of a
subsidiary of the Group in Macau since 1 September
2014. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under control of
independent trustees. The retirement scheme cost
recognised in profit or loss represents contributions
payable to funds by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the scheme. Where there are employees of the
Group who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

AEEL2HMERERREE D7
RIRBREBR SR IRGT EEA M2
R AE S ([BERAREE) &
M2000F 12 ARIEHR Bttt tES
FHEVERMIER S 2 @bl RTERETE
(IEEeT8]) - ZErT Bz EEH
REBZEEDHERE WUESE
ANFERZHABILEAETE LR
SRTE DT B AT B R IRET&IAK
B REREHRERBEBRERIN
FFEAREmMR AR E R
2000912 B 1H sk LA B FT A 37T A B K
EEZREHAZMNEESFTE-

KBz AR 2R ER T RA
SERAMEIRANETE 2 bR H%
EESEMNZ MR- HERBNER
TEHHFFRDBEENKTE K
SR BIZA S 2 kAT B U AR R
BRI i H00R

REB B2014F9 A1 BRI AL R
VR Z —ENBARNMEEE
11E B & e B FURIKET 8l o 5% 5T
gl EERBMETALEG 2 ESR
F UTEASEEZ2EES>H RB&E
AR 2 BRI A B AN EILR
EFRBIFTET L R EME S FT{EZ
e WAL BE B NEFCEE B A
BRHEFHE AEBEEAHFEIRE R
W RS REVE T EIR,
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10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employees’
Emoluments — continued

(iii) Retirement benefit scheme - continued

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Macau
and the PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefit schemes operated by the Macau and PRC
government. The Group is required to contribute a
certain percentage of its payroll to the retirement
benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

During the Year, the retirement benefit scheme
contributions were HK$14,592,000 (2016:

INANCIAL

STATEMENTS

10. B2 FEARASSHERE
B =
(iii) BARERIHE -2

REBRFRFBMB AR ZES
Ty5 Bl A HRPIEAT &P BT E R
ZBERERERBHEZKE - &
SEERIES FZ FEE DA%
SIRIBFIFH B - AEEHZE
REFIET2IBRE Y BEEERNE
RRATEI 2 e T TR

RAFEE  RIKEFEEERERE A
14,592,0007%; 7T, (2016%F : 13,535,000

HK$13,535,000). ABIT) °
11. Taxation Charge 1. HIEX H
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FHEIT
Tax charge comprises: MIEX BB
Current tax AN EAFIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEAENED 171,058 166,258
Macau Complementary Income Tax BPISRH AT
(“CT") (TFiSmzEil) 53,942 64,659
UK Income Tax KRG 448 —
225,448 230,917
Reversal of CT provision in prior years [0l £ & BT /5 7o 5 B & (70,974) (39,837)
Under(over)provision in prior years TFEBRETT (BREEHE)
CT FTis i (1,446)
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax (‘EIT") FREMEFRERH
([EmEHL) (249)
Hong Kong Profits Tax EEMNEN (181)
UK Income Tax FHEFTSH 159
1,435 (1,717)
Deferred taxation (Note 32) EIERIE (M 3232) 801,088 189,669
956,997 379,032

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

FBNEH 0 BIRIBEMEFE 2 BT e
AR M IR 16 5%=1H
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11. Taxation Charge — continued

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards.

The CT is calculated at the applicable rate of 12% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Pursuant to the CT law, the CT assessment on the estimated
assessable profit in a year of assessment will be lapsed in
five consecutive years after that year of assessment. At the
end of the reporting period, the Directors reassessed the
adequacy of the CT provision and determined to reverse
part of the Group’s relevant CT provision of HK$70,974,000
for the 2011 year of assessment (2016: HK$39,837,000 for
the 2010 year of assessment) accordingly.

UK Income Tax is calculated at the applicable rate of 20%
of the estimated assessable profits for both years.

The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit (loss) before taxation per consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

1. BEXH-—Z&

BIEFPRSEMEEE ([EMERE])
M EMEBEEIIES - P EKE AR
2 TR AH2008F1 A1 B 5] A25% °

PR ZER o0 RIRRIEF E 2 (T IERR
B A 2 BRI R A12%ET 5 -

BEMSHTERE XA HEEHTE
B NP S el A= A e
ERAEEEFERIN - INREHR &
EEEHNMEATSEERBE 2 TR
A R TE KB FE B 0] A £ B FA201 14 5T L AR
E 2 585 AR 8 P15 1l 7 AR 570,974,000
T (20165 - B 2010F IR EE 2
39,837,000/ 7T,) °

REIPTSHE 00 RlIR M EFE 2 fh T ERR
e F) 2 S8 A B R 20%5T 5

FARAS H A A B m LMK
ImRFTELZ BREATEA (B8R ) BRI -

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Profit (loss) before taxation BrELRT R A (E1E) 4,647,797 (1,850,633)
Tax (charge) credit at Hong Kong BEBFGH16.5%TEZ
Profits Tax of 16.5% MIE (ZH) &R (766,887) 305,354
Tax effect of share of result of DME—HEEDEEEL
a joint venture Mg 2 (11) (13)
Tax effect of income not taxable MM S BARTBAZ
for tax purpose mEEE 415,309 185,460
Tax effect of expenses not deductible RBBmME AR L2
for tax purpose M (423,581) (822,985)
Utilisation of tax losses previously B AR EER T IEEE
not recognised 3,041 16,781
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised MR IBEEE 2 MG 2 (18,974) (23,194)
Tax effect of deductible temporary ARERAIRERMEER 2
differences not recognised mGEE (16,116) (27,810)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiariesfff B 2 sl i H b Al A#E &
operating in other jurisdictions REBPERIR 2 E (221,937) (53,612)
Reversal of tax provision in prior years 0] 3@ & & £ 18 B 5 70,794 39,837
(Under)overprovision in prior years BEFE (BETR)BHEES (1,435) 1,717
Others HAth 2,800 (567)
Taxation charge for the year FARIEBL T (956,997) (379,032)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 BA 85 R K B
For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £2017E3A31H [t FE
12. Dividends 12. R 2
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FTERT FHET

Dividends recognised as distribution FABRRIEDIRZRE :
during the year:

Final dividend paid for B2IK20165F REAR B
2016: HK$0.055 per share & H20.0557 7T
(2016: HK$0.06 per share (20164 : B£2015%F Ik %
in respect of 2015) & %0.06%57T) 202,266 220,653
Interim dividend paid for BEIR2017F R ERR 8. -
2017: HK$0.045 per share FH0.0457 T
(2016: HK$0.045 per share (20164F : FE20164F K 3
in respect of 2016) & H20.0457 7T ) 165,489 165,489
367,755 386,142
The final dividend of HK$0.058 per share in respect of BEEoREBEREHE017F3A31ALF
the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: final dividend €5 1%0.058/% 7T (20164F : RAARR B &M%
of HK$0.055 per share) amounting to approximately 0.055% 7T ) 2 RHAMR B+ #£49213,298,000
HK$213,298,000 has been proposed by the Directors and is BT AR RREERRAFAS L
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming BERARIER -
annual general meeting.
13. Earnings (Loss) Per Share 13. B8R EF (F8)
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) RARVEBIRAFEE ARG SARER K
per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the SERF (EE) DR EA TE8EE
Company are based on the following data:
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHET

Profit (loss) for the purpose of basic HRTEEREARBERR
and diluted earnings (loss) per share (&#8)KFERZER (EHE)

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to AN & #E A A &k F € % 7
the owners of the Company (EHE) 3,483,150 (2,391,188)
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13. Earnings (Loss) Per Share — continued

Number of shares BB EE

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue for the purpose of basic
and diluted earnings (loss) per share

InfEF B

M B ERERLEERR
(B BERZERTL AR

13.8REF (FER) —~&

2017 2016

S 13,676,189,998

The Company does not have any dilutive potential ordinary
share for the year ended 31 March 2017.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares had been
adjusted by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares issued due to the exercise of share options of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2016.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, there were no dilutive
effects from the Company’s outstanding share options as
the exercise price of these share options was higher than
the average market price of the Company’s shares for the
year.

There were no outstanding share options in issue by the
Company’s subsidiary, Emperor E Hotel, during the years
ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

REZE2017F3A31H IEFE » AR R &
ERBEEE L B

TR NRE S E B s B 220163 H
S1BEIEFERITEANABREmMEITZ
TRARINAE B E AR

HZE2016FE3A31HILFE - ARBZEE
ITEB I BEE W E - REANE B
FEZEBRIENITEESHRANRRRG

HE2017F R2016F3A31HILFE » I
AARNAIKE AR K2 IREEE T 7 14
RITEEARRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fa o BV e B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £201743 8318 Lt F &

14. Investment Properties

At fair value BROAEE

At beginning of the year REA 27,671,772
Exchange realignment IMEFHE (98,055)
Additions NE 965,930
Disposals & (13,000)

Transfer from investment properties BXEERRENEEES
under development to completed ~ ©ERRENE
investment properties

Transfer from completed investment HE XX ENEEES
properties to investment properties % EFRIEENE

4,440,885

under development (Nofe a) (Hiita)

Transfer from prepaid lease BENEERER
payments and property, plant mE BEREEE
and equipment to completed REBBEREENE
investment properties (Note b) (Hitb)

Transfer from completed investment HE &KX ENEEES
properties to property, plantand ~ #)% - 2Rk E

equipment (Note ¢) (Note 15) (Hite) (Hi3#15) (53,800)
Increase (decrease) in fair value, net A /8 BEE 1 (Rl ) F 4 2,439,326
At end of the year RER 35,384,858
Notes:

8,831,000
(359,385)
604,593

(4,440,385)

788,677

5,424,000

(a) During the year ended 31 March 2016, certain completed
investment properties were transferred to investment properties
under development upon commencement of redevelopment of the
properties with a view to earn rentals and for capital appreciation at a

fair value of HK$819,000,000 at the date of transfer.

14. REW#E

Pkl 28409060 8,116,000 36,525,060
U] (44443)  (235,822)  (280,265)
DTAbPEN 2140461 1,208,699 3,349,160
(13,000) (3,600) - (3,600)
1857590 (1,857,590) -

(819,000) 819,000 -

80,000 - 80,000

(53,800) . ; B
CPPLIEN  (3948,206) 780,713 (3,167,583)
IR 27,671772 8,831,000 36,502,772

(a) REZE201653A31BILFEE - ETE%
RISEMERMESEFRBKDEES
BRPLEME WUBRRASRER
HEAEE REREBBZANEER
819,000,000 T

144  Emperor International Holdings Limited

o EEER)ERAT



14. Investment Properties — continued

Notes: — continued

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group leased out some
of the owned-occupied properties with prepaid lease payments
for rental income. The properties were transferred to investment
properties and measured at fair value at the date of transfer
accordingly. The fair value of the properties at the date of transfer
was HK$31,800,000 (2016: HK$80,000,000). The gain on revaluation,
amounting to HK$30,500,000 (2016: HK$72,796,000) was credited to
the asset revaluation reserve and non-controlling interests directly.

(c) During the year ended 31 March 2017, certain properties originally
held for rental purpose were reclassified to property, plant and
equipment upon commencement of owner-occupation at fair value of
HK$53,800,000 at the date of transfer.

The carrying amounts of investment properties comprise
properties situated in:

Hong Kong A
The PRC h
Macau !
UK =E

14. REYE &

et —4&

(b) REZE2017F3A31HLFE  REHIMN
BREAERELEEE TEBMENES
AEBA - ZEMECEBREREME
WHERBBEEEARBENE - WX
PR A 2 A 28 E A31,800,0007
7T (2016%F : 80,000,000/ Jr) ° & & W =5
30,500,000i% 7T (20164F : 72,796,000i8
T BHEEFABESHHERIEERE

me

(c) REZE2017F3A31RILLFE & TV
BIEHERRZMENFARE BERRE
# B B3 70 fB{E53,800,000/8 Tt 2 48 A1)
¥oMERRE

WEME Z REEBRBRLN A T8
SR

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx TAET
28,694,575 EEPIRILRL
9,106,500 5,952,500
2,444,900 2,259,500
562,883 735,507
JURLEREEE 36,502,772

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at
each of the reporting period and at dates of transfers have
been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on
those dates by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited and Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited,
independent firms of qualified professional property valuers
not connected with the Group, in accordance with the
HKIS Valuation Standards (2012 Edition) issued by Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors and in accordance with VS300-
Valuation for Financial Reporting defined in the International
Valuation Standards issued by the International Valuation
Standard Committee.

AEBMARBLLHEERAERIESR
HENBER G Y FEEDIERASRE
EEAFELNBRARRBREYE -

AEBIREMERN S WS B R E R A
ZARBEDNRERHEMNFTMITER
RA P EBITERFELRERNBRAA]
(EAREYERECBIAEREXY
EfHER)N%E RHIREEE A E/ME
SEMzEBREMBEM[ERER (2012
Fh) & BIFRFHEERIE & & R 2 Bl
AT EZERIPR SAE 2 IVS300— BA 1§ ¥R (i (B
HEIT 2 BEMERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fa o BV e B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £201743 8318 Lt F &

14. Investment Properties — continued

For completed investment properties, the valuations have
been arrived at with reference to market evidence of recent
transaction prices for similar properties and rental income
using the applicable market yields for the respective
locations and types of properties.

For investment properties under development, the
valuations have been arrived at assuming that the
investment properties will be completed in accordance with
the development proposals and the relevant approvals for
the proposals have been obtained. The valuations include
key factors such as the market value of the completed
investment properties, which are estimated with reference
to recent sales evidence of similar properties in the nearest
locality as available in the relevant market with adjustments
made by the valuers to accounts for differences in the
locations and other factors specific to determine the
potential sales proceeds, and deducting the development
costs and required profit margin from the investment
properties which are derived from the interpretation of
prevailing investor requirements or expectations at the
valuation dates.

During the Year, the net interest capitalised in
investment properties under development amounted to
HK$105,521,000 (2016: HK$75,032,000).

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

There has been no change to the valuation technique during
the year. The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and key inputs used),
as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.

14. REWE—Z

REERIEEYER S  HEREEE
W% 2 TS R S B R B s
ZHrB R 2 EATS a2 A A
Br-

PERTPREMEMS HEIBRERERE
MESESRBEBRSTEXMEL - B 3%
A EID ERELLE - HEBEREEXK
BYEsmESETEERERER Y2REO
MR S Al B B mibR AR 2 FAR
WERETHOR MiAEMEREBLEER
REMEBRRELFE  UETELH
EZFEIA BB EYE 2 BEK
ARFAERKZFEE (EHFIRER
BREENEERMZ 2RAAHMER
") -

RAFEE BRAVEMWENERL
A B % 58 5105,521,00078 7T (20164 :
75,032,000/ 7T) °

WG E 2 AREER MEZ2&RER
RERZR SRS 2R AR

FA-MERMLESES TRIZHAR
HEREMFE 2 ASEEIAEE 2ER
(LHERFRA 2 MERM & E EEm AR
B ARRBEAAEBEFEZHARE
ABEREANEEFEMBAZAE
BFH (B1E3R) °
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14. Investment Properties — continued

Investment properties
held by the Group in
the consolidated
statement of

financial position
RESBBMRZ SR
KEEEECRENF

Hong Kong
R

Retail shops/complexes

TERR/ A5

Retail shops/complexes

TERR/ A5

Fair value
AER
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHL
15,723,780 16,079,450
3,135,500 3,339,000

Fair value
hierarchy
AREE
£}

Level 3

3%

Level 3

3%

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
fhER AR
TERARE

Direct comparison method
with market unit rate as the
key input

BREEE NMRENES
FRTERARR

Direct capitalisation method
with market unit rent and
capitalisation rate as the
key input

BERERLE DHSEN
BERBALEER
IERAHE

14. REYE &

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTTRRRALE

Market unit rate, mainly taking
into account the time, location,
frontage and size, between the
comparables, which ranged from
HK$5,800 to HK$730,000 (2016:
HK$5,000 to HK$950,000) per
square foot

TEENRE TEEHRARE
NERZER NE BEER
AN ENEETHRE8008TE
730,000/ T (20165 : 5,000 T E
950,000% 7T )

Monthly rent, based on saleable
floor area using direct market
comparables and taking into
account of time, location, frontage
and size of properties, which
ranged from HK$35 to HK$1,400
(2016: HK$38 to HK$1,700) per
square foot

ARG BENSERVLENE
QUERERR TEHRMEL
BE-AE BEARAN ENT
S HRIBETE 008
(2016% : 38 L Z1,700% L)

Capitalisation rate, taking into
account the capitalisation of
rental income potential, nature of
the properties, prevailing market
condition, which ranged from
2.4% t0 3.7% (2016: 2.4% to
3.5%) per annum

BRE Gt REERSMAL
EXl % tE RiomE
R ENFEE24%E3.7%
(2016% 1 2.4%%3.5%)

Sensitivity/relationship

of unobservable inputs

to fair value
TIERBANBHAAEE
ZBBE/BfF

A significant increase in the
market unit rate used would
result in a significant increase
in the fair value of the
investment properties, and
vice versa.

FRRmEEESARE M
SIREENELAARE
AEEM R

The higher the monthly rent,
the higher the fair value, and
vice versa.

AldR HALBEYS
RZ I

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair value,
and vice versa.

ERfcREE ARAEE
BE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fa o BV e B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £201743 8318 Lt F &
14. REYE £

14. Investment Properties — continued

Investment properties
held by the Group in

the consolidated Sensitivity/relationship
statement of Fair value  Valuation techniques Significant of unobservable inputs
financial position Fair value hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
REABBERRRSD AEE  EERER TREBAUBHAAER
rREfRAZRENE RAERE £ EZ:1DN ¢ EXTURRGAHE <HRBE/BE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx TR
Retail/commercial/ 2,323,000 1,828,000 Level 3 Residual method
residential properties The key inputs are:
under development
BRTTE/ AR/ E3k RE%
EENE FERAEES:
(1) Gross development Gross development value on The higher the gross
value completion basis, mainly taking development value, the
into account the time, location, higher the fair value, and vice
design, frontage, layout and size versa.
between the comparables and
the properties, which ranged from
HK$40,000 to HK$95,000 (2016:
31,200 to HK$90,000) per square
foot
(1) AEEEE REREENREEEE FELHR  REEEEUR MAAEBE
AHENEELENEREHE BE RZTA-
fiE st BEE HERA)
ENTETFRRI00005TE
95,000/ (20164 : 31,2008 L E
90,000%7T)
(2) Developer's profit Developer's profit at 12% - 15% The higher the developer's
(2016: 12% - 15%) taking into profit, the lower the fair value,
account the construction progress and vice versa.
of the propert
(2 EERBZEN BREZENR12%-15% EERRENER MRAEE
(20164 :12%—15%) * {051 ]t BE RZM%e
AMELTIRER
Offices premises 4,769,690 3925900 Level3 Direct comparison method ~ Market unit rate, mainly taking into A significant increase in the
with market unit rate as the  account the time, location, quality, market unit rate used would
key input floor level and size, between the result in a significant increase
comparables, which ranged from in the fair value of the
HK$7,600 to HK$37,600 (2016: investment properties, and
HK$7,000 to HK$32,700) per vice versa.
square foot
BRENE E3%k BRRRE UmBELEe TRENES FEEHRTLR FrRAmIZERE & KREME

FAIRBANE

NEBZBE LB ZX BER
AN ENTFEERRT 600ETLE
37,6003 7T (20164 : 7, 0008 L &
32,700%7T)

SBEENEZ AABEAR
B R
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14. Investment Properties — continued

Investment properties
held by the Group in
the consolidated
statement of

financial position
REGABHRR RSP
FEEBELRENE

Industrial premises

Im%

Residential premises

Macau
P

Retail shops/complexes

TEHR/ES

Fair value

AER
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THL
1,807,795 1,588,995
934,810 793,920
1,061,900 1,066,800

Fair value
hierarchy
DAEE
E1H

Level 3

3%

Level 3

ERH

Level 3

F38h

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HERHR
EL:LP8 ¢

Direct comparison method
with market unit rate as the
key input

BREBE NMRENES
FREIERAZRE

Direct comparison method
with market unit rate as the
key input

BREEE NHRELES
[FREZHAHE

Direct comparison method
with market unit rate as the
key input

BRLEE A5
[FREZHAHE

Bg

14. REYE — &

Significant
unobservable inputs

EATUBRBARE

Market unit rate, mainly taking into
account the time, location, quality,
floor level and size, between the
comparables, which ranged from
HK$2,000 to HK$7,900 (2016:
HK$1,600 to HK$7,100) per
square foot

MHENAS TELHRALE
NEBBE NE ZE EER
AN ENTFEFRR2000ELE
7,900/ (20165 : 1,600 T E
7,100%7)

Market unit rate, mainly taking into
account the time, location, quality,
view, floor level and size, between
the comparables, which ranged
from HK$5,200 to HK$26,500
(2016: HK$4,400 to HK$25,000)
per square foot

MHENRS FREGRANENE
RzBRENE B 28 EER
AN ENTEEARS, 20081 E
26,5005 7T (2016% : 4,400 T E
25,000 L)

Market unit rate, mainly taking
into account the time, location,
frontage and size, between the
comparables, which ranged from
HK$6,000 to HK$162,000 (2016:
HK$6,800 to HK$151,000) per
square foot

THENES TEEHRALR
NEBZBE LE BREAR
RN ENFETHR6,0008 T E
162,000/ 7 (2016 : 6,800 L%
151,000%7)

Sensitivity/relationship

of unobservable inputs

to fair value
TIREBAUBHAAER
Z8RE/BE

A significant increase in the
market unit rate used would
result in a significant increase
in the fair value of the
investment properties, and
vice versa.

FRAmEEEEARE A
SIRRENF L AABEAR
BN RZR

A significant increase in the
market unit rate used would
result in a significant increase
in the fair value of the
investment properties, and
vice versa.

FRATEELASARENK
SIBRENEZAABEXRR
B Rz

A significant increase in the
market unit rate used would
result in a significant increase
in the fair value of the
investment properties, and
vice versa.

ARAmEELEERBEN
Mol B ENE ARER
REBEM K25

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017

2016/2017 E£ 3R

149



NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fa o BV e B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £201743 8318 Lt F &

14. Investment Properties — continued

Investment properties
held by the Group in
the consolidated

statement of
financial position Fair value
REABBERRRSD
FREfEELRENE MEE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TR
Retail/commercial 1,343,000 1,153,000
properties under
development
ERTEE/HENE

Fair value
hierarchy
AREE
4

Level 3

ER

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HERHR
EZ:1DN ¢

Residual method
The key inputs are:

REE
IEGAEES:

(1) Gross development
value

(1) FAEEEE

(2) Level adjustments

0 BESE

(3) Developer's profit

(3) EERMZEM

14. REYE — &

Significant
unobservable inputs

EATUBRBARE

Gross development value on
completion basis, mainly taking
into account the time, location,
design, frontage, layout and size
between the comparables and
the properties, which ranged from
HK$33,495 to HK$167,476 (2016:
HK$31,650 to HK$158,252) per
square foot

RERERNRARLEE T2
EARULBNEEZENER
BE LB R BEE HRR
K ENFEFAHRI3 4958 T E
167,476/ 70 (20167 : 31,6507 7T
£158,252% 1)

Level adjustment on individual floor
of the properties ranged from
about 20% to 35% (2016: 20% to
35%) on specific levels

NERRIEEZBERE N THE
BEZ#20%235% (20165 :
20%Z35% )

Developer's profit at 7.5% (2016:
12%), taking into account the
construction progress of the
property

BREE R R7.5% (20165
12%) S RENECIRER

Sensitivity/relationship

of unobservable inputs

to fair value
TIRRRANBHAAEE
<HRBE/BE

The higher the gross
development value, the
higher the fair value, and vice
versa.

REeEEER NAREER
BE RZTA-

The higher the upward level
adjustment, the higher the fair
value, and vice versa.

BELEES AAREE
BE RZIHRe

The higher the developer's
profit, the lower the fair value,
and vice versa.

BRAENEE AALEE
BE R
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14. Investment Properties — continued 14. REY¥E 42

/M=

Investment properties
held by the Group in

the consolidated Sensitivity/relationship
statement of Fair value  Valuation techniques Significant of unobservable inputs
financial position Fair value hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
RESBBRR RS NAEE  HERWER TIRRRANBHAAEE
rEEfREZRENE MER E1H EZ:1-DN ¢ EXTURRGAHE ZBRE/ BF
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
Residential premises 40,000 39,700  Level 3 Direct comparison method ~ Market unit rate, mainly taking into A significant increase in the
with market unit rate as the ~ account the time, location, quality, market unit rate used would
key input view, floor level and size, between result in a significant increase
the comparables, which was in the fair value of the
HK$7,200 (2016: HK$7,200) per investment properties, and
square foot vice versa.
Fen% ER ERERE UMBELAE THELES FREHRILR xRS BAE S KBRS
ERIREAHE NEECEE LB EX 2B 8 SIBREVMEZLABEAR

ERAN EAEFHRT 2008 B Rz %o
(20165 : 7,200 7T )

The PRC
g
Retail shops/complexes 102,500 102,500  Level 3 Direct comparison method ~ Market unit rate, mainly taking A significant increase in the
with market unit rate as the  into account the time, location, market unit rate used would
key input frontage and size, between the result in a significant increase
comparables, which ranged from in the fair value of the
HK$1,700 to HK$3,700 (2016: investment properties, and
HK$1,700 to HK$3,700) per vice versa.
square foot
TERE/ 5 £34k EREBRE UMGELAE THELES FEEHRILR PR M AR S AEE M
EREERAUE NEBBE LE BEAR BalBRENE R ABE

KN ENFEEART 70080 E REEM R2ZHe
3,700 7T (20165 : 1,700 T &
3700 7T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fa o BV e B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £201743 8318 Lt F &
14. REYE £

14. Investment Properties — continued

Investment properties
held by the Group in

the consolidated Sensitivity/relationship
statement of Fair value  Valuation techniques Significant of unobservable inputs
financial position Fair value hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
RESBBRR RS AEE  EERER TREBAUBHAAER
rREfRAZRENE RAERE £ EZ:1DN ¢ EXTURRGAHE <HRBE/BE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TR
Retail/commercial 1,758,000 5,850,000 Level3 Residual method
properties under The key inputs are:
development
BRAEE/HENE E3 RE%
FTERAEES:
(1) Gross development Gross development value on The higher the gross
value completion basis, mainly taking development value, the

(1) FAEEEE

(2) Level adjustments

(3) Developer's profit

(3) BEHEN

into account the time, location,
design, frontage, layout and size
between the comparables and
the properties, which ranged from
HK$3,964 to HK$10,377 (2016:
HK$770 to HK$10,161) per square
foot

REREENFEEER TELHR
UEBNERZENER 2 ER
fi - Szt BEE HRRAN K
NFEFHRIG4ETE
10,3777 70 (2016 : T70A L2
10,1617

Level adjustment on individual floor
of the properties ranged from
about 55% to 95% (2016: 55% to
80%) on specific levels

NERRIEEZBERE N ThE
BB 2 #155%Z95%
(20164F : 55%%80% )

Developer's profit at 30% (2016:
3% to 30%), taking into account
the construction progress of the
property

BRE 287530% (20165 : 3%%
30%) BHRZNEZIRER

higher the fair value, and vice
versa.

REeEEER NAREER
BE RZTA-

The higher the upward level
adjustment, the higher the fair
value, and vice versa.

BELEES ULRER
R RZIM%-

The higher the developer's
profit, the lower the fair value,
and vice versa.

BREENEE AALEE
BE - RZM%e
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14. Investment Properties — continued

Investment properties
held by the Group in
the consolidated
statement of

financial position
RESBBMRRZSR
rEEfREZRENE

Retail shops/complexes

= A

Office premises

il

B/ A5

Fair value

AREE
2017
HK$'000
TR

848,000

6,398,000

2016
HK$'000
TR

Fair value
hierarchy
DAEE

£

Level 3

ERE

Level 3

ERER

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HERNR
EZ:1-DN ¢

Direct capitalisation method
with market unit rent and
capicalisation rate as the
key input

BEREMOE ATHEN
BERERLEEALIE
PN ¢

Direct capitalisation method
with market unit rent and
capitalisation rate as the
key input

BRERMOE ITHEN
BERERLEEALIE
BARR

14. REYE — &

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTTRRRALE

Monthly rent, based on saleable
floor area using direct market
comparable and taking into
account of time, location, frontage
and size of properties, which
ranged from HK$84 to HK$94
(2016: nil) per square foot

SRAS BENGERTLENE
JUEERERE YA RNEL
BB BEARADN ENT
S RABTEMET
(20165 : &)

Capitalisation rate, taking into
account the capitalisation of
rental income potential, nature
of properties, prevailing market
condition, which was 5.5% (2016:
nil) per annum.

BAE S REEREMAZ
B EZHE RT5
R - B REE.5% (20165 : )

Monthly rent, based on saleable
floor area using direct market
comparable and taking into
account of time, location, frontage
and size of properties, prevailing,
which ranged from HK$55 to
HK$68 (2016: nil) per square foot

SRAG BENGERTLENE
ZJUEEAERE YA RNEL
B UE BEARAN ENT
I REBETE68ETT
(20165 &)

Capitalisation rate, taking into
account the capitalisation of
rental income potential, nature
of properties, prevailing market
condition, which was 4.5% (2016:
nil) per annum

BRR @ REERERAZE
Ky PEHE BIHHHRR
EAEF45% (2016F &)

Sensitivity/relationship

of unobservable inputs

to fair value
FUBRERAHBHANER
ZHRE/BE

The higher the monthly rent,
the higher the fair value and
vice versa.

AEdR AIRALEELS:
RZ IR

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair value,
and vice versa.

EA xR BRABEY
[ B2 imie

The higher the monthly rent,
the higher the fair value, and
vice versa.

AREE ARrEEES
RZ A

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair value,
and vice versa.

EAEHR ARARE
BIE RZR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £201743 8318 Lt F &

14. REYE — &

14. Investment Properties — continued

Investment properties
held by the Group in

the consolidated Sensitivity/relationship
statement of Fair value  Valuation techniques Significant of unobservable inputs
financial position Fair value hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
RESBBMRRZSR DAEE  HERWER TURRRAYEHAREE
rEEfBEZRENE RAEE R TERAUE EXTURRGAHE ZBBE/ BF
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
UK
%E
Retail shops/complexes/ 562,883 735,507  Level3 Direct capitalisation method ~ Monthly rent, based on internal A significant increase in the
offices with market unit rent and floor area using direct market market unit rent used would
capitalisation rate as the comparables and taking into result in a significant increase
key input account of time, location, frontage in the fair value of the
and size of properties, which investment properties, and
ranged from HK$21 to HK$434 vice versa.
(2016: HK$24 to HK$500) per
square foot
TEBHR/ BB/ HAE ERI BREAE NTHEN  BAES BETSERILENE  FRATGEUESAEEMG

BEREALEEATE  CABBEAE TEHEOXZ RRENFE L AABEAR
BARE BE B BEERAN ENT B R

FERRETRA34E T
(20164 : 24B L2500 T)

Capitalisation rate, taking into
account the capitalisation of
rental income potential, nature
of properties, prevailing market
condition, which ranged from 3%
t0 3.2% (2016: 2.7% to 2.8%) per
annum

EReR @ REERERALZ
EXf-MELRE BiTmE
R AN T EF3%ZE3.2%
(2016 : 2.7%%2.8%)

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair value,
and vice versa.

BALERRR ROREE
BE - R
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14. Investment Properties — continued

Joint operation relating to investment properties
under development in the PRC

Some subsidiaries of the Company, Expert Pearl Investment
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Expert Pearl Group”) entered into a joint venture agreement
(the “JV Agreement”) with Shanghai Zhangxi Investment
Development Co., Ltd. (the “JV Partner”) to jointly develop
investment property under development located in Shanghai
(the “Property”). Expert Pearl Group and the JV Partner
intend to develop the Property into a commercial complex
(the “PRC Project”). Under the JV Agreement, the saleable
floor area would be split between the parties in equal shares
after the completion of the development of the Project.
Pursuant to the terms of the JV Agreement, the PRC Project
is accounted for as a joint operation.

In previous year, the Group filed an appeal against the
JV Partner, which was rejected and the JV agreement
shall continue to have effect. For details, please refer to
2011/2012 annual report.

As at 31 March 2017, the major asset in the PRC Project
is the investment properties under development with fair
value of HK$1,758,000,000 (2016: HK$1,633,000,000). The
site preparation work had been completed at the end of
the reporting period, the valuation has been arrived at by
adopting residual approach.

As at 31 March 2017, the amount of HK$167,262,000 (2016:
HK$178,210,000) represents the construction cost incurred
and receivable from the JV Partner.

14. REYE — &

Eﬁﬁﬁéqﬂ BRZBRPREMEZEEE
A ] Z M@ A F)Expert Pearl Investment
Limited & H MY 8 A 7] (%t 78 7= [ Expert
Pearl% @ ] ) #2Shanghai Zhangxi
Investment Development Co., Ltd. ([& &
BHEDIIvEEmE (6 m=E]) A
HEAFRBUN LM ERPIREME
(T#Z% 1) ° Expert Pearl 2B 2 & 251+
Bz MERRAMEREXNE ([HEE
Bl) -REBEE W ST HE KR TK
BB 2 ERBEEROERE S AIEEHE
5o RIBES SN FEIER ARS
BEFEG

RBEFE  AEBYEEBHRD EF-
ZEFWEOBAEHERELN-5E
FHIEFB2EI2011/20125 3 »

PR2017F3A31H FAREBEMEE
EBERERDPELEME EQAAE
& &1,758,000,000/8 7T (20164F :
1,633,000,000/ 7T ) © HIARAERE TIEC R
SRR WERARERETHE.

R2017E3A31H BEEAMEER A K
I A E R 2 58 A $167,262,00078 7T
(20164F : 178,210,000/ 7T, ) °
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. Y% - BB RRE

Hotel
Leasehold property
land and Hotel  Leasehold under
buildings  properties improvements construction Others Total
ARLHR ERARE
B EENE BENERE LES Hith g
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TER TERT TE R TERT TERT
COST OR DEEMED COST RARRAERE
At 1 April 2015 7201544718 212,420 2,221,989 377,126 880,690 438,334 4,130,559
Exchange realignment SNE AR (347) - (102) - (266) (715)
Additions NE - - 45,420 214,711 49,731 309,862
Revaluation of properties upon REBEEEKRENERZ
transfer to completed MEER
investment properties - 72,796 - - - 72,796
Transfer to completed HREZDEMBRENE
investment properties - (80,000) - - - (80,000)
Disposals HE& - - - - (6,512) (6,512)
At 31 March 2016 12016534317 212,073 2,214,785 422,444 1,095,401 481,287 4,425,990
Exchange realignment SNE AR (420) - (221) - (341) (982)
Additions NE - - 4,575 312,060 28,784 345,419
Transfer to completed BREOENRENE
investment properties - (1,146) - - - (1,146)
Transfer from completed BRADEKRENE
investment properties - 53,800 - - - 53,800
Disposals e - - - - (4,909) (4,909)
At 31 March 2017 R20175358318 211,653 2,267,439 426,798 1,407,461 504,821 4,818,172
DEPRECIATION wE
At 1 April 2015 w2015%4R18 50,663 279,909 218,374 - 319,821 868,767
Exchange realignment MERE (67) - (109) - (206) (382)
Provided for the year REE 7 EE 4,873 53,522 63,178 - 82,909 204,482
Eliminated on disposal HEREHE - - - - (5,622) (5,622)
At 31 March 2016 #2016%F3A31A 55,469 333,431 281,443 - 396,902 1,067,245
Exchange realignment MNERE (97) - (184) - (248) (529)
Transfer to completed BREEEKRENE
investment properties - (294) - - - (294)
Provided for the year REF 2 EE 4,854 55,301 52,986 - 70,894 184,035
Eliminated on disposal HEREH - - - - (4,816) (4,816)
At 31 March 2017 R201753A318 60,226 388,438 334,245 - 462,732 1,245,641
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2017 R20175358318 151,427 1,879,001 92,553 1,407,461 42,089 3,572,531
At 31 March 2016 #2016%F3A31A 156,604 1,881,354 141,001 1,095,401 84,385 3,358,745
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment - continued

The above items of property, plant and equipment other
than hotel properties under construction are depreciated on
a straight line basis of the following rates per annum:

Over the estimated useful lives
of 40 years or the unexpired
terms of the relevant leases,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold land and
buildings

Over the estimated useful lives
of 40 years or the unexpired
terms of the relevant leases,
whichever is shorter

Hotel properties

Leasehold improvements 10 — 20%

Others 10 - 33'/5%

As lease payments for land and buildings elements cannot
be allocated reliably, the entire lease is reclassified as a
finance lease and includes in the carrying amounts of the
leasehold land and buildings.

The carrying values of leasehold land and buildings and
hotel properties shown above are situated on land as
follows:

15. % - HBERRE 2

bz e R IEIAR (FERBEED®
BROM) TR T O F R A B R EITITE -

MELL  EFFAMERFEE+F
BF SAEBENZ
NN
(RBREERE)

fhEr A& MFER+F
SAREELAZ
£ T K JE i F
(ABEERE)

VLR YES

HEWMEEE 10—-20%

Hity 10—33"/5%

B i MEFE D 2 MEFIREAR] 5
ot BOBOEF T BEARERE 16
ERHEET M METZREE-

AR E 1 B T EE I E Y 2 BREE
KAIEIT

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTEx FHEIT

Leasehold land and buildings AAZHEELHRETF
in Hong Kong 72,691 74,904
Buildings in the PRC FEEF 4,735 5,352
Buildings in Macau SRPIEF 74,001 76,348
151,427 156,604
Hotel properties in Hong Kong EBBIEYE 658,987 678,208
Hotel properties in Macau SRPYE S Y % 1,220,014 1,203,146
1,879,001 1,881,354

Hotel property under construction BERERBEME

in Hong Kong 1,407,461 1,095,401

During the Year, the net interest capitalised in property,
plant and equipment amounted to HK$36,142,000 (2016:
HK$28,123,000).

RAFE W #BENBHEEEMNER
(bR B% 58 /536,142,0007% 7T, (20164F :
28,123,000/ 7T ) °
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16. Prepaid Lease Payments 16. A HERE
HK$'000
F&T
CARRYING VALUES R
At 1 April 2015 R2015F4 /818 644,578
Release for the year F AR (18,100)
Impairment loss recognised ERERBEEE (49,034)
At 31 March 2016 7R2016F3H31H 577,444
Additions NE 5,720
Transfer to completed BRSO ERIREME
investment properties (448)
Release for the year F AR (17,629)
At 31 March 2017 R2017E3831H 565,087
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT F& T
The Group’s prepaid lease AEBZENEERBERE:
payments comprise:
Leasehold land situated in Macau B ZEE i 565,087 577,444
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RWEMAWR -
— non-current portion —EREEF D 547,255 560,178
— current portion —mEE D 17,832 17,266
565,087 577,444

17. Interest in a Joint Venture

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group and
two independent third parties formed a new entity named
Superb Land Limited (“Superb Land”) of which the Group
holds 40% equity interest. Superb Land holds 100% interest
in Talent Charm Corporation Limited (“Talent Charm”),
being the property development company of a development
project located at Rural Building Lot No.1198, Shouson Hill
Road West, Hong Kong.

Cost of unlisted investments

Share of post-acquisition losses and
total comprehensive expense

FELEMERERA

BRUBREBRIEE M AR

17 R —RBEELEES

REZE2015F3A31 B ILFE - AEB R
HWLZE = FT KL — R 4 ASuperb Land
Limited ([Superb Land |) FOFTE S - N&E
B35 HA0%%# ° Superb Land## A 4%
BRAR ([HE]) Z2100%# % M A
RIAMEER NG EEREBEEMNRES
SEILETE 2 MBABEEH R ZE11985% o

Amount due from a joint venture

R —E A& % 2 IR

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TRET
(219) (151)
(219) (151)
630,406 599,498
630,187 599,347
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17.

18.

Interest in a Joint Venture — continued

As at 31 March 2017, the amount due from a joint venture
carries interest at 2.2% (2016: 2.2%) per annum. It has no
fixed terms of repayment and the Group has no intention
to exercise its right to demand repayment of the advance
within the twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, the amount is shown as non-current.

Details of the Group’s joint venture as at 31 March 2017 and
31 March 2016 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation

Name of joint venture and operation

= AR 3L B
EELELRE BB
Superb Land BVI/Hong Kong
RBRARS &5

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has given corporate
guarantee of HK$941,600,000 (2016: HK$941,600,000) to
a bank in respect of banking facilities granted to Talent
Charm, of which HK$556,000,000 (2016: HK$546,000,000)
has been utilised. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair
value of the guarantee is not significant.

In the opinion of the Directors, the joint venture is not
material to the Group and no disclosure of financial
information is considered necessary.

Deposit in Designated Bank Account for
Development Properties

The amount of HK$9,182,000 (2016: HK$9,685,000)
(equivalent to approximately RMB8,152,000 (2016:
RMB8,070,000)), was deposited to a bank account
designated under It R#GRFEEEERH as deposit
for resettlement for the investment properties under
development in the PRC. Such bank deposit is restricted for
settlement in relation to the resettlement work and carried
interest at 1.0% (2016: 1.20%) per annum. The deposit is
expected to be released within twelve months from the end
of the reporting period and classified as current assets.

17.

R—BEEETE R~
R20179F3A31H Uk —REA & E 2K
T8 JORER|R2 2% (20165F : 2.2% ) 5T 8.
ZFEVEETETS MASEEER
RS BRRAE121E B ATTE EAEF A Z SK(E
BB Al R IBAIAIERE -

201743 A31H K201653A31H - A&
BaEtRZFIRMT:

Proportion

of ownership
interest held

by the Group

Principal activity

TEBREFEREZ
FRERERLS FEXEK
40%  Investment holding
REER

18.

R20179F3 318 » 7N & B gt 4 2 & 1%
ZHRTMER —MRTIRECERER
941,600,000/% 7T (20164F : 941,600,000
7B 7T) - H 556,000,000 7T (20164 :
546,000,000/87C) EEEH - EER A 1
RZASBETEK

EER/ ZAZELEHUAEEMS AT
BEXRAiL BRETLERBEMBER -

RERYETHREERITER
P2
AEBERILAHGEREREERERIETE
R 17 8 B 17 A9,182,0007% 7T, (20164 :
9,685,000/ 7T) (#E M AR 8,152,000
7T (20164 : A R #8,070,0007T) ) " {EA
BN EERRERFPREME LS
ZRTERERNBIEEHEHEEL
E2 B E % WIRTF1.0% (20164
1.20% ) 518 o TEFT % T UG A H & B R A8
T —EARERITFEAE R EE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £20176E3A31H [t FE
19. Goodwill 19. &
HK$'000
THT
COST DN
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and MR2015F4H8 18 - 201643 A318 &
31 March 2017 20174 3H31H 56,683

For the purpose of impairment test, goodwill of
HK$54,743,000 (2016: HK$54,743,000) has been allocated
to hotel and hotel related operation of Emperor E Hotel (a
single cash generating unit “CGU").

During the Year, the Group performed an impairment
review for goodwill of Emperor E Hotel’'s gaming operation
based on cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets for the next five years and after the fifth
year, the projections are extrapolated using a constant
growth rate of 3% (2016: 3%) per annum for subsequent

7 #154,743,0007% 7T (20164F : 54,743,000
BLIZEE E0RERBIREFHEN
BIENBIERBER (BE—REEEEM
[REEAEEM]) DUETRERIR -

RAFE  AEBIRER ©RETRAE R
SIRENEBRER BB EITRER
é—JL Eﬁi/}lb%iﬁ B'JE/EF*XEEQEZE’%R
KRR  MEERFER REEFESF
S E 1R R3Y (20164F 1 3% ) #E1TTE Al -
B% %a““ZIﬁiFEEQZTH&E@%EE

years. The recoverable amount of the CGU of the gaming REREBEFE AUGTEFERAEREZE
operation is determined from value in use calculations. The TR TJ,\EWZTEE%? #RERER

key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those
regarding the discount rate, growth rate and expected
changes to revenue and direct costs during the year. The

WA R B A 2 B E R - sx BRI Ty iz
18% (2016%F : 18% ) ZHTiB K F LAY & -
PER IR B ERRER R Z TS

forecast is discounted using a discount rate of 18% (2016: ,éfﬁﬁzli IR B IR [E 2 157 TS
18%). The discount rate was determined with reference ERBETHERSGH ERERBAR
to weighted average cost of capital of similar companies HSE S O RIEA - WA RBEEA AR Z
in the industry and adjusted for specific risks associated '%WKEWTFLEI?@'J&E@ﬂmi@—ﬁix
with Emperor E Hotel's gaming operation. The growth rate B2 TBEIMSH AR S EA BN

does not exceed the long-term average industry growth
forecasts. Changes in revenue and direct costs are based
on past practices and the management’'s expectations of
future changes in the market. As the recoverable amount of
the CGU is higher than the carrying amount of the CGU, the
Directors consider no impairment loss is necessary.

Regarding the remaining goodwill of HK$1,940,000 (2016:
HK$1,940,000), it has been allocated to the CGU for the
lease of properties for the purpose of impairment test, and
no impairment is considered necessary.

AW S E SN IR S EA BN 2 RHEE -
WEERAERELRERSE-

Bt 88 T1,940,0007% 7T (20164F : 1,940,000
;%r_z)ZFﬁ mE  BETRENR %
Z2 %%*ﬂf—?ZfﬁiFE sfr- B
*Eﬁﬁﬁ/mﬁz

20. Other Assets 20. Hitt &=
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHEIT
Club debentures and membership, FREHFRSE THA
at cost 4,092
The club debentures and membership have indefinite life. eEF e AARRFER-
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21. Inventories

21. 78

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT T& T

Catering goods, at cost ERGFE EKA 13,745
22. Properties Held for Sale 22 FEHEZME

The carrying amounts of properties held for sale comprise

FHERE 2 MEZ BREEBBLNA T

properties situated in: FH Y
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Hong Kong BE 719,650
The PRC 28] 474
720,124

23. Properties Under Development for Sale 3. BFEHEZREDRYE

The amounts represent projects developed for sale after
completion. The properties under development for sale at
the end of the reporting period comprise situated in:

Hong Kong A

ERSBERERRIFELEREMERL
THE R EHR ZEFHEHEZERT
MEBIRLIN AT HIT VD -

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAET
1,309,714

Included in the amounts are properties under development
for sale of approximately HK$750,984,000 (2016:
HK$790,800,000) which are expected to be recovered after
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

During the Year, the net interest capitalised in properties
under development for sale amounted to HK$45,105,000
(2016: HK$35,411,000).

Joint operation relating to a development project in
Hong Kong

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the subsidiary of
the Company, Wealthy Wide Limited, entered into a joint
operation agreement with Urban Renewal Authority to jointly
develop property under development for sale located in
Hong Kong (the “HK Project”), which is intended to be
developed into a residential property. Pursuant to the
terms of the joint operation agreement, the HK Project is
accounted as the joint operation.

ZEFIERIECFIENE 2 ERPYED
750,984,000/ 7T (20164F : 790,800,000
To) B IR E BARREET = E A KK
|§| °

RAEE FHERECERPYHELER
(bR B (B A45,105,0007% 7T, (20164F :
35,411,000/ 7T) °

FRRRNEBEBZEBEZAEER

BE20165F3A31HILFE - AR Z B
RAFBARARENRERZBI AL
s AHARIERUNBBFEHE 2%
RAYE (EAEE )  ERERSEE
V)% - IRIBZ B E i 2 155K BEHE A
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24. Trade and Other Receivables 24. B R EMEKRRE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHB T F&TT

An analysis of trade and other B 5 R H M EYBGKRIE 2

receivables is as follows: DI
Trade receivables =07) 1 & 160,832 130,393
Chips on hand £15 121,245 148,033
Other receivables H b e WK IE 239,008 356,185
Deposits and prepayments e LB RIE 207,412 200,030
728,497 834,641

REBEHIR - RIBAEEE 5 RYGIR (41
B c RO EE R R ER H M

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables (net of
allowances) based on either the date of credit granted or

the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set out 2 BRER AT EA T -
below:

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT THET
0 - 30 days 0&30H 138,483 99,425
31 -90 days 31H Z90H 4,545 16,088
91 - 180 days 91H £2180H 3,293 1,980
Over 180 days 180H KA 14,511 12,900
160,832 130,393

S ERFIBR AR QR EIT WA EHR
REBHESFIE-

Chips on hand represent chips issued by a gaming
concessionaire in Macau which can be exchanged into their
cash amounts.

No credit period was granted to tenants of rental of AEETEABENE 2 ABARLEE
premises. Before accepting any new tenant, the Group will B o BRI TR A Z A - REEA
internally assess the credit quality of the potential tenant. HTLBEERABEAZEEER - AEEB
No credit period was granted to hotel customers generally BENTEMBEEEPREEER HE8
except for those high credit rating customers to whom an RiF 2PN MAARE 2 FHEER
average credit period of 30 days were granted. /308 °
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24. Trade and Other Receivables — continued

For gaming operation, the Group normally allows credit
periods of up to 60 days to its trade customers, except for
certain credit worthy customers with long term relationship
and stable repayment pattern, where the terms are
extended to a longer period.

Included in other receivables are amounts due from related
companies of HK$38,304,000 (2016: HK$34,585,000).
These related companies are indirectly controlled by AY
Holdings which is held by STC International being the
trustee of the AY Trust (Dr. Albert Yeung is the founder of
the AY Trust and a deemed substantial shareholder of the
Company). The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable within one year.

As at 31 March 2016, included in other receivables are
deposits received for sale of the Group’s properties of
HK$127,111,000 under the custody of the independent
lawyers on behalf of the Group (2017: Nil).

The carrying amount of trade receivables in respect of hotel
and hotel related operations does not have debtor which
was past due at the end of the reporting period for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss. Included
in the trade receivable balances are debtor balances of
HK$17,804,000 (2016: HK$14,880,000) that would otherwise
have been past due or impaired had the terms not been
renegotiated.

Included in the trade receivable balances in respect of
other operations are debtors with carrying amounts of
HK$9,642,000 (2016: HK$6,110,000) which are past due at
the end of the reporting period for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss.

2. E5 R HMBWRIE—Z

AEEEEMS ARB-—RAEESHE
FRERZ6E0A ZEEM HEETEER
i AE RS FRERREETEA
BEF A ERBEHR-

HAanEU G IE BRI A E N F 2 58
38,304,000/ JT (20164F : 34,585,000/
TC) e ERE N B AIG K E EIERME
Byl - M5 AE FEERRBAY Trust (15
BEAAY TrustZ BISZA @ W AR B AR A
ZEEBWE) 2 XFEASTC Internationalts
B BlzENAEER RENRENR—F

MEE -

#2016F3A31H - Efh W KIA B IEHLH
ERER 2 YEWE 2 1 $127,111,00078
T BB MR ERAEERE (20174 -
/) o

RIREER BERBEEEES2ES
JFE U5t 3K T B T M 3 4 360 HA R A 2 PR LR
A SEEWEEREEERE B
AR IE 4 B 4 B M BR 31 45 8217,804,000
78 7T (20164 : 14,880,000/ 7T) ° it &
R G ZEFES g BT ER
EE

HtER B FERFBLEHBIERT
189,642,000/ 7T (20164F : 6,110,000 7T
ZEYERF A EIRE @ A%
B EVER BB B
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24. Trade and Other Receivables — continued 2. B REMENRE-—Z

Aging of trade receivables in respect of other Hih¥K 2B ZEWKE
operations which are past due but not impaired (CRHERRE) ZER
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Overdue for: 360 Hf
1 - 30 days 1230H 6,110
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts AREREZ2EH
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
At beginning of the year F4 21,002
Impairment loss recognised R EEE 600
Amounts recovered during the year F AN EFKIE (40)
Write-off Hh 85 (10,347)
At end of the year RER 11,215

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with aggregate balances of
HK$11,470,000 (2016: HK$11,215,000), the management
considered these prolonged outstanding balances from
individual customers were in doubt. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group’s management closely monitors the credit quality
of debtors and considers the debtors that are neither
past due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality as
continuous partial repayments are receivable from these
debtors.

Included in trade and other receivables are the following

amounts denominated in currency other than functional
currency of the relevant group entities:

RMB AR

REEBHRIECEBETREZE S EK
FRIE - H iR 511,470,000/5 7T (2016
111,215,000/ 7T) * & 1 JE I 1 5E 1
FIEFEREEDRIHI/R 2 Etho KR
B ER S SRS AR

AEBEEEERYEERKER CEEE
= URBARFED S BERHSONES
FEYR AR R AN BN BB B 5% 5 R K
APARHEEER-

B 5 REAN YRR BT NI AR S E
ERZREBIMIINEREE 2R

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET

-I 12,286
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25. Pledged Bank Deposits/Short-Term

Bank Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash

Pledged bank deposits included (i) deposits of
HK$30,508,000 (2016: HK$685,645,000) pledged to banks
to secure for banking facilities granted to the Group; and
(i) a deposit of HK$329,000 (2016: HK$325,000) pledged
to a bank to secure for the use of ferry ticket equipment
provided by a third party to the Group. The pledged bank
deposits carry interest at fixed interest rate of 1.25% (2016:
range from 0.84% to 3.35%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2017, short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity of over 3 months but within one year
carried interest at fixed interest rates of 2.80% (2016: range
from 1.40% to 3.20%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and bank deposits with an original maturity of 3 months or
less, and carry interests at prevailing market rates which
range from 0.01% to 1.28% (2016: 0.01% to 1.25%) per
annum.

Included in pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in currency other than functional
currency of the relevant group entities:

RMB AR

25. BIEMRITEHEHRTE

ROBTEBRERE
EIERRITER BRGNS A T RITAE
RASEEERIRITRLE « 17 730,508,000
78 7T (20164F : 685,645,000/ 7T ) : K (i) B
ER T —ERITMEALREBFER—RE
=HRME I MEEEW 2 173(829,000/8 7T
(2016%F : 325,000/ 7 )  E MBI TIF K
1% & 7E F F F1.25% (20164F : 11 F0.84%
£335% )T EFIB -

2017938318 - REIEAB A=MEA U
B —FE AR Z R HR T SOR E E FH
&2 80% (2016%F : 1 F1.40%%£3.20% ) 5+
E*U /%\ ©

RITEBARSBEAEEIFEZHS
FREEAA=@ASKAT WIKBEITH
BERENF0.01%%21.28% (20164 :
001%%1.25% ) 5t E F B 2 R1TEH -

EHEIRRITER  EHRITFRERITA
SEIRE BIE TR EERE 2 ThEE
ERUINEE EE 2R

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
679,183

Analysed for reporting purposes for pledged bank deposits
as:

HEWHE WM E N2 ERBITERINT

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FE T

Non-current portion JEMENE 30,252
Current portion mENEB 7> 655,718
685,970
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26. Trade and Other Payables 26.

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set out

STATEMENTS

B RHEMENRE
RIS AL M E 5 FOAREE
R ABAEL Z RIS ATINT :

below:

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHE T F&T
0 — 90 days 0Z90H 19,408 27,871
91 - 180 days 91H £180H 236 80
Over 180 days 180H M £ 16 1
19,660 27,952
Construction payables and accruals ERNIERERESER 663,656 562,042
Other payables and accruals Hi N RIEREE A 269,718 249,057
Rental deposits received EWHEZS 268,660 314,468

Deposits received from sales HEMEMBR 2 Ze

of properties

= 129,517

1,221,694 1,283,036

27. Amount Due to a Related Company 27.

The amount is unsecured and carries interest ranging from
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (‘HIBOR”) + 1.25%
to HIBOR + 1.54% per annum (2016: HIBOR + 1.37% to
HIBOR + 1.53% per annum). The interest payable to the
related company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the AY Trust,
is calculated at 1.60% (2016: 1.60%) per annum at the end
of the reporting period.

During the Year, further advances from the related company
amounted to HK$729,863,000 (2016: HK$2,983,055,000)
and the Group partially repaid the principal of
HK$2,397,252,000 (2016: HK$2,938,198,000) to the related
company. The principal amount outstanding as at 31 March
2017 was HK$2,093,388,000 (2016: HK$3,760,777,000). It
was agreed with the related company that the Group will
repay the amount based on the sufficiency of its operating
cash flows determined by the management of the Group.
Therefore, the Group revises its estimates on the amounts
of repayments to the related company and adjusts the
carrying amount to be stated under current and non-current
liabilities in accordance with the revised estimated cash
flows on regular basis. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group calculates the estimated future cash flows at
effective interest rates of 3.25% (2016: 3.25%). During the
Year, the Group recognised a deemed capital distribution in
equity of HK$68,117,000 (2016: deemed capital contribution
of HK$80,041,000) due to fair value adjustment on initial
recognition of further advances from the related company in
current year.

FE {3+ — R BB 3 D B FUIE
EARBELAEER MEBFAKREE
RITRAERE ([BFRTEAEREMN
1.25% 2 BB IRITRIZENF B N01.54% (2016
F FFRBRITAEREIMI7%EEH
RITREIRENN53% ) stEF B - RERE
iR BB A (—HAY Truste 2 &
i@ A R)) 2 F B3R & F1.60% (20164
1.60% )5t&E o

RAFE - REBEBERRZHE—F
3 A729,863,000% 7T (20164 -
2,983,055,0008 T) - KREE D E &
289 AR £2,397,252,00058 7T (2016
£ :2,038,198,0005 7T ) T B E A &)
MR2017F3A3IBEMAEBE Z A S
%8 /2,093,388,000/8 7T (20164 :
3,760,777,000/8 7T ) © (X EARGIE A R TE
AEBBREAANEEEEEBH T 2 £&L
Beheanx eBEEERE At A&
BT HRBERT AT IR REETHIE
BERBARFIBZ i8R AEEH
NeERBRIIERBDABEZEEERER
RIFIAZEmME - N REHR AEEIR
BB K3 .25% (20164 : 3.25% ) st & {i
SRR ERE ARAFEHEEANR
FriRft 2 — S BR M HERIERA R
BEFARL NEBDREZNEREEE
K 43)Kk68,117,00078 7T (20164 : R {EHE
80,041,000 7T,) °
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27.

28.

29.

Amount Due to a Related Company
— continued

In the opinion of the Directors, the carrying amount of the
amount due to the related company of HK$1,522,755,000
(2016: HK$3,059,865,000) is not expected to be repaid in
the next twelve months based on the estimated repayment
schedule and the related company agreed not to demand
for any payment of this amount from the Group within one
year from the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, such
amount is shown as non-current liability.

Amounts Due to Non-Controlling Interests of
Subsidiaries

Amounts due to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries
comprise amounts of HK$120,800,000 (2016:
HK$132,000,000) which are unsecured and interest-free
shareholders’ loans due to non-controlling interests of Luck
United.

In accordance with the contractual terms of the
shareholders’ agreements, the interest-free amounts due
to non-controlling interests of Luck United are to be repaid
from surplus fund, which represents cash available in Luck
United, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary, and its
subsidiaries, after payment of all operating expenses and
payables including but not limited to bank loans and third
party loans which are due for repayment together with the
accrued interest.

At end of the reporting period, the management of Luck
United determined that Luck United has adequate available
surplus fund for the repayment of all principal amounts
outstanding to its shareholders. Therefore, the Directors
consider that the carrying amount of the amounts due
to non-controlling interests of HK$120,800,000 (2016:
HK$132,000,000) is repayable at the discretion of non-
controlling interests at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.

27.

28.

BN —EREQXRRIE &

EERAE ENBEARRBZE
& /A&1,522,755,000/% 7T (20164 :
3,059,865,000/87T ) * IRIE(AFHERFREIEK
FEATERAKRT—EAREE  BEQ
RIRER RS BRE—FATEERkAE
B HMERIARERIE - Fitt - BERIEY A
EmBAE-

%ﬁ[‘ﬁ%’&ﬂz#}"%ﬁﬂgé%ﬁ

FERTF B A B 2 IR AE RS AR IR 5B
120,800,0003% 7T (20164 : 132,000,000/%
7T) - H AR Luck United3Ei% it ss 2 &
IR BIRE R -

BIER R E A LG B Luck
UnitedFEIZRR 2 2 2 B IEIS A BB E
SEE BHESEREIEZENB AR
Luck United®X E i B R RN ATA &
EHE MEM B (2R ETRREHE
BZRTERNE=ZHAER CGERERF
B) Bz gARE -

RIREHIZK - Luck United & 12 B2 A Luck
United Bt RAIF 2 B#HE T AIEEERE
MRz 2R EERSTE - FLt EER
A 2017938318 K&20164E3A831H »
JE < 12 % 25 FUE BR 118 120,800,000/%
7T (20164F : 132,000,0007T ) 55 A fE 422 A%
B2 MEREMEERER-

Derivative Financial Instruments 20.fTEE@MIT A
Liabilities
afE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FHET
Derivatives not under hedge accounting WHEERY F A2 TET A
Interest rate swap contract MEEHE L 1,923
Foreign currency forward contract SN IR B & 4Y 14,777
16,700
Analysed for reporting purposes as BWmEMIT A
Current portion B AR 16,700
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29. Derivative Financial Instruments - continued
(a) Interest rate swap contract

The Group used an interest rate swap contract to
minimise its exposure to variability in cash flows arisen
from variable-rate bank borrowings by swapping
floating interest rates to fixed interest rates.

The major terms of the interest rate swap contract at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

At 31 March 2016

Notional amount Maturity
EREH Ep-CR
HK$500,000,000 21 June 2016
500,000,000/8 7T 201656 H21H

(b) Foreign currency forward contract

The Group used foreign currency forward contract to
minimise its exposure to variability in cash flows arisen
from expenditure incurred for the property development
projects in the PRC. The major terms of the foreign
currency forward contract at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

At 31 March 2016

29. fTHESMIE— 2
(@) RIEBEHEH
AEERAAREHAL  EBET
BRI BE T HR  HET B 4RT
BEEL RS RBEE Y AMEE
i

RBERR FMEEBEHENZTER
AT -

7201693 H31H

Receive floating Pay fixed
W R B9 5% B Bl = XA E E F 2R

3-month HIBOR 2.088%

FRRTAERE
(=@A)

(b) MEEHELH
AEBRAINERE ) FERT
IZ#L%%?*J?&IEE AXELAZRE
MERE 2 AR ERIE N RS
KoSMNERERHIEH 2 ER G T :

R201693H31H

Notional amount Maturity Forward contract rates
EREH EHH BHENER
1 contract to buy RMB300 Within one year RMB1 to HK$1.2363

million in aggregate
1M EHEHEA —FR
A R #300,000,0007T

ARBEATTH1.2363/8 7T
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30. Unsecured Notes 30. BIKHEE

2017 2016
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 FTERT FHET
US$110,000,000 unsecured notes 110,000,000 %z @ E
carry fixed coupon rate of FEBA48%TE AE
4.8% per annum, payable FF B H2018F I HA
semi-annually with maturity in ZEERERZREE
2018 at its carrying amounts (a) 851,906 851,490
HK$1,650,000,000 unsecured notes 1,650,000,000/% 7t % & &
carry fixed coupon rate of FRELS%TE ABYF
5% per annum, payable B HR2017FEH 2
semi-annually with maturity in EEARECRAE
2017 at its carrying amounts (b) 1,645,919 1,631,693
HK$1,000,000,000 unsecured notes 1,000,000,000/% JTi% & &
carry fixed coupon rate of FEBS%TE - BHEFXF
5% per annum, payable B 17 A20204F B B 2
semi-annually with maturity in BEMERECEREE
2020 at its carrying amounts (c) 995,963 994,707
HK$300,000,000 unsecured notes  300,000,000/% 7T 3% & &
carry fixed coupon rate of EE5%tE - EEY¥F
5% per annum, payable B A 2020F B Hf 2
semi-annually with maturity in EEMERZEEE
2020 at its carrying amounts (d) 299,054 298,763
US$38,000,000 unsecured notes 38,000,000 T 1% [& &
carry fixed coupon rate of FBA44%TE - BAEYF
4.4% per annum, payable B R2021F 2 2
semi-annually with maturity in EERRBECEREEE
2021 at its carrying amounts (e) 295,723 295,723
HK$800,000,000 800,000,000/ 7t (2016
(2016: HK$500,000,000) F 1 500,000,000 7 )
unsecured notes carry fixed REEFREBEL4%5TE
coupon rate of 4.4% per annum, AFFFNBIN2021F
payable semi-annually with N mERER 2
maturity in 2021 at BRE B
its carrying amounts (f) 792,168 494177
US$200,000,000 unsecured notes 200,000,000 7T 3% & & &
carry fixed coupon rate of 4% REA% R BEE¥F
per annum, payable semi-annually {5 B 37 720214 5| #§ =2
with maturity in 2021 at BEARE ZREE
its carrying amounts (9) 1,550,385 -
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30. Unsecured Notes - continued

30. BIE A EE 2

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FTERT FET
US$200,000,000 unsecured notes 200,000,000 7T #% & & F
carry fixed coupon rate of 5% RE5%:TE - BEE¥EN
per annum, payable semi-annually B R 20224 FI| 8] ~ £ K
with maturity in 2022 at HEEZREE
its carrying amounts (h) 1,541,013 -
HK$800,000,000 unsecured notes 800,000,000/ 7T 3% & & F
carry fixed coupon rate of RRAT%TE - BEEY¥EF
4.7% per annum, payable K BAE R 20224 B B~ &
semi-annually with maturity in BHERREE
2022 at its carrying amounts (i) 795,909 -
8,768,040 4,566,553
Less: Amounts due within one B —FREIHRIE
year shown under current (RREBAEET
liabilities ) (1,645,919) -
Amounts due after one year shown »— 1% F|HIFIAE
under non-current liabilities (RIERBEBEETIIR) 7,122,121 4,566,553
The proceeds from the issuance of unsecured notes are BITEEINRIE 2 S FARAEREE

intended to use for general working capital purposes of the
Group.

Notes:

(a) In December 2013, Big Right Investment Limited (“Big Right”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, concluded public
offering of the unsecured notes of US$110,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$852,665,000). The unsecured notes (Stock Code:
6005) are listed on the Stock Exchange and carry fixed coupon
rate of 4.8% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The
unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 4.85% per annum.
The principal amount of the unsecured notes is repayable in 2018
and unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the Company.

In July 2014, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$1,650,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon rate
of 5% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The unsecured
notes carry effective interest rate of 5.92% per annum. The principal
amount of the unsecured notes is repayable in 2017.

In February 2015, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$1,000,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon rate
of 5% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The unsecured
notes carry effective interest rate of 5.15% per annum. The principal
amount of the unsecured notes is repayable in 2020.

Z—REEEE-

Hist

R2013F 128 - A BEEZEE2EWB A A
EREEERAR ([1ER]) BEARAET
110,000,0003% Jt (#) % $2852,665,0007%5
TO)EEE R AR (RHRKR:
6005) B R AT LT 12 & E F £ 24.8%
R WEBEFMNE - BEAEEER
FFERBAIE% - BMIBHWEIE 2 A S HAR
2018 B8 - Wi AR A E KA KT A #
SHHDPELR -

(a)

201447 A - AN A 8] % 171,650,000,000
BLEEERE BB ERRETFR
B5%sr B WAEGFFHHE - EIEEER
2 EBENEA592% - EIKMERE 7 K
SEAN017TEEE -

(b)

7201592 A + AN A 8] % 171,000,000,000
BLEEERE BB ERRETFR
B5%sr B WAEGFFHE - EBIEEER
2 EBEMNEA515% « EIXMEE 7 K
S EAN2020FEEIE -

(c)
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30. Unsecured Notes — continued

Notes: — continued

(d)

In March 2015, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$300,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon rate of
5% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The unsecured
notes carry effective interest rate of 5.12% per annum. The principal
amount of the unsecured notes is repayable in 2020.

In February 2016, the Company issued unsecured notes of
US$38,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon rate of
4.4% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The unsecured
notes carry effective interest rate of 4.4% per annum. The principal
amount of the unsecured notes is repayable in 2021.

In March 2016, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$500,000,000. In May 2016, the Company issued addition
unsecured notes of HK$300,000,000. The unsecured notes carry
fixed coupon rate of 4.4% per annum, payable semi-annually in
arrears. The unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 4.6% per
annum. The principal amount of the unsecured notes is repayable in
2021.

In September 2016, the Company issued unsecured notes of
US$200,000,000. The unsecured notes (Stock code: 4326) are
listed on the Stock Exchange and carry fixed coupon rate of 4% per
annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The unsecured notes carry
effective interest rate of 4.06% per annum. The principal amount of
the secured notes is repayable in 2021.

In March 2017, the Company issued unsecured notes of
US$200,000,000. The unsecured notes (Stock code: 5410) are
listed on the Stock Exchange and carry fixed coupon rate of 5% per
annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The unsecured notes carry
effective interest rate of 5.18% per annum. The principal amount of
the secured notes is repayable in 2022.

In March 2017, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$800,000,000. The unsecured notes (Stock code: 5411) are listed
on the Stock Exchange and carry fixed coupon rate of 4.7% per
annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The unsecured notes carry
effective interest rate of 4.82% per annum. The principal amount of
the secured notes is repayable in 2022.

30. RILHRE —#&
Wizt 4

(d)

201543 A » AR 2 7 % 77300,000,0007%
TLEBHEZE BERBEZERRETFEE
5%t B WESEFEMNE ERXIFZE Y
BREMERAB512% - EEBEE > A E
FEATAN2020F 538 -

R201652 A » KA 7] % 1738,000,0003
TLEBHEZE BERBPZERRETFEE
44%T B WABXFMABE -EIKFRIE
ZEBBREFR B4 4% - BEBEE 2 A
FEAN2021FE B8 -

#20164F3 A » AR A 7 % 17500,000,0007%
TCERIREE - FA20164F5 8 » AN QA B EE S
#%17300,000,00078 7T 48 I 47 22 4% o 48 4K I
ERRETEEB4.4% 8 WRAGEE
ME -EEWMEE L ERFTHEEL6% -
EIRIR R 2 A RBER2021F(EE -

#20164F9 A + A A 7] % 17200,000,0003
TEREER - EEEERE (ROARR:
4326) IREE X FT £ T - R B E F B B 4%
B WESYEMNE - EIKIRER 2 TRF
FIEH4.06%  EEAZEHRE A EAER
2021F €38 -

7201743 A » AN 7 % 77200,000,0003
TEREEE - EREEE (BRHORR:

5410) IREE X T £ 71+ R B E F B B5%5T
B WESYFEMNE - EIKHER 2 BRF
FEAB518% - BEWER 2 A AN
2022 (g -

7201743 A » AN 5 % 77800,000,000/%
TEREEZE - EREEE (BRHRR:
5411 R R AT LT 1ZEEFEL4.7%
e WABEFMNE  EIEHEZE 2 B
FREEL82% - BIRHEE 2 AS A
20224 (&8 -
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31. Bank Borrowings 1. BTEE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T FAT
Bank loans RITEE 12,555,008 11,029,088

The bank borrowings are repayable RITEEZERBHROT:

as follows™:

Within one year — &R 3,486,867 2,895,407
Between one to two years — E WA H] 1,636,615 2,490,509
Between two to five years N 2 T4 4,776,051 3,480,201
Over five years HEFME 2,597,008 2,057,958

12,496,541 10,924,075
Carrying amounts of bank borrowings  $R{TEE Z EREIE

that contain a repayment on demand (BERERERER
clause shown under current liabilites ~ REEHBEE T5R) 58,467 105,013
12,555,008 11,029,088
Less: Amounts due within one year A —F R B HR0E
shown under current liabilities (RREBEEETIIR) Clsliiek 0 (3,000,420)
Amounts due after one year shown M —F1& B B FRIE
under non-current liabilities (RIERBEBEEBETITR) 9,009,674 8,028,668
*  Carrying amounts based on scheduled repayment dates set out in * FEHEERERBEME G EERA
the loan agreements. 5o
The bank borrowings carry interest ranging from HIBOR + ZERTEESTFAERBEBRITRER
0.55% to HIBOR + 2.85% per annum (2016: HIBOR + 0.55% B10.55%% & 7 4517 [F) % 47 5. HN2.85%
to HIBOR + 2.9% per annum) and are secured by certain (20165 : G B ERITRIZEF 2 100.55%
assets of the Group (see note 40(a)). ERABRITRAZEFESMN29% )ETEFE -
WAREE 2 EFTEEERER (RME
40(a)) °
The effective interest rate of bank borrowings is at 2.14% RITEE 2 BERFHER2.14% (20165 -
(2016: 2.16%) per annum. 216%) °
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32. EER IR
A E B ERR 2 X BRERA
(BE)BEREWEBHNT -

32. Deferred Taxation

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

prior years.
Accelerated Development  Revaluation
tax costs of Tax
depreciation capitalised properties losses Total
MRS B BRAA
e - N4 MEEMR REEE ok
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TART TER TART TER TER
At 1 April 2015 R201554 810 (154,886) (4,191) (867,759) 28,748 (998,088)
Exchange realignments ShEE A B - - 30,442 - 30,442
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (M) AExz
(Note 11) (BeEt1) (31,781) - (165,207) 7,319 (189,669)
Credit to equity AR 268 - - - 268
At 31 March 2016 7201643 A31H (186,399) (4,191)  (1,002,524) 36,067 (1,157,047)
Exchange realignments SNE B - - 50,112 - 50,112
(Charge) credit to profit or loss CIEDEPN -t
(Note 11) (BEEt1) (21,715) (792,573) 13,200 (801,088)
Credit (charge) to equity HA(HE) #R 268 - (3,660) - (3,392)
At 31 March 2017 R201753A31H

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset.

At 31 March 2017, the Group had tax losses of
HK$1,051,608,000 (2016: HK$884,496,000) available
for offset against future profits. Deferred tax assets
have been recognised in respect of HK$304,135,000
(2016: HK$230,670,000) of such losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$747,473,000 (2016: HK$653,826,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The unrecognised
tax losses of the Group might be carried forward
indefinitely, except for an amount of HK$39,477,000 (2016:
HK$18,097,000) which will expire in three years from the
year of assessment.

EBRMBMR KR Z 25N E - B TIRLE
MBEERBEDFEE-

R2017F3A31H AEB CRIBEBIER
1,051,608,000/% 7T (2016%F : 884,496,000
BTT) - AR AOR FIHKEE - 2 F BB
+£304,135,0007% 7T (20164F : 230,670,000
BIL)EEREEHRIEEE - AR T
TEOBI R 2R 2 3 F 1B 5 - B £ ok B 5%
747 473,000/ 7T (20164F : 653,826,000/
TO)BERIELERIBEE - NE B 2 R ER
THIEE 18 A] £EBR HAAAEE -+ 130,477,000 7T
(2016%F : 18,097,000 7T ) 2 & X815 B 7T
TREEHR=FEBTIE-
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32. Deferred Taxation — continued

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed WFEFIi%Fﬁ SFi% 82008518 1H
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by i P EE QRIS E IR 2
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred IR EBEBANTEINTL - B AR SR B Be Szl
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated BEIEREE R B BEEREREA
financial statements in respect of temporary differences BE TR A R AR E] - AR E I AR FEH
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries BB ARz RtafE R ERERE
amounting to HK$112,757,000 (2016: HK$119,049,000) as 112,757,0007 7T (20164 : 119,049,0007
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the T ) AR & IS IRk VB IEE A IR 1
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

33. Share Capital 33. ®kA&

Number of shares Share capital

THE COMPANY

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

Authorised:

At 1 April 2015,
31 March 2016 and

+t
5

5

FRMEEC.01/E T 2 EMAX

Pz
R2015%4A18
201653 A31A K

R&H&EE IR A
HK$'000
THET

31 March 2017 20174 3H31H 500,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE
At 1 April 2015 R2015F4H1H 3,671,776,192 36,718
Exercise of share options (Note) — 1T{EEEHE (H#1at) 5,769,475 57
At 31 March 2016 and R2016F3A31H &
31 March 2017 201743H31H 3,677,545,667 36,775

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2016, 5,769,475 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued at HK$1.746 per share upon exercise
of share options. The new shares issued rank pari passu with the

existing shares in all aspects.

Hiat . EE201653A31H I F & 5,769,475
BEREEOIE L LBERE AR
FEEITE M A G IIRD1.746/8 T3 1T -
BERTZHIRMERERONES AR
BrERER -
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34. Share Option

Share option schemes of the Company

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 9
September 2003 (“Old Share Option Scheme”) has lapsed
automatically in September 2013 upon the expiry of the
10-year period. Following the expiry of the Old Share
Option Scheme, no further share options can be granted
thereunder but outstanding share options granted under the
Old Share Option Scheme shall continue to be valid and
exercisable period.

In order to ensure the continuity of a share option scheme
for the Company to provide incentives or rewards to
participants including the Directors and eligible employees
of the Group, the shareholders of the Company passed an
ordinary resolution at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 8 August 2013 to approve the adoption
of a new share option scheme of the Company (“New Share
Option Scheme”). No share options were granted under the
New Share Option Scheme since its adoption on 15 August
2013.

A summary of the Old Share Option Scheme and New Share
Option Scheme is set out as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Old Share Option Scheme and New
Share Option Scheme
To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate

talented eligible participants to strive for future
development and expansion of the Group.

(b) Eligibility
Eligible participants include employees (whether full-
time or part time, including Non-executive Director) and
such other eligible participants.

(c) Total number of shares available for issue under the
New Share Option Scheme
(i) As at 21 June 2017 (i.e. the date of this Annual
Report): 366,677,619 shares.

(i) Percentage of the issued shares that it represents
as at 21 June 2017: 9.97%.

34. B

ARATERESS

AR AFA20039F9 HOB BR 4N - BB T 21
(TERERETE]) B R2013F98 +FH
PR fE M B B Bk e NE BB RAE T BIfE W
% TEBRIBZATEI T i — SR L BB -
R EEBREEE RO MARITEZ
BRESEEE R RAI TUTEEERS
FTERREm o

AR AEREREE 2 FE AR E
EEENAEELEREERACREE
IR B2 - AR D FIIRER 201348 A
SHBRITZARRIREAFAG BB B
TERESR  HLERM—IBAR BT
e E ([FriE LT El)) - 8201358 A
150 $THE AR AT S ER A LATR - SEERE AR
TENRIE LT EIER L -

ERBAREST 8| KB AR AT &) 2 Lt 40
N

(a) BIERESBRHIERETBZH
#
REAREEER S| B RAEE S
B2 EBR2EEFRAEE 2K
REE RN IESR

(b) EEKSHE
AERZ2REREES (BERE2BX
REER BEFITES) KREFHE
e BIRSHE -

(c) REBEAIBRET BT T RT2ZHKG
22

(i) M201746H218 (B A4 R
HE8) 366,677,619/ °

(i) 15201746H218 E 7R B
29.97% °
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34. B HE &2
AATIHERESE 2
(d) EEKREHBIRFBRESHET

34. Share Option — continued
Share option schemes of the Company - continued
(d) Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

(e)

(")

(9)

under the Old Share Option Scheme and New Share
Option Scheme

(i) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company;

options granted to substantial shareholder or
independent non-executive directors or their
respective associates in any one year exceeding
0.1% of the Shares in issue and with a value in
excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

At any time from the date of grant of the option to such
a date determined by the Board but in any event not
exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
Board.

(i) Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HK$1.00;

(i) The period within which payments or calls must

or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of

grant;

(iii) Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

(e)

)

(9)

GERERSHETERER LR

(i) BRIFFEARRBMBERALE 5]
1218 A AR NSBB8
BEETRMNZ1%

REM—FZAREERRL
BUFATEFARERALZ
RBEARLZBERE B8
BEEITRM 20.1% R EEBR
5,000,000/ 7T 78 &£ AN 1 7 I
R -

TR ERIBIR G 2 HR

REHBREAHEEEESET L
BB B B2 R - ERMERIER
T NMEEBR L AR 105F -

BRETRISRIFEZRERR

RIFERERTTEE  BRINERE
HARR ©

(i) ER AR SR AN B AU B P28 A A
#H7CE - 1.008 7T

(i) W7 A BEA A BB A7 2 B
PR B R HIERT28A A

VRSB R RN E &
MR NER -

(i)

(h) Basis for determining the exercise price (h) BEZE/TEEZEE
The exercise price is determined by the Board and will TEBIHRESSET  ENFER
not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price TH&EE  (aRERE BERD 2

of the share on the date of grant; (b) the average
closing price of the Shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a Share.

mE: (RN EER L A A EE
XABM 2 FHRHE: Mm@
=8

176 Emperor International Holdings Limited

HEEEEK)ERAT



34. Share Option — continued

Share option schemes of the Company - continued
(i) The remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme
Approximately 6 years (expiring on 14 August 2023).

Particulars of the outstanding options which were granted to
the Directors under the Old Share Scheme are as follows:

34.

Exercise Outstanding

price at 1 April

Date of grant Exercisable period per share 2015

20156

481H

R AH TEARB BRITEE i8] AR AT
(DIM[Y) (DIM/Y) HK$
(B/R/#) (B/R/%) BT

11.8.2005 11.8.2005 - 10.8.2015 1.746 16,538,950

i ]

AATEBRESTSE 2

(i) FEBRESEZHTHR
#1645 (FA2023F8 H14R EIHR) o

I ARTTE 2 B i (T IRIB B RE A i =T &1
BRYESR) ZF BRI

Outstanding

Exercised Lapsed at 31 March
during during 2016 and

the year the year 2017
20165

P54

20174

3A31H

REFETRE REAFEXX fe R AT 6

(5,769,475)  (10,769,475) -

The share options granted were vested immediately at the
date of grant.

No option was granted under the Old Share Option Scheme
by the Company during the years ended 31 March 2017
and 31 March 2016.

Share option scheme of Emperor E Hotel

A share option scheme of Emperor E Hotel (“Emperor E
Hotel Share Option Scheme”) was adopted on 15 August
2013 (the “Emperor E Hotel Adoption Date”) . No share
options were granted under the Emperor E Hotel Share
Option Scheme since the Emperor E Hotel Adoption Date.

A summary of the Emperor E Hotel Share Option Scheme is
set out as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Emperor E Hotel Share Option
Scheme

To enable the group of Emperor E Hotel to attract, retain
and motivate talented participants to strive for future
developments and expansion of the group of Emperor E
Hotel.

(b) Eligibility
Eligible participants include employees (whether full
time or part time employee, including non-executive

director) and such other eligible participants.

ZEFE RO BBER R L B BER
J%O

REE20174E3A318 K2016E3H31H 1
FE ARAMERBEBERETERLY
BEASHEE -

REREEEBRESS

B EIRG R B ERT 8 ([ REREET)E
ﬁ%ﬂxﬁé s12811)R2013FE8 A15H ([HEE4R
LORERMNB ) ERR - B R 2RER
JEERAN B HR DA PR - BEEEAR 5 I 2 IR L 5
BRI AT 8 9% R EfrI BE AR A

5 2 RGO R B Bl 2 Bt an T

(a) RELLETEBRESEZH R

RER SRR E R E LRS! 1
KRBT %2 2B URKEER

LTRSS 2 R R S AFR -

BEMKBHE
RERZHEERERES (BERE2H

REEER BEFMITES) KEREFHE
e BIRSEE-

(b)
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34. B HE &2
HERER R E

34. Share Option - continued
Share option scheme of Emperor E Hotel — continued

(c)

(d)

(e)

(")

(9)

Total number of shares available for issue under the
Emperor E Hotel Share Option Scheme

(i) As at 21 June 2017 (i.e. the date of this annual
report): 129,254,598 shares.

(iiy Percentage of the issued shares that it represents
as at 21 June 2017: 9.92%.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant
under the Emperor E Hotel Share Option Scheme

(i) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders of Emperor E Hotel;

(i) options granted to substantial shareholders or

independent non-executive directors or their

respective associates in any one year exceeding

the higher of 0.1% of the shares in issue and with a

value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved

by the shareholders of Emperor E Hotel.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

At any time from the date of grant of the option to such
a date determined by the board of directors of Emperor
E Hotel but in any event not exceeding 10 years from
the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
board of directors of Emperor E Hotel.

(i) Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HK$1.00;

(i) The period within which payments or calls must

or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of

grant;

(iii) Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid. Not applicable.

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

(9)

RIEREEIRET B IR T B o] 77 5%
T2 IR (48 2

() H2017F68218 (BIARFIH H
HA) 1 129,254,598/ °

(iy 152017F6HA21HE #TR G
Z:9.92% o

REBREEEIERESE BT EFE

BERSHEETEREZ LR

() BRIFMERSIRGEAEARALE -
BRI 12{E A BE A TS
BEEITIRM 21%

iy AER—FzAMEZRER
BYIRITESKFESALZ
BEARLZERE SHBB
EEITIRM 201% R EEBB
5,000,000/ 7T /B 48 2 IR 46T [
RE SR HEAE -

TRIEREZIB R G 2 HR

AR BRI B B e B W 2 IRELT S
EEeET s EBB A ZEME
R EEER T NMEEBBAER D
H EAREET10%F ©

BRETRASERFEZRERHR

BIFREREEEE=TERTETE
7 B S AR RS HAR o

() EARREkER MRBRUER PRSI EY
1B 1.008 7T

(i) WZRSK AT REA A BCBAIT 7 2 B
PR X A HIREET28E A

RN RSB RGN B &
EHR - NER -

(i)
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34.

35.

36.

Share Option - continued
Share option scheme of Emperor E Hotel — continued
(h) Basis for determining the exercise price

The exercise price is determined by the board of
Emperor E Hotel and will not be less than the highest of
(a) the closing price of the share on the date of grant;
(b) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (c) the nominal value of a share.

(i) The remaining life of the Emperor E Hotel Share
Option Scheme

Approximately 6 years (expiring on 14 August 2023).

Non-controlling Interests

Included in non-controlling interests as at 31 March 2017
was a deemed contribution by non-controlling interests of
HK$21,903,000 (2016: HK$21,903,000) on certain interest-
free loans from the non-controlling interests of a subsidiary
which were contributed in accordance with their proportion
of shareholdings.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes amount due to a related company, amounts
due to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries, unsecured
notes, bank borrowings in notes 27, 28, 30 and 31
respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the debt raising.

34.

35.

36.

BRE—~F

RERGLBEBRES S 2=

(h) BEETHEZEE
TEEBIHRERE A FEEE
EENFER TIIREE : (@R
th BERR D 2 T B ()R EEIR T
B HEIRI A2 3 B iR 2 FH R
B R(c)&inEE-

(i) RERLAEBERETEZHRT
H PR
#9645 (20238 A 148 BIHR) o

FERES

MR201793A31H 2 FEE R = B IR
A IR R AE S B FUIE21,903,00058 I
(2016%F : 21,903,000/ 7T ) * %7K E JIA—
MM B AR 2 TR E=TiRtE e BT R
BERME MBBERIRE SIEL
Bl & -

BEXEmERE

REMEBLER UREAERR B
B B S 10 12 1 T A L AT L B
BECER REREHE

5 o AN 2 B BB RS B K RS o

NEBZEAEERIEERFHE (BED
RIAMIFE27 ~ 28 3031 B 2 FE~f —
R RAE A R FRIE « [E B A 7 2 FEIEAR
e E ERERE RITEE) Re
MIReEEBWFERNRRIES AELE
& (PR BITRARGHEE) -

EEE MR EARRE - FRRRT 2 —
Mo EFEREAKNANZEER 2
Rk -RBEZS2HEBZS AEEH
BB BITHAAD S B N ERS -

FEEEBEANRE-
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37.€mIT A
(a) EWMITEZER

37. Financial Instruments
(a) Categories of financial instruments

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Financial assets cTREE
Loans and receivables B3R W KA
Receivables related to a development B —IHZERERIEER 2
project JE W 3R IR 167,262 178,210
Deposit in designated bank account R EGFHRAIET
for development properties RITRP 2K 9,182 9,685
Trade and other receivables H 5 N H b e SRR 521,085 634,610
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITFER 30,837 685,970
Short-term bank deposits RHSRTTIE X 2,822 39,031
Bank balances and cash RITHEHREIR S 6,620,318 3,108,291
7,351,506 4,655,797
Financial liabilities TRAeE
EVTPL FRBRIBALEBEINE
Derivative financial instruments MTESMIA 16,700
At amortised cost FRE SE AR
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E M FIE 786,735 697,128
Amount due to a related company JEf — R E A R FRIE 1,988,633 3,544,395
Amounts due to non-controlling KB AR Z
interests of subsidiaries FEE IR HE 2 FKIE 120,800 132,000
Unsecured notes EEHEER 8,768,040 4,566,553
Bank borrowings RITEE 12,555,008 11,029,088
24,219,216 19,969,164
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37. Financial Instruments - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments are listed in
above table. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate which will affect the
Group’s financial results and its cash flows. Several
subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, but the management considers the
amount of foreign currency sales and purchase is
insignificant. The management considers the Group
does not expose to significant foreign currency risk in
relation to transactions denominated in MOP. Exposures
on balances which are denominated in MOP in group
entities with HK$ as functional currency are not
considered significant because MOP is pegged to HK$.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
in relation to the outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items at the end of the reporting
period, which included trade and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
and bank balances and cash. The sensitivity to
foreign currency risks arising from the outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items has
been determined based on the reasonably possible
change in foreign currency exchange rates between
RMB and HK$. For a 5% (2016: 5%) strengthening in
RMB against HK$, the Group’s profit for the year will
be increased by HK$141,000 (2016: the Group’s loss
for the year will be decreased by HK$34,573,000). If
RMB had been weakened against HK$ in an opposite
magnitude and all other variables held constant, the
potential effect on the results would be equal and
opposite.

37. ¢ T H— &
(b) BIREBEEREREE

AEBEzEE@ T AW EXRFTY -
EHZEERMTIACHBESEH
MEEREE - FlZSeR T A 2R
B - BLIET S AR (HNEE R B & F) &
[Bfz) - ERRRE RRENE & R a0
AR ZERR 2 BERHN T &
BEHZSRERETEERER
RUARBERER 2 AAEBITEHE 218
i

5% 3

S B

SN R IR BN R B RE M
HREME 2 INEEREF) 2 R -
AEEETHEBARAIINEER B
EEERRINEEEZSHBTE
R BEEERRNBRNRFITER
2R T RNEE Y EEEHEAINE
[\ o B PORPITTEE TN - PR -
RBRUNABTREEE 2 SEER
URFITTEEZ B2 BB TEAX

REERRREPRR LB ZINETE
BEEBIERE (BEE 5 REARKGK
D HRRITER RHRITER
NMARTTHE SR MR € ) B INE R B ©
HARBZINETEESEIEEFTE
EZINERBZBREETIREAR
MR E TR INETE R 2 BB ] RE#
BMET AR LB THEY
(20165 :5% )M & * AEERAFE
255 F #5158 hn141,00078 7t (20164
KREE 2 FEEER 34,573,000
BIT) W ARBE B TRERSR
ERFAEMESRIFTE  BIEE
BENRERER OBEFE -
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37.¢mMI A&
(b) HHEARERREREE A

37. Financial Instruments — continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
Market risk — continued
Foreign currency risk — continued

As at 31 March 2016, the Group is also exposed to
foreign currency risk in relation to the outstanding
foreign currency forward contract at the end of the
reporting period. The sensitivity to foreign currency risk
arising from the foreign currency forward contract has
been determined based on the reasonably possible
change in the forward exchange rate between RMB
and HK$. For a 5% strengthening in RMB against HK$,
the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended 31 March
2016 will be decreased by HK$14,868,000 (2017: Nil).
If RMB had been weakened against HK$ in an opposite
magnitude and all other variables held constant, the
potential effect on the results would be equal and
opposite.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits and short-
term bank deposits and fixed coupon rate unsecured
notes. The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation primarily to its bank balances,
variable-rate amount due to a related company, interest
rate swap contract and bank borrowings. The Group
entered into a pay-fixed/receive-floating interest rate
swap contract to mitigate its exposures to cash flow
interest rate risk.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising from
the Group’s advances from a related company and
bank borrowings.

5 m e —
SN — B
R2016453A31H » AN S [ 1 iy 15 1
RITE bR R AR B HISMNE RIS 4
ZINERR - INERIAHIPTELZ
SNSRI 2 BURE TIIRIR AR B 278

MEE o W AR B THES% " Al
NEBNE E201653A318 IEFE
2 BR T 1% 5 1B #8 R 114,868,0007%8 7T
(20174 &) - HE ARB H B LA
FEEERTEEMESRGTE

AR EERRSERAR 2 BEY

2o
=

FI%mR
A AL 5 I AR TR R
§ EIAR AT I7 A B B2 S A
SR AR EENERR AL
ThE B E RITE - N — R
ARTBFIEIE - FEERAO R
BITEEAER SRR FIEAR A
EEE TS B AR TS
PR 84 % LUREFHES 2]

EREM XM

AEEZRERENERRER  TBE
RRAEER B —RRE AR 2 2R
FARITIEEMEL 2 BB RITRIZER
EKE -
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37. Financial Instruments — continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
Market risk — continued
Interest rate risk — continued

The Group’s sensitivity to cash flow interest rate
risk has been determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for the abovementioned financial assets
and liabilities at the end of the reporting period and
the reasonably possible change taking place at the
beginning of each year and held constant throughout
the respective year. The management's assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rate and
assuming that it took place at the beginning of each
year and held constant throughout the respective year.

Except for bank balances and deposits using 5 basis
points (2016: 5 basis points), if interest rates had been
100 basis points (2016: 100 basis points) higher and all
other variables were held constant, the potential effect
on post-tax profit (loss) for the year is as follows:

Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit

(loss) for the year O A)
- Bank balances —RITHEBR
- Amount due to a related company — B — R

— Interest rate swap contract

— Bank borrowings —R1TEE

/

—FREHEH

37.€®MIT H—

/l/ ~

(b) MBAREEREREE &

FEED RSN (BE)

EEE]

rEmB
FIE |7 g — &
$E.£E%//|LE%U2?—EW@2@U§}§ !
iR e mEERBBERNRE
P E e &BAKE"W%*EZ/\EE
AREEBARNEFAN—BERGIE
T AEE - EBRERFE 2 GEA
BEEBIEL T WRRETFEY)
s - BRBRFEERNRFETE -

B SR 77 &5 84 I 17 FUASIE A 2 (2016
F AR BEEI WF R LT
100fEE 2, (20164F : 100fEE2L) AT
EHMEERIFITE  AEAFER
g mf (E8) 2 BEFENT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
2,874 (1,546)
(16,605) 29,596
= (1,037)
(78,270) 71,079
(92,001) 98,092

If interest rates had been lower in an opposite
magnitude and all other variables held constant, the
potential effect on the results would be equal and
opposite.

M =REREEE R AARMEE
RIS RIS AR R 5 R AE
ZEERE-
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37. Financial Instruments - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
Credit risk

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties and financial guarantees provided by
the Group is arising from:

e the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position; and

e the financial guarantee issued by the Group as
disclosed in note 17.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt and receivables related to a development
project at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds and deposits in
designated bank account for development properties is
limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 57%
(2016: 59%) and 83% (2016: 82%) of the total trade
receivables which was due from the Group's largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively
within the hotel and hotel related operations. The
Directors consider that there is no significant credit risk
on the trade receivables from the five largest customers
given their strong financial background and good
creditability. The remaining trade receivables balances
are spread over a number of customers.

an

A

37. ¢ IT H— &
w)Mﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%—g

1= /5 1m B

R2017F3A31H  AEBREEF A
REBITEERAEB R B EER
ENAEEFBEAMEE  &eE
AREREES :

o  HFEMBIRKRRHEED ER
TREEZRAEE M

o WMIEN7AAIRER  ANEEME D
Z A TEHER

ABERKERRR ~EEEE
ECZREBAEEEEERE £
EHEN H A B SRAZ Fr » ARELR BREX
BOETTE) AU [ 38 R (E TR » 5 - AR
SETTNHRE AR RS ERB S E
ARER—TRERIARZE Hﬁlmlﬁz
A Y (a5 58 - DARELR LT TR [ 3R
e R SR BB R L o E’Jilitﬁﬁm’
EERR AREZEREREKXE
FEAR

MEE ¢ MBERYEFHNIETER
TERPZHERZERRERER I%’T
FHAEABBB EEFREBATIET
SiERER BT

Z 5 FE U FRIE #4858 2 57% (20165
59% ) }283% (20164 : 82% ) J5 5 Bl
FEUR BB )5 SOl S AR 7S 2 AN B
BARFRAIIARES  FAAEE
ZIEREBREAET -EERERE
AR E S RIRETEER
EHRRR DRAKEZHBEE S RE
f*fuaﬁ“-ﬁéz% HEE 5 REE#
DENAERF -
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37. Financial Instruments - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of banking facilities and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings and unsecured
notes as significant source of liquidity. At 31 March
2017, based on the existing levels of bank balances
and the existing banking facilities available, the Group
will be able to meet its future cashflow requirements.
Accordingly, the management considers that the
Group's liquidity risk is minimal.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities and the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank borrowings, with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is based on interest rate at
the end of the reporting period.

37.&WMIA—#Z
(b) MBEBEERERBER &

B EZERE

REERDECRAR AEEEBEY
KR LR FENEERERRA
RARAEEZERALETERS
MEKRBBTE 2K -BEERE
BiR1TEEZER HRETERR

ot
#h °

AEEKRERITEE MEEIRREE
RRBE D2 ERIRIR - 201743
318 - AR A RITEERNKF LAl i
PRAZHAARTEE AEB /TN
RAKREREZZR -Hit - BHE
BRSAEEZREHE S RABBIE -

TREJIAEEZITEEREBEL
BN AHZIH B ZFFE - IR TIRIE
AEE A REABRECRFAMZ SR
BEZRERASREMRE - ALH
= BB Al BE R B SRKE SR IR AV IR
TEETDIIAZEREFEEEA
ARIRTTIR BRI THEE A A AT gl - &
fIFTE BB EZ Em B B IRE
B EERHAMEE

SROEFBRASEEHE EF
K57 8. BRI & IR s B
2 MG o
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37. Financial Instruments — continued 37.&MIT A&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) HEEMEERERBEK &

policies — continued
Liquidity risk — continued HEELEEE
In addition, the following table details the Group's o TRESIREEITESRBE
liquidity analysis for its derivative financial liabilities. ZmBE RO 251 o ik HIRIE
The tables have been drawn up based on the LOFRBARNEE 2 OTET A Z RAHIR
undiscounted contractual net cash outflows on BRRSRLFEMARR - AEEIT
derivative instruments that settle on a net basis. SERBEZRBES ST HRRE
The liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative AMHHRAMER RAREEERR
financial liabilities is prepared based on the BHREEAHERITETARSR S
contractual maturities as the management considers FEBLE -

that the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows of

derivatives.
Liquidity table TEEBE £ F
Weighted Less than
average 1 year or 1 year Total Total
effective repayable to Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate  on demand 5 years 5years  cash flows amounts
MERY  HSMEFDR RER
ERFZE REXREE 15255 550 L REeRBAHE BEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TER TER TER TER TER
At 31 March 2017 #201753A31H
Non-derivative financial FTESHER
liabilities
Trade and other payables B S REMERNFE 786,735 - 786,735 786,735
Amount due to a related company fEf — BB 5B 522,743 1,664,018 2,186,761 1,988,633
Amounts due to non-controlling ~ FEff— M B A2
interests of subsidiaries FERERTIE
~ non-interest bearing —JHE 120,800 - 120,800 120,800
Variable-rate bank borrowings ¥ BRITEE 3,814,454 6,951,269 2,653,929 13,419,652 12,555,008
Unsecured notes BERRE 2,022,501 8,157,042 - 10,179,543 8,768,040
Financial guarantee (Note) MBER (M) 941,600 - = 941,600 -

8,208,833 16,772,329 2,653,929 27,635,091 24,219,216
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37. Financial Instruments — continued 37.€MITE—Z&
(b) HERAMEEREREEX 2

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Liquidity risk — continued
Liquidity table — continued

Weighted Less than

REEL R E
REEwx —/&

average 1 year or 1 year Total Total
effective repayable to Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate on demand 5 years 5 years cash flows amounts
MEFS  SRER RER
BRAE  RERER 1EE5F SENE HERBRE ARmEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL TAT TAT TAT
At 31 March 2016 12016534317
Non-derivative financial FfTESRBEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables ZHREMERNTIE - 697,128 - - 697,128 697,128
Amount due to a related company FES —FBE A FFE 3.66% 592,997 3,323,102 - 3916099 3,544,395
Amounts due to non-controlling  FEff —RIFBAE 2
interests of subsidiaries FiERERTE
- non-interest bearing —JHE - 132,000 - - 132,000 132,000
Variable-rate bank borrowings 2 RITEE 2.16% 3,272,096 6,402,310 2,104,716 11,779,122 11,029,088
Unsecured notes BERZE 5.27% 223,666 5,056,203 - 5,279,869 4,566,553
Financial guarantee (Note) BBER (M) - 941,600 - - 941,600 -
5,859,487 14,781,615 2,104,716 22,745,818 19,969,164
Derivative-net settlement fTETE-FHELEE
Interest rate swap contract - net  F|REHA LN —F4E - 1,939 - - 1,939 1,923
Foreign currency forward SNEERBEL-FE
contract - net - 14,777 - - 14,777 14,777
16,716 - - 16,716 16,700

Note: The amount included above for financial guarantee is the
maximum amount the Group could be forced to settle under
the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount
is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group
considers that it is more likely than not that such an amount
will not be payable under the arrangement. However, this
estimate is subject to change depending on the probability
of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by
the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

Wi LB BERzZEERMERY

FRERE RNEETRERERE
RHAEMEREBLEEZES
Bo-RENMEMR AT A%
ERARE AR BARE LM
B - AWM Ll bR F
HFHRBERELDRE 2R
A mMiRHRE ZT%'I“_*LE'JHX
RIS T T3 PR AR AR B 7 FE MR
EHREEER T
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37. Financial Instruments — continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

(c)

policies — continued

Liquidity risk — continued

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “less than 1 year or repayable on
demand” time band in the above maturity analysis. As
at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, the aggregate
carrying amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$58,467,000 and HK$105,013,000 respectively.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
Directors do not believe that it is probable that the
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors believe that such
bank borrowings will be repaid within six years (2016:
seven years) after the reporting date in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows will amount to HK$12,796,000,
HK$46,835,000 and HK$1,955,000 (2016:
HK$48,218,000, HK$49,839,000 and HK$11,618,000)
under the time band of “less than 1 year”, “1 year to 5
years” and “over 5 years” respectively.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The fair values of financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

37.¢/RITE—Z&
(b) HHEARERREREE A

(c)

FEBELEEE

BB ] BE b 1% B SR8 TSR A ERTT
BER EMEIEE RS ITRFIA D
PF IR BEREE BREBR-
720174938318 K 201643 A31
H ZSRITEENEEEES B A
58,467,000/ 7T } 105,013,000/ 7T °
KT RAER 2R EEE
2 SRIT KA REf T L Bk ANRS 8
BB RERN - EEHEZFRITE
B e RikE B B1E6F (20165 :
TFE)ANRBERBZEAENETEIE
FEHEE B ASEBELTE
ReEREBERTLP1FE] [1FEE5
F IR [5FL LI NEREERD 5
/312,796,00078 7T ~ 46,835,000/ 7T [
1,955,000/% 7T (20164F : 48,218,000
77T+ 49,839,000/ 7T N2 11,618,000/
JL) °

ERMITAZAAREBETE
BEEMEEUAABETEZE
EETHMEEZALEE
TRHAEENANLBENIREARTE
BRIRARAERENNETE

EEZRRANERE MR DN
AEzERBE REEREARE
(EREEER
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37. Financial Instruments — continued 37. 2@ IT H—

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
— continued

Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
- continued

Some of the Group's financial liabilities are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial liabilities are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used),
as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1
to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.

/l/ ~

(c) EMIAZAAEBEFE -

imaw

BEEMEEULAEBETBEZE
EFHEzHERBZ A EE &

REEETERMABENSREHNR
AABEFE TRIERLEFSHE
BzARBEINAEEZER (LE
PR 2 R E R R A SR ) -
ARBBE AR BETEZBABIEZ
ABREE AN BEFEMBEAZA
AEEZLR (F123) -

Valuation techniques and key inputs

REXHTREIEEDARE

Discounted cash flow: Future cashflows
are estimated based on forward foreign
currency rates (from observable yield
curves at the end of the reporting period)
and contract foreign currency rates,
discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of various counterparties.

Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁi K Ei/}luiﬁmﬁﬁi_ﬁﬁ

Financial liabilities Fair value
at FVTPL Fair value hierarchy
EBRBERAAEABIEZ DMAEE
cHMas: DMREE £8
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER FET
Foreign currency 14,777 Level 2
forward contract o
SNEREA K
Interest rate 1,923 Level 2
swap contract oM

ESEE =g

Discounted cash flow: Future cashflows
are estimated based on forward interest
rates (from observable yield curves at
the end of the reporting period) and
contract interest rates, discounted at a
rate that reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties.

Eﬁiﬁiﬁimbi %iﬁ/ﬁ’ﬁ%)}ﬂi%

=

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3
during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March
2016.

RE E2017F3A31H K20165E3831H
Jtir“ PR SRR B3N v W A

s
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37. Financial Instruments - continued 37. €M I A/
(d) Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, (d) KK - —Iﬁﬁggﬁmﬁi’[ﬁ%
enforceable master netting arrangements and REUBRIARNEMEE

similar agreements

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial liabilities that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement or similar agreement that
covers similar financial instruments, irrespective of
whether they are offset in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.

The amounts recognised for the derivative financial

TRAERBE BB AITTEFRGEE
ET%%&#&&?:EM% BT AL

FORNERAE ERZFLRT
ﬂ%%ﬁ(\zﬁ’i EIEE /\EM‘“H):/R?E%&

B EHEE ER S ROENIER NE

liabilities (including interest rate swap contract and B EAERRT BAMITESR
foreign currency forward contract) do not meet the BE (BREMNXEIE L RINERE
criteria for offsetting in the Group’'s consolidated EBHERZSEITTFENRAEEL
statement of financial position since the right of set-off BB R R IRLE -
of the recognised amounts is only enforceable upon an
event of default.
Gross Net
amounts of amounts
recognised of financial Related amounts not set-off
T liabilities in the consolidated statement
S f financial position
liabilities presented < "
Gross  set-off in the in the *m%ﬁ’ﬁ?;ﬁggq:ﬁﬁz
amounts of  consolidated  consolidated B
recognised  statement of  statement of Cash
financial financial financial Financial collateral Net
liabilities position position instruments received amount
REERE REEH%
Ve bW EL
HHHz Rz
ERZEH ERZER SRAE L
BEAE AELE B8 SRIA REERT RHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER THERT TERT TER
At 31 March 2016 72016534317
Derivative Liabilities fIEIABME
Interest rate swap contract FEEHEH 1,923 - 1,923 - - 1,923
Foreign currency forward contract SMNEREE A 4) 14,777 - 14,777 - - 14,777
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38. Acquisition of Additional Interests in
Subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
acquired additional 8,335,000 shares in Emperor E Hotel,
representing 0.64% equity interests in Emperor E Hotel,
at cash consideration of HK$10,989,000. The difference
of HK$11,107,000 between the consideration paid of
HK$10,989,000 and the decrease in the non-controlling
interests of HK$22,096,000 was recognised directly in other
reserve.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group also
acquired the remaining equity interests in a non-wholly
owned subsidiary at a cash consideration of HK$3,662,000.

39. Acquisition

During the Year, the Group had acquired the following
material property interests:

In February 2017, the Group acquired property interests
located at Sui Wo Court Commercial Centre and Carpark,
No. 13 Sui Wo Road, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong at
a cash consideration of HK$728,800,000.

40. Pledge of Assets

(a) As at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, certain
assets of the Group were pledged to banks to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group. The carrying
values of these assets at the end of the reporting period
were as follows:

RITF K
i a=EVES

Bank deposits
Investment properties

Properties under development for sale #H{EH&E 2 B RE R Y E

BF

Buildings, including relevant
leasehold land in Hong Kong

Hotel properties and hotel property
under construction, including
relevant leasehold land in Hong Kong

BNEERE
Hit (f1at)

Prepaid lease payments
Others (Note)

(BRAREEEEE L)

BIEMEREREEYE
(BREREEEE L)

38. KB B A A 2 B IMER

REE20165E3A318 IEFE - AEB L
I8 4 810,989,000/ T Ui i 1 2 1R 447
JE 2 %8418,335,0000% A% 17 - 1 T 2 1R 44
JE B 4 2 0.64% ° B 15 X {£10,989,0007
T B FE 470 B 2508k 122,096,000 7T 2 =
%611,107,000/8 7L B B R E AL 7 B R i

5
e

HZE20165F3A31H IEFE  AREE AR
& E3,662,0008 T WER —FIEEEW
BAR 28 T

39. KBS E
RAFE ARECHREA T ERDFRE

R2017F2A AEBE 2K E
728,800,000/ 8 T B & TALN B BT R
MRS IERILE 5 M IFEISH Y E
T am o

40. EEHEH

(a) M20179F3H31H &20165F3H31H -
AEEETEEDERTRITAER
AEEERIRITEE 2B -2 F
ERHmEHARZRmENT:

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TET
30,508 685,645
36,050,933 31,455,360
1,025,542 518,914
73,258 74,834
3,286,463 2,976,757
565,087 577,444
97,828 99,5670
41,129,619 36,388,524
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NANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. Pledge of Assets — continued 40. EERF &

Note: Others represent floating charges over certain other assets of
the Group including principally property, plant and equipment
(other than hotel properties), inventories, trade and other
receivables and bank balances.

Wrat: HAstEpARBEETEMEE (X
ERBIEMEIASNNDZE R
wE HFE BHREMEBYRR R
RITHEER) 2 DEEHIR -

(b) The Group also had a bank deposit of HK$329,000 (b) AL E A RTT1F 329,000 7T

(2016: HK$325,000) pledged to a bank to secure for the
use of ferry ticket equipment provided by a third party
to the Group.

(20164 : 325,000/ ) Jh iK1 ¥
RITUEAAEBFER—RFE=H
REIMEEEHK ZKF -

41. Commitments 41, K iE

Contracted for but not provided in the BRI #EBERRERE MK HRE

consolidated financial statements, net %t 5! & 18 {E H B &

of deposits paid, in respect of: (MBRENETS)
— investment properties —IREWME
— property, plant and equipment —ME HBREE

- properties under development for sale — & 2 BEPYE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THT

3,633,872 504,754
153,082 403,891
289,111 191,625

4,076,065 1,100,170

42. Operating Lease Commitments 42, REFAEEE
The Group as lessee AEBEREABEA
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET

Minimum lease payments paid and MEMERFEDNN K
payable under operating leases during Eff Z2&LHEREKHAS
the year in respect of rented premises

7,690
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42, Operating Lease Commitments — continued 42 RREBERE—~ZF

The Group as lessee — continued AEEEREBEA—ZF
At end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments REmERR AEERAREBHEEMEZ
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable TARHESEHEAN AEXNRERES
operating leases in respect of rented premises, which fall SR AE HeMEIT:
due as follows:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Within one year —F A 4,657
In the second to fifth year inclusive MEERF (BEEEMTF) 1,470
6,127
Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 2 years BEAMBA K ERE T BB Z2FE R
(2016: 1 to 2 years) and the rentals are pre-determined and % (20165F - 122F) MR ITEEET
fixed. RRBEFESRE-
The Group as lessor AEBAERLEA
At end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted ﬁi&%gﬂifilﬁ%Eéﬂiﬁfﬁm’ﬂ*iﬁfﬁ&
with tenants to receive the following future minimum ﬁﬁiﬁ/\‘\aéqyﬁxrﬁ'JZﬁﬁﬂii%ﬁ'
lease payments in respect of premises in the investment MBS THT
properties, which fall due as follows:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Within one year —FN 749,281 780,122
In the second to fifth years inclusive WFEERAF (BEEEMTE) 894,237 1,148,513
Over five years AFEMN 50,804 2,229

1,694,322 1,930,864

Certain premises in the Group’s investment properties have REEREMERNE THWEZHEP &
committed tenants for the tenancy ranging from 1 to 9 years FHAN T1Z=9F (20165 : 126F) - HE
(2016: 1 to 6 years) and the rentals are pre-determined at TEEEERNEHEAE BETHAES
fixed amounts except for certain leases of which contingent RIFEEA D LA - RAFERR 2K
rentals are charged based on the percentage of sales. SRFE £ W A £10,162,0007% JT (2016%F :
The contingent rental income recognised during the 8,160,000/ 7T ) o LA AESEAIRA B
Year is HK$10,162,000 (2016: HK$8,160,000). The lease ErSAnEHeseE AR

commitments presented above is based on the existing
committed monthly minimum lease payments.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017  2016/2017 F£3k 193



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fa o BV e B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £201743 8318 Lt F &

43.

44,

Major Non-cash Transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2017, additions of
investment properties and property, plant and equipment of
HK$17,353,000 (2016: HK$118,524,000) and HK$5,752,000
(2016: HK$3,564,000), respectively, were settled by utilising
deposits paid in prior year.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, interest income from
a joint venture of HK$12,908,000 (2016: HK$12,551,000) is
settled through current account with the joint venture.

Event After Reporting Period

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 23
January 2017, Big Target Holdings Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement to acquire an investment
property, which is located at Nos. 111-125 Oxford
Street, No. 178 Wardour Street and No. 15 Hollen Street,
London, W1F8ZZ, United Kingdom, at a consideration of
approximately £ 260,000,000 (approximately equivalent to
HK$2,561,000,000). The transaction was completed on 14
June 2017.

As at 31 March 2017, included in deposits paid for
acquisition of investment properties/property, plant and
equipment is a deposit of £26,000,000 (approximately
equivalent to HK$254,878,000) paid for the acquisition of
this investment property.

43.

44.

FEFRERS

REE2017F3ASI B ILFE  WEDEN
Y% - Ha3 NESE 2RE 5 51 /217,353,000
BT (20164 : 118,524,000 7T ) &
5,752,00078 7T (20164F : 3,564,000/ 7T )
A RERTEFOAEISE S

REZE201753A31H IEFE » 12,908,000
78 7T (20164F £ 12,551,000/8 7T ) K B & &
DEIHNBEWA TS B RBIEE P&

WREHEZSE

BIEARNB B A20174F1 A23B 2 A%
FIEEBAERAR (AR —HEEES
BUBMWB AR —MHEE R AL
260,000,000 £ (4946 & 72,561,000,000
B )R EW R R EEmBF 2E
(Oxford Street)111-1255% ~ SK 724 (Wardour
Street) 1785k & /& fw 1 (Hollen Street) 1555
(WIF8ZZ) e #Z R % 12017F6 A 14H 78
EJE o

201743 A31 0 - WREIRE %, -
HEREEZEMNIZEBEREIRED
¥ 2 {12 426,000,000% 8 (L5 7
254,878,000/ 7T ) °
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45. Related Party Transactions

(a) Other than disclosed in notes 17, 24, 27 and 28, the Group also (a)
had the following significant transactions with related parties:

Advertising and other expenses to MEEAR X TES R

related companies H R 2

Commission to Dr. Albert Yeung in M5 E+
his capacity as a patron of the (AKX EEBEEEEREFPZ
Group’s VIP rooms gHh) XN Ae

Financial services expenses to
related companies

Hotel and restaurant income from
related companies

) B 38 2% B WER 2 B B &
ERWA

A — & 2 b F W R

Interest expenses to related companies A B & A 7 X 4 7 B

Interest income from a joint venture

Rental income from related companies [ E QR AWz &
Secretarial fee expenses to m—EEERR T
a related company WERBEE

BE QB DG TTHRA X

Share of administrative expenses by
related companies

AERARXNERREE

45.BELRS

B aE17 <24 - 27T 28N FT i BB &
N REB NG EERE T NHIE
K25

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAET
90

1,117 1,545
1,623 1,020
130 161
12,908 12,551
145,733 143,618
207,041 280,587
940 940
78,616 76,003

Note: The above related parties are either controlled by AY Trust or
certain Director.

Biat: EMREE R AAY Trustsis TES
7 i) o

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017

2016/2017 £ 3R

195
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 & £201743 8318 Lt F &

45. Related Party Transactions — continued

(b)

The key management personnel of the Company are
Directors. Details of the remunerations are set out in
note 10.

The Group had entered into an accommodation
contract with Dr. Albert Yeung under which the
Group provided Dr. Albert Yeung and his associates
the exclusive right to use and occupy a property
of the Group as rent-free quarter (including related
expenses in relation to the usage of the property)
as his emolument for his services as a consultant of
the Group. The market rental values and the related
expenses of the quarter for the year ended 31 March
2017 was HK$10,261,000 (2016: HK$9,930,000).

On 4 July 2014, the Company entered into the master
purchase agreement with AY Holdings, indirectly
wholly-owned by the AY Trust, pursuant to which
AY Holdings agrees to procure members of the AY
Holdings, its subsidiaries and associates (including
but not limited to the Company and their subsidiaries
and associates) to provide products and services to
the Group in relation to the Group’s future development
projects, which includes hotels, residential and
commercial developments. This agreement has a
term commencing from 4 July 2014 to 31 March
2017. During the year ended 31 March 2017, the
Group’s expense under the agreement amount to
HK$1,231,000 (2016: HK$7,353,000). The product and
service fee payable by the Company is determined
based on an order by order basis with reference to the
quantity, delivery timing and the type of products and
services. Ms. Semon Luk, a director of the Company,
has deemed interest in the transaction by virtue of
being an associate of eligible beneficiaries of the AY
Trust. Details of the transaction were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 4 July 2014.

A5. BEFRSZ &

(b)

(c)

ARRETBEBABREF -KELZ
NS RO RE10 ©

AREBEEBIELIIL —EBERS
HoB AEERGEEIREBE
AREFEARIEAAREE B EE
ABEAHE (BIEFERAZYEZRAER
XIEEZRREN ERERASE
B SR B ] AR TS 2 5 B - B 22017 4F
SAIBLLFE ZBEa2mEHEE
N FER8 F S2 £10,261,0007% 7T (2016
£ 19,930,000/ 7T) ©

20147 A48 » KA FEEAY TrustfH]
B2EMB B KEXETERT LB
EBEWE B B KNEFZEREA
BERFPIGZKEEERZKERFIR
EB AR RBEA (BFEETRR
RARREMB AR MBEA) A
EEHEZZERER (REBE F
EREEER)REERKEKRE -Z
a2 BARR A20144F7 B4R E2017
F3A31H - RE E=201743H31H It
FE AEERZBRETNRSZ A
1,231,000/ 7t (20164 : 7,353,000/
To) cAKERNZERKRRBEER
T2 EERRRECHE KA
MR BRI IR B EEETF - ANAF]
EEHETTHEEAAY Trusth BB
mALZBEAMEWRENEZR HF
HEER ZX SN EEFIBERNA
NEIBHEIA2014FE7 4B 2 N -
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46. Financial Information of the Company

The financial information of the Company as at 31 March
2017 and 31 March 2016 is as follows:

46. KRB 2 M EER
AN AF201753A31H K20165E3 A318

ZEABERIT

Non-current asset JERBNEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRARZIKE
Current assets mENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E
Other receivables H {th i Uk 518
Taxation recoverable A] 3R 6] §1 18
Bank balances and cash RITEBREIE S
Current liabilities BB E
Other payables H b fE N 5B

Unsecured notes — due within one year

BEAEE-—FRIH

Net current assets MBEEFHE
Total assets less current liabilities mEERTEAE
Non-current liability EmEEE

Unsecured notes — due after one year — EIKIFZE ——F1& 2|5
Net assets BEFHE
Capital and reserves BEARK

Share capital B A<

Reserves (Note) 1% (Haz)
Total equity B (E

2017
HK$°000
FTERT

1,798,559

15,441,371
469

231

9,693

15,451,764

39,880
1,645,919

1,685,799
13,765,965

15,564,524

6,270,215

9,294,309

36,775
9,257,534

9,294,309

2016
HK$'000
TAT

1,747,287

11,013,774
449

115

11,014,338

26,699

26,699
10,987,639

12,734,926

3,715,063

9,019,863

36,775

8,983,088

9,019,863
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TNANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. Financial Information of the Company 46. KN R Z B ER — &
— continued
Note: K&t
Share
Share option  Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve surplus profits Total
B EE BRERE AR RIDEF wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TERT THET TERT
At 1 April 2015 R2015F4 818 4,551,984 3,575 109,474 3,794,504 8,459,537

Profit and total comprehensive 4 & i | & 2 H 42 Yz

income for the year - - 899,677 899,677
Exercise of share options TR AR I (f75233)

(Note 33) 11,264 (1,248) - - 10,016
Lapse of share options during R B R AE K3 (H#77254)

the year (Note 34) - (2,327) - 2,327 -
Final dividend paid for 2015 2015F BRI KA B - - - (220,653) (220,653)
Interim dividend paid for 2016 20164 B & i fH ER R B - - - (165,489) (165,489)
At 31 March 2016 201663 H31H 4,563,248 - 109,474 4,310,366 8,983,088
Profit and total comprehensive  F & | & 2 E AU 2%

income for the year - - - 642,201 642,201
Final dividend paid for 2016 20164 B JE 1 K HiAR & - - - (202,266) (202,266)
Interim dividend paid for 2017~ 201742 R EARR & - - - (165,489) (165,489)
At 31 March 2017 201737318 4,563,248 109474 4584812 9,257,534
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47. Particulars of Subsidiaries 47. Mt B A Bl FE1E

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (a) ARFIR201743H31H &201653A
as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, are as B ZEEMBARIFBENAT:
follows:

Directly held
EEBE
Emperor Corporate Management ~ BVI US$1 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
Limited EBREAEE (Ev REER
REREEBRBERAA
Emperor Hotel Group Limited BVI US$1 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
REREREFRAD A RERUES 1ET REER
Emperor Property Development BVI US$1 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
Limited EBEIES 1ET REZR
REMEFRBERAH
Emperor Property Investment BVI US$1 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
Limited (formerly known as EBREAHE 1£7T REER
Good Force Investments
Limited)

RENFRABRAF (A

Good Force Investments

Limited )
Indirectly held
BERE
Actmore Estate Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 100.00 100.00  Property investment
REEXERRA B NERE
All Max Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00  Property investment
HRERRA B NERE
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47. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued A7. B RARFHFE &

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (a) AAFRIR201743A831H K2016563H
as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, are as JNIEZEEMBRTIFBENOT: —&
follows: — continued

Issued Proportion
Place of ordinary of issued
incorporation/ share capital/ share capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital’ held by the Group Principal activities
EMAY ERTEER rEERE
WEARAB EEBE BE/EHEL ERTRA LA TEEH
2017 2016
% %

Indirectly held - continued
MiERE £

Asia Palace Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00  Property development
ElsARRA e and investment
NEERERE

Big Right Hong Kong 1 100.00  Investment holding

E%x e REER

Billion Ideal Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00  Property development

ERARAA 0 NEER

Champ Billion Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00  Property investment

EBRERAF 0 NERE

Century Creations Limited Hong Kong 10,000 100.00  Property investment

HiEIRERRA e NERE

Emperor (Beijing) Real Estate PRC RMB1,511,380,000 100.00  Property investment
Development Limited? H ARE NERE

EE(AR)EHEREERAA? 1,5611,380,0007C

Emperor (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.? PRC RMB1,807,598,058 100.00  Property development

RE(LB)BRRA? e AR NEER

1,807,598,0587C
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a7. MIB A B FHERE &
(a) AAFIFR201743A31H K20165F3H
HZEEMBARFBOT: —&

47. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, are as
follows: — continued

Issued Proportion
Place of ordinary of issued
incorporation/ share capital/ share capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital’ held by the Group Principal activities
SR BRTEER rEERR
WEARAE EEBE BA /& A BRITREZ A TEXEH
2017 2016
% %
Indirectly held - continued
BiEsE -4
Emperor (Xiamen) Real Estate PRC US$5,000,000 100.00  Property development
Investments Limited? i 5,000,000% 7T and investment
2 (EMHEZERERLA? NERRERE
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Hong Kong 100 100.00  Investment holding
Holdings Limited N REZR
EEREAEEZRERDA)
Emperor Entertainment Hotel BVI/Macau US$50 63.31  Investment holding
Investment Limited® RERLEE/ 50E 7T REER
RERGAEREBERD AP &
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Macau MOP25,000 38.00  Provision of project
Management Limited* P 25,0002 7T financing services
REREEEERERAR RE{ERRERSE
Emperor E Hotel Bermuda/ 130,255 63.31  Investment holding
W EREH R Hong Kong R el
BRE/FE
Emperor Financial Management ~ Hong Kong 100 100.00  Provision of treasury
Limited Ee services to group
REUBERERAR companies

FAEE QBRI B RS
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47. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued 47. B RARFHFE &
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (a) ANAFRIR201743A31H K2016563H
as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, are as INIEZEEMBARFERBOT: —4&
follows: — continued
Issued Proportion
Place of ordinary of issued
incorporation/ share capital/ share capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital’ held by the Group Principal activities
SR ERTEER AEERE
WEARAE EEBE BEx/EHEL ERTRA LA TEEH
2017 2016
% %

Indirectly held - continued
MiERE £

Emperor Hotel (HK) Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00  Property investment and
REBEEEERAR e hotel operations
NERERBELE
Emperor Investment Limited Hong Kong 1,000 100.00  Provision of treasury
HEMERRRA e services to group
companies
M & B A R R4 BT 7S AR 7
Emperor Investment Hong Kong 100 100.00  Provision of management
(Management) Limited 5% services
RUEERYE
Emperor Project Management Hong Kong 100 100.00  Provision of project
(Hong Kong) Limited e management services
RETIRRE (FR)ERAA REER ERRB
Emperor Property Agency Limited Hong Kong 100 100.00  Provision of property
HEMERBEERAF e agency services
RENERBERSE
Fai lek Limitada Macau MOP25,000 100.00  Property investment
BaERAA RF 25,0002 7T NERE
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a7. MIB A B FHERE &
(a) AAFIFR201743A31H K20165F3H
HZEEMBARFBOT: —&

47. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, are as
follows: — continued

Issued Proportion
Place of ordinary of issued
incorporation/ share capital/ share capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital’ held by the Group Principal activities
B3 ERITEER rEERR
WEARER EEHE BA /& A BRITREZ A TEEK
2017 2016
% %
Indirectly held - continued
miERE -4
Famous Awards Limited BVI/UK US$1 100.00  Property investment
EBRAES/ 1% NERE
%
Gold Pleasure Investment Limited  Hong Kong 2 100.00  Property investment
RERERARAF B NERE
Gold Shine Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00  Property investment
BERERRAF B NERE
Golden Pegasus Investment Hong Kong 100,000 100.00  Property investment
Limited e MELRE
EREEXFRLA
Grand Emperor Entertainment & ~ Macau MOP500,000 38.00  Provision of hotel and
Hotel (Macau) Limited? P 500,000/£ 7T catering services
HERLREE ORF) AR AN RAEE RERRS
Inn Hotel Macau Limited (formerly Macau MOP100,000 63.31  Provision of hotel and
known as Grand - Invest & ! 100,000:2 97T catering services
Development Company Limited)? REEERERIRB
REEHEEERAR (A1
REREERBERAR)
Headwise Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00  Property investment

BHEREBRAT BA NERE
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47. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued 47. B R EFE 2
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (a) ARAIR201793H31H K201653H
as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, are as 1EZEEMBAREBNT: —&

follows: — continued

Issued Proportion
Place of ordinary of issued
incorporation/ share capital/ share capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital’ held by the Group Principal activities
B3 ERTLER rREEE
WEARERE EENE BA/EMREL BERTRE 2B TEXK
2017 2016
% %

Indirectly held - continued
MERs -2

Hill Concept Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00  Property development
EEERAR %5 NEER
Inn Hotel Limited Hong Kong 10,000 100.00  Hotel operation
BBEERATF e W E
I Soi Limitada Macau MOP25,000 100.00  Property investment
IR ERAF R 25,0002 1T NERE
I Veng Limitada Macau MOP25,000 100.00  Property investment
taXBRAT b 25,0002 T MERE
Keen Million Limited* BVI/Macau US$1 38.00  Gaming operation
RERLES/ 1ET BRER
R
Luck United* BVI/Macau US$10,000 38.00  Investment holding
HERLBEE/ 10,0003 ¢ REER
P
Mori Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00  Property investment
MORI MORI Serviced Apartments  Hong Kong 1 100.00  Operation of serviced
Limited Ee apartments
BERBALE
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47. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, are as

follows: — continued

Indirectly held - continued

MERs-#&

Motive Drive Limited

B2 RERDA

National Goal Limited
RIEBRA A

Planwing Limited
RRBBRRAE

Precision Faith Limited®
AEERATS

Quick Gain Investments Limited®

Richorse Limited

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Macau

R

BVI/Macau
EBRUHEE/
b

Hong Kong
BE

100

MOP100,000
100,000£ T

US$1
1%

a7. B A RFEE &
(a) ARFIR201743H31H &201653A
IEZFEMBARFBENT: —&

100.00

100.00

100.00

63.31

63.31

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

63.31

63.31

100.00

Property development

NEER

Property investment

Property investment

NERE

Gaming operation and
provision of gaming
related marketing and
promotion services

BYEBRREBY A
5 ERE B RS

Investment holding

RAER

Property investment

NERE
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a7. MIB A B FHERE &
(a) ANAFRIR201743A31H K2016563H
HZEEMBARFBNT: —&

47. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, are as

follows: — continued

Issued Proportion

Place of ordinary of issued

incorporation/ share capital/ share capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital’ held by the Group Principal activities

SR ERTEER AEERE
WEARAE EEBE BEx/EHEL ERITREZ B TEEH

2017 2016
% %

Indirectly held - continued
CE3Z R
Right Achieve Limited* BVI/Macau US$1 38.00  Investment holding
ERBBRRAF KBRIES/ E REER

il
Shineon Investments Limited BVI/UK US$1 100.00  Property investment

EBRAES/ E NERE

%
Upton Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00  Property development
BEEERAA B NEER
Tin Hou Limited? Macau MOP25,000 63.31  Provision of agency
AEBERAA il 25,0002 1T services and gaming

operation
RERNRERBYER

Very Sound Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong 10,000,000 100.00  Property investment

e NERE
Wider Success Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00  Property investment
1IN B NERE
Wealthy Wide Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00  Property development
HEFBRAA B NEER
Winning Treasure Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00  Property investment
HwEBER AT e NERE
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47. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company

47. B R RS —4~Z

(a) ARAIR201743A318 k201653 A

as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, are as
follows: — continued

! All amounts are in Hong Kong dollars except stated otherwise.

2 Wholly foreign owned enterprise. The company’s English name
is for identification purpose only.

s Those companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Emperor E
Hotel whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

4 These companies are non-wholly owned subsidiaries of
Emperor E Hotel and are regarded as non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company because the Group has control
over the financial and operating policies of these companies.

All subsidiaries, except for those companies
incorporated outside Hong Kong, carry on their
businesses in Hong Kong unless stated otherwise.

None of the subsidiaries of the Company issued any
debt securities except for Big Right which has issued
US$110,000,000 unsecured notes (see note 30 for
details) at 31 March 2017.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

IHZTEMBARFBENT: —4&

' BRBETREIN AFEBGAETT
B

2 RINERE-RARXLHEHRE
Al

REEEE 2 2 BB
DR E S FT BT

=13

DI

-3
eIl
JF

4

o 4
=3

S
Z W

C RERRDNEEREBIEZIFREN
BAR WHRAREEEZERE
T RS E R 2 R Bk %
SRAWRA/AARZIFZEMBE L
o

BRAERBLASNEMAL Z AFSN A
EMBRAROERBKERK (5F
EAERRIN) -

R2017F3A31H B IEHRE 1T
110,000,000F T EHIFRE (FF1E R
FI3E30) AN * AR R 2 BB A A E
BITEERE S -

KEZZER LRIBERTIEY
ERKEXEREEZARFIMBA
Al BEERRIHEMMB AR ZF
FecREBNIE.
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47. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests:

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests:

Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation interests and voting

and principal rights held by non-
Name of subsidiary place of business controlling interests
AR L K FERERFERTER
i PR TEEELHY SRz
2017 2016

Bermuda/Macau
BRE/RM

Emperor E Hotel*

HEIREA 5 36.69%

Note: Included in accumulated non-controlling interests, an amount
of HK$1,773,236,000 is mainly contributed from the non-
controlling interests of the Emperor E Hotel and its subsidiaries.

* Representing Emperor E Hotel and its subsidiaries.

Profit allocated to

207,650

47. B R BT —4~Z

(b) EEERFEREEZIFEENEB
RAEIZFHIF:

TIREGIA KBRS BT S
ZIFTEMBRRZFHIF:

Accumulated

non-controlling non-controlling

interests interests
AETFERES 2 BH At FERER
2017 2016 2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TR TRT TR TAT

161,623 F=hGERIER 2,081,823

(Note)

(Hit)

Biat . HEIREEHEE L H W E QR IEER
Wtk 2 HE&1,773,236,00058 TTET A
RET TR -

Y ORREEREEEREMBRF -

all
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47. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued 47. B A BB —2&

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have (b) HEEAEIERERZIEZENB
material non-controlling interests: — continued RAIZFHG: — &
Emperor E Hotel and its subsidiaries KERYLAEREKE LA
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx FET
Current assets MEEE 4,279,117 3,871,846
Non-current assets FEMENEE 2,548,214 2,646,574
Current liabilities B R 817,602 822,577
Non-current liabilities EREBAE 531,154 572,462
Equity attributable to owners of HERGEHBEHEE A
the Emperor E Hotel JEiEER 3,705,339 3,443,041
Non-controlling interests ER 1,773,236 1,680,340
Revenue WA 1,613,180 1,721,042
Costs, expenses, other gains BXAS - B2
and losses HAth Uy ok I B 18 1,184,530 1,397,368

Profit and total comprehensive income 4 &% F & & W 5 42 58

for the year 428,650 323,674
Profit and total comprehensive FEEFERF R
income for the year attributable to: FHE =B
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIETZ N 221,000 162,151
Non-controlling interests of RRRIEERER
the Company 207,650 161,523
428,650 323,674
Net cash inflow from REEBZ
operating activities WEMAFRE 566,117 604,225
Net cash inflow from REFE 2
investing activities WERAFRE 705,082 1,758,336
Net cash outflow from BEEB 2
financing activities REe ML FE (163,440) (185,351)
Net cash inflow W R AFE 1,107,759 2,177,210
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IVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

i A B 5 0

Results

Revenue

L/ON

Profit (loss) before taxation
Taxation charge

BB AR A (E1R)
BB

Profit (loss) for the year

FEm A (EE)

Profit (loss) for the year FE1HFE % A
attributable to: (B#E) -
Owners of the Company KRFHEAA
Non-controlling interests FEE R R

Assets and liabilities

Total assets BEHRE

Total liabilities BEHEE

Equity attributable to: FE1E#E A
Owners of the Company N/NGIE 2SN
Non-controlling interests FEERER

2017
HK$°000
TR

4,068,467

4,647,797
(956,997)

3,690,800

3,483,150
207,650

3,690,800

2017
HK$°000
FTER
55,760,118
(27,044,285)

28,715,833

25,546,530
3,169,303

28,715,833

£
For the year ended 31 March
BZ3AMBLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET
5,602,894 2,821,473 3,013,897 5,703,465
(1,850,633) 1,625,991 2,655,118 7,187,235
(379,032) (350,298) (265,688) (560,765)
(2,229,665) 1,275,693 2,389,430 6,626,470
(2,391,188) 898,129 1,858,140 6,156,029
161,523 377,564 531,290 470,441
(2,229,665) 1,275,693 2,389,430 6,626,470
EERERE
At 31 March
H3A31AH

2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FTET FTET
48,051,959 49,011,232 43,313,955 37,803,653

(22,317,424) (20,563,434) (15,780,169) (12,346,965)

25,734,635

28,447,798

27,633,786 25,456,688

22,752,712
2,981,823

25,558,851
2,888,947

24,952,580 23,348,384
2,581,206 2,108,304

25,734,535

28,447,798

27,633,786 25,456,688
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
Yok B

Particulars of the Group's major investment properties and ZAEBER2017FE3A31E 2 T BRE W E K3
properties under development as at 31 March 2017, are as EFYEZFBNOT:

follows:
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWME
Land
Car Group’s lease
Location Purpose Floor area parking interest duration
S| THHEE
i B Jiife3 BEEER EUHE Frit i HE
sq.ft. %
¥ER
1. Ground Floor and 1st Floor, Commercial 4,710(G) - 100 Long
474-476 Lockhart Road, and GES (B%) =3t
Shop G on Ground Floor,
Pun Tak Building,
478-484 Lockhart Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BB B 5 BATA-4765 30 T
RAE R ER57 B478-4845 A 1B KB
1T G A
2. Ground Floor and 1st Floor of Commercial 6,054(G) - 100 Long
46 Leighton Road and [GES §:23 =3
Ground Floor of 44 and 48
Leighton Road, Lai Chi Building,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BB R ER BB T L1
RABEEAARASTHEE REH T
3. Units 1to 4 on 12th Floor, Commercial 958(G) - 100 Medium
Wing Yip Commercial Building, GES (%) el
65-71 Yen Chow Street,
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon
BARKB RN E65-715%
REBEREI12B1247
4. Carpark Nos. 1-11, 20, 23, 23A, Carparks - 16 100 Long
24 and 24A on Ground Floor, B R

Kwong Sang Hong Building,

Blocks C and D, 188 Wanchai Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
BEBEE188
BETARECKDEMT

1-11220 223 ~ 23A 24 1 24A%E B fif
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES

Location Purpose

o 5 ik

5. Unit 601-604, 606, 705, 801, 806, Office
1206, 1207, 1505, 1506, 1605,1607, YNES

1701-1707, 1807, 2001-2007,
Emperor Group Centre,

288 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

BB LT e E 82885

HEEEF 6015604 606 705
801 - 806 ~ 1206 * 1207 * 1505 * 1506 *
1605 ~ 1607 ~ 170121707

1807 %X 2001£2007%
6. Shops on Basement One and Two, Commercial
G/F-1/F, 3/F-4/F, Some Commercial mE

Units on 23/F-29/F, Emperor Group
Centre 288 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

BB LT e EFiB288%
REEERLE-—ERE_BHE-
T E1E 3 E48 2 i R23E 2918

LETHREMN

7. Ground Floor and 1st Floor, Commercial
523 Lockhart Road, HE
Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong

BB BB B3 T 1R

8. Shops 1-3 & 5 on Ground Floor, Commercial/Shops
the whole of 1st, 2nd and 3rd Floors, CEYAL]
the External Walls of Ground Floor
to 3rd Floor, the Flat Roof on
5th Floor and Parapet Walls
enclosing the Flat Roof on
5th Floor and Lift No. 1 and No. 5,

8 Russell Street, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong
ERWMBERRER

N 1EH RO 11E 288
RIBRE T EIEZIME
58T A BESETACER

R A5 K5 E

Floor area

BHER
sq.ft.
FHR

41,077(G)
(B%)

125,811(G)
(B%)

1,850(
§:+

(9}

)

N

26,952(G)
(B#)

Car
parking

ERUHE

36

Land

Group’s lease

interest duration

b | THHEE

Pk i
%

100 Medium

A

100 Medium

A

100 Long

&5

100 Long

R
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Land
Car Group’s lease
Location Purpose Floor area parking interest duration
¥ 3 THHEE
i 2 ik BEEE EaBEA Frifk # s HE
sq.ft. %
FER

9. Shops 1-4 on Lower Ground Floor, Shops 3,364(G) - 100 Medium
Yee Fung Building, B (B%) ol
1A Wong Nai Chung Road,

Happy Valley,

Hong Kong
EREREHERREIRARERE
EE#H 12455

10.  Ground Floor and 1st Floor, Shops 4,328(
4, 6 and 8 Canton Road, 4 §=+2
Tsimshatsui,

Kowloon
BRDIEERBAT 65
R85 T k1

(@)

) - 100 Medium
]

N

11, Units A to H on 17th Floor Industrial/Carparks 11,554(S) 1 100 Long
and Vehicle Parking Space T%/&f (ER) 58
No. 7 on Ground Floor,
Hong Kong Industrial Building
444-452 Des Voeux Road West,
Hong Kong
BB EHIETE444-4525%
ERIEREITEAZHE
B TR ER

12. Units C, D and G on 18th Floor, Industrial/Carparks 6,060(S) 2 100 Long
Unit H on 1st Floor and T¥ /8B (ER) 58
Vehicle Parking Spaces
Nos. 11-12 on Ground Floor,

Hong Kong Industrial Building,
444-452 Des Voeux Road West,
Hong Kong

BB EEBT444-4525%
EBI¥AKE18EC D RGE-
TBHER TR B EN

13. Shops A & B on Ground Floor, Industrial 14,211(S) - 100 Long
Hong Kong Industrial Building, T% (ER) RH
444-452 Des Voeux Road West,

Hong Kong
BB IET444-4525;
EEIEREH TARBRE
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES

Land
Car Group’s lease
Location Purpose Floor area parking interest duration
x&E THHE
o B R# BEER EUHE Frit il
sq.ft. %
FHR
14, Shop Nos. 7-11 & Entrance on Commercial 21,720(G) - 100 Long
Ground Floor, the whole of GES (B%) K8
1st and 2nd Floor,
Wei Kei Building,
275 Chatham Road North,
Hung Hom,
Kowloon
NEEALBR B 12755
BB T7TENRERAD
1ERIERE
15, The Ulfert Centre (formerly known as Industrial 178,815(QG) - 100 Medium
Golden Castle Industrial Building), I%¥ (B%) i
4 Kin Fat Lane
Tuen Mun
New Territories
MRAEPIRE B4RBULERMA O
(AIEBI¥KRE)
16.  Ground Floor, Portion B, 63-69 Avenida Commercial 1,600(G) - 100 Short
do Infante D. Henrique and GES (BEE) 25
Shop C2 on Ground Floor,
No. 5 Rua Dr. Pedro Jose Lobo,
Macau
BPIREFAKHK63-6955BE
T RERE 55 T C25%
17. Shops A, B & E on Ground Floor, Commercial 3,235(G) - 100 Long
Hung Hei Mansion, GES §:33 =8
5-8 Queen Victoria Road,
Central, Hong Kong
ERTIRE SN 2R E5-85%
BEKREM A BRERH
18.  Shops 1-6 on Ground Floor, Commercial 5,549(G) - 100 Medium
1st and 2nd Floor, [GES (B#%) el

1st and 2nd Advertising Walls,
525 Shanghai Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon

N /& B H625%:
T1ZE6%H 1B E2B2E
F-REZNMEREMLE
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Location

i 2

19.  Unit C on 6th Floor, CNT Tower,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
BEREHILEHL6ECE

20. BJF, GJF, 1/F-4/F of Block A,
No. 201-209 Avenida De
Almeida Ribeiro
1-3 Patio Das Esquinas, Macau
BPIRBEB1-35 M F K
201-2095F ABE D - 0 T 1418

21.  Flats A & C on 12th Floor and
Flat B on 17th Floor
Ying Fai Court, 1 Ying Fai Terrace,
Hong Kong
BERBEIREEE2E
ARCERITEBE

22.  Basement One, Basement Two and 3rd Floor,
The Emperor (Happy Valley) Hotel,
1A Wang Tak Street,
Happy Valley, Hong Kong
BREBREMAEERA
RERRBEE-ERF_EHERIE

23, Shop A, D2 & E2 on Ground Floor,
Harilela Mansion,
81 Nathan Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
NEXDBFRHZESH
EFKEHTA D2RESH

24, 153-157 Castle Peak Road,
Yuen Long, New Territories
AT E LR 153-1575

25, 54-56 Russell Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
B 8 % = 1154-56%;

26.  Ground Floor, 20 Russell Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

BEMBEEZH0RL D

Purpose

A&

Office
N

Commercial

GES

Residential
F=x

Commercial

BE

Shops
Bk

Commercial/
Residential

BE/EE

Commercial/
Residential

BE/EE

Shops
ki

Floor area

BEER
sq.ft.

FHR

940(G)
(B£)

16,788(G)
(B%)

1,780(G)
(B£)

16,122(G)
(%)

3,061(G)
(%)

8,841(G)

(%)

5,138(G)
(B%)

Car
parking

BENHE

Group’s
interest
x5E
Pt 25
%

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Land
lease
duration
T#HEE
i

Long
=

Long
&

Long
-l

Long
=31

Medium

h

Medium

P
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES

Location

o2

27.  22-24 Russell Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BEREERERE2-24%;

28.  Fitfort, 560 King's Road,
North Point, Hong Kong )
E 1 A5 285605 [ B

29.  Shops C & D on Ground Floor and
Units A and B on 1st Floor,
Mercantile House, Kowloon
NEEMAEH TCRDHEH
R1EAKRBE

Purpose

A&

Shops
&

Shops/Carparks
Hi/ B

Shops
Bk

30. Ground Floor, 76 Percival Street, Hong Kong  Shops

BRERKEEAT6HRILT

31.  Shops A & B on Ground Floor,
Offices A & B on 1st Floor,
Tak Fat Building,
50-52 Russell Street, Hong Kong
E B & RA150-525%
mEREH TARBR S
1BBLEARBE

32, Shops on Ground Floor, The Java,
98 Java Road, Hong Kong ‘
BB BEEISH The Javalt T

33.  Shops on Ground Floor and 1st Floor,
18 Upper East,
18-36 Shing On Street,
Hong Kong
B BB % £718-36%:
BEeR18H T R1EHH

34, Shops on Ground Floor and 1st Floor,
The Prince Place,
396-400 Prince Edward Road West,

Kowloon
JUBEA T8 78396-400%: i ¢ X F
W RIEES

EE]

Shops/Office
CEVE NS

Shops
A

Shops

EE]

Shops
[k

Floor area

BHER
sq.ft.
FHR
7,868(G)
(2%)

134,411(G)
(B%)

4,435(G)
(B#)

11,738 (G)
(%)

(@)

6,320 (
(%

)

~

Car
parking

ERUHE

353

Group’s
interest
x5E
it
%

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Land
lease
duration
tiHE
B

Medium

h
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Land

Car Group’s lease

Location Purpose Floor area parking interest duration

PN | TiEE
L i} BEHER  EU®E Frit s HE
sq.ft. %
¥AR

35. Shops on Ground Floor, Upton, Shops 8,183 (G) - 100 Long
180 Connaught Road West, Gl (%) =
Hong Kong
BERTHER1SORABEN TH

36.  Ground Floor, 67 Wellington Street, Shops 950 (G) - 100 Long
Hong Kong B (%) R
BEERBBEHECTRIT

37.  Flat B on Ground Floor, Hon Kwong Mansion, Shops 800 (G) - 100 Medium
25-29 Hankow Road and 4 Ichang Street, 4 (%) b
Kowloon
NBEE A8 25-295 &

HEHATERXKER TBE

38.  Shop C on Ground Floor, Shops 750 (G) - 100 Medium
Daily House, 35, 36 & B (B%) el
37 Haiphong Road, Kowloon
NEEBFE35 - 36 R37HEFI 1T T CHR 48

39.  Shops 30 & 33A on Ground Floor and Shops 1,717 (G) - 100 Medium
Mezz Floor, H (B%) i
Tsimshatsui Mansion, 83-97
Nathan Road, 36-50 Lock Road,

Kowloon

TR ES3-975 Kk
£1836-505%
ZRAEM T R EEI0RIARH

40. 60 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Shops/Office 110,532 (G) 30 100 Long
Hong Kong B/ BT (B%) =
BB BT & LT ITE60%

41, The Pulse, 28 Beach Road, Commercial/ 167,000 (G) 97 100 Long
Repulse Bay, Hong Kong Shops (B%) =
BRRKEEEE285E The Pulse BE/ B

42. 82 Hung To Road, Kowloon Industrial 89,500 (G) 9 100 Medium

5B E82H 1% (2%) o 8
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES

Location

o B

43.  Wincome Centre,
39-41 Des Voeux Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong
BEPREHET-MNTKGERERE

44, 45-51 Kwok Shui Road,
New Territories
R B Rk 45-515%

45, 181-183 Oxford Street,
London, UK
BB R EE181-183%

46.  25-27 Oxford Street,
London, UK
HE (R R H25-275R

47. Emperor Group Centre
No. Ding 12 Jianguomenwai Avenue
Chaoyang District
Beijing
The PRC
hEERAGE
ZEIPISNARE T 1257
REEEDL

48.  Commercial/Car Park Block,
Multi-Storey Car Parks A, B and C,
Open Car Parks and
Associated Areas
5-19 and 6-12 Sui Wo Road
Sha Tin
New Territories
MR H
BARK5-19%6-125
HEREEZAE
%EEBEHA BRCE
BAGESRIERNLA

Remarks: (G) - gross floor area
(S) - saleable area

Purpose

A&

Commercial/
Office
GEPE VNS

Industrial

I

Commercial/
Office
GEYE S

Commercial/
Office
HE/WAE

Commercial/
Office
HE/WLE

Commercial/
Carparks

EEIR:A

Floor area

BREHER
sq.ft.

FHR

39,400 (G)
(B%)

129,147 (G)
(B#%)

12,731 (G)
(B%)

11,600 (G)
(%)

1,062,000(G)
(2%)
(incl.
basement)

(BEE)

95,913(G)
(B%)

Bt

Car
parking

BERUHE

13

979

(3R58) —BEEEEE

Group’s
interest
x5E
Frit
%

100

100

100

100

100

100

(ER) —BEREE

Land
lease
duration
tiHE
i

Long
=

Medium

i

Freehold
KA

Freehold
KA

Medium

h

Medium

B
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Investment Properties Under Development BRPREYE

Estimated Estimated Land
Gross Stage of Completion Car Group’s lease
Location Purpose Site Area Floor Area Completion Date Parking Interest  duration
fhstEE rEE t#HEE
b R# WEEE BEEE THER fhEr R B 8 BHYA s B8
sq.ft. sq.ft. %
F5R AR
1. 75-85 Lockhart Road Commercial 6,376 95,600 Foundation 2019 - 100 Long
Wan Chai mE in progress &5
Hong Kong WETRDEES
FREF R ETo-80%
2. Emperor Star City, a site Commercial 246,173 1,300,000 Foundation 2020 - Note ~ Medium
located at Yuyuan Jiedao complex (incl.  completed Mz R
548 Jiefang 11/1 QuHuang EEHAF# basement) HETREZMN
District Shanghai, the PRC (pfEE)
EEREY
iR E HEERR
T?Imuzlwiﬁ
NEZh#
3. Nos. 71-85, Avenida Commercial 5,404 29,200 Superstructure 2017 - 100 Short
do Infante mE completed e
D. Herique 514-540 TEREETHK
Avenida da Praia Grande,
Macau
RFREFATHR
71-855 R &
REH514-5405
4. 17-19 Yik Yam Street, Residential 2,019 17,142 Superstructure 2018 - 100 Long
Hong Kong i in progress ®H
ERREET-195% LERENEES

Note: Under the JV Agreement, the Group would provide the Land, the JV  ffi7: RIS LHE AEBBIRMH Lt &8t

partner would bear the full construction cost and the saleable floor area BEERHERERA MEAMESHEHE
would be split between the parties in equal shares. MED -
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES

Hotel Property Under Development

Estimated

Gross

Location Purpose Site Area  Floor Area

fhstBE

b B# BEEE BEEE

sq.ft. sq.ft.

FAR  ¥AR

1. 373 Queen’s Road East, Hotel 7,718 116,000
Hong Kong iy

EB2RABRITIN

Property Under Development — For Sale

Estimated
Gross
Location Purpose Site Area  Floor Area
st B
2 ik HhEEE BEEE
sq.ft. sq.ft.
AR AR
1. Various Lots, DD210, Residential 99,818 32,000
Sai Kung, FE
New Territories
MARALENR
E210R % R
2. 8-10A Mosque Street, Residential 4,028 32,200
Mid-levels, FE
Hong Kong
BB FIEERES-10A%
3. TMTL 436, Kwun Fat Street,  Residential 97,091 39,000
Siu Lam, Tuen Mun, F=E
New Territories
MACHNETEE
P97 £ 43657
4. TMTL 490, Tai Lam, Residential 22,000 29,000
Tuen Mun, F=
New Territories
MATHALE
P77 4905
5. RBL 1198, Shouson, Residential 116,896 87,673
Hill Road West, FE
Hong Kong
RESEIERALS
BEMERE11985
6. NKIL 6538, Fuk Wing Street,  Residential/ 6,000 54,000
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon Commercial
NERKSBRE tx/m%
B M B 65385
Note: Jointly developed with Urban Renewal Authority

BRPBEEYE
Estimated
Stage of Completion Car Group’s
Completion Date Parking Interest
A5E
THER it F B 5 B #E ks
%
Superstructure 2017 - 100
completed
LERECD T
BELHEZBRRERTYE
Estimated
Stage of Completion Car Group’s
Completion Date Parking Interest
rEE
THER fhit % F B 5 B #E ik s
%
Site 2020 - 100
e
Foundation 2019 - 100
in progress
WEIRNEET
Superstructure 2017 28 100
completed
LEREE K
Foundation 2018 17 100
in progress
WEIRNEEST
Foundation 2019 36 40
in progress
WEIRNEES
Superstructure 2018 - Note
in progress izE
FERENERS

M EmEERREARER

Land
lease
duration
TS
HE

Medium

Land
lease
duration
THHEE
HE

Medium

ki

Long
3

Medium

Gk

Medium

ki

Medium

ki

Medium

ki
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